s1EMUUS:IU 2562
uSun loBE tina (umisu)

C

OCC

2019

ANNUAL REPORT




301 7 1nvd

THE HAIR CARE

FUTURE SUBLIME

for HAIR LACKING DENSITY

THE HAIR CARE

ADENOVITAL |

for THINNING HAIR




o GTSQTHF][L!ZHSSUFTIS
| o S'?EJD'IUUODF’I['UIISSUH']SC’ISO%OU
O S'IEJD']UUODF}['UTISSUFI'}SUSh'\SF’IO’\UIEiEJD
| O S'IEJD'IUD'IF’IF’IfUﬂSSUFI']SWi)’\SﬂJ'\F’I'ICIOUIInU
O S"IEJD"!UT)"!HFI[U nssumsassm
| O swmumnnnmssumsmwnuananams

o 0
o I

- -

gasnuantnAnwdayaivdaidanuuvuansTien1sdayayseirtuuy (uwy 56-1)
=
vosuivniluanelily www.sec.or.thniaiduleduasusvn www.occ.co.th

aisurny

6.
7..
8.
9 .



ddanad
1s10:Moluinokthogoudolss
souadwassagonucnchoua:dnga
INocaUIINUNNAUNALKOAWIID1000
G083UMUAzUSMISNES10A0IUEDY
A0V tazauus:ulo
INOWUNOIUYOVIST @NMUDVIST
AMuvovlsT WiloRuLazdonulnuyols

6 O.C.C. Values

B = Boundaryless

E = Ethics and Integrity

A = Adaptability to Change

U = Unity

T = Talent

Y = You are Our Valued Customer
BEAUTY from within
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usyn lo 8 8 dia (UmBU)
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A 31 SudIAU 2562

NHELYG)

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

YUY UM

2562 2561
49,463,961 48,566,353
160,327,859 220,108,739
174,606,402 178,864,848
235,441,414 229,463,960
31,293,546 28,740,719
651,133,182 705,744,619
94,585,356 100,432,108
46,439,623 50,700,945
6,788,826 9,677,354
316,895,342 308,228,631
19,826,074 25,294,894
36,779,695 41,571,580
20,845,951 10,171,213
36,599,534 34,262,121
4,355,971 3,694,368
583,116,372 584,033,214

1,234,249,554

1,289,777,833




usun lo 8 8 dia (Umsu)
ouIAaOYIUMSIOU (CiO)

U Sun 31 SudIAN 2562

AHAULAZRINYD IR T DY MU0

itaunyuion
Fmiinafuazidvilnguieuds 20
mEIularaeg
ﬂ'ﬁzmmmiwf:ﬁumuﬁwﬁ'u
uviAuny e
witaulivymion
Uszmnmmanitulaimyuwieudmiuwauszlonininos 21
Tuviaulingmien
Tnitan
PSRRI
NUToUrN
nuaanzideu
Vuandty 80,000,000 viu yarviuaz 1 UM
nufioonuaziiazud
Muadty 60,000,000 v yariuaz 1 UM
SIAUY AT
mlsazas
TAFTIUE
NUAITINNNY TN
UGRE NG
golalAdnaTs
peAUsznaLaundmIaiavu
FINFIRYRI T OV

TINRTULAZTINYDIRT BV

nungwndsznauiunsRududiunilsrasaunsull

WY T UIN

2562 2561
141,091,680 179,165,457
5,823,435 5,213,944
3,653,290 -
150,568,405 184,379,401
90,511,408 87,315,120
90,511,408 87,315,120
241,079,813 271,694,521
80,000,000 80,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
36,500,000 36,500,000
8,259,676 8,259,676
49,000,000 49,000,000
795,502,848 815,739,018
43,907,217 48,584,618
993,169,741 1,018,083,312

1,234,249,554

1,289,777,833
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usyn lo 8 8 dia (UmBU)
vurhlsthanuidaiaso
&nsSuUU duaadun 31 SuoIAY 2562
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ANUIUIENAT
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IUiREdNaanI e
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2562
1,127,294,461
(591,010,071)

AUIE T UIN
2561

1,274,767,939
(641,289,127)

536,284,390

11,838,071
(344,915,749)
(164,381,341)

633,478,812

159,996,703
36,128,432
(452,240,879)
(166,400,208)

- (283,222)
38,825,371 210,679,638
(7,265,566)  (41,585,147)
31,559,805 169,094,491
(5,846,751) (3,590,653)
1,169,350 718,131
(4,677,401) (2,872,522)
(4,744,969) -
948,994 -
(3,795,975) -
(8,473,376) (2,872,522)
23,086,429 166,221,969
0.53 2.82
60,000,000 60,000,000
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usyn lo 8 8 dia (UmBU)
vuns:amuad
nsSUU duaadun 31 SuoIA 2562

YUY L UM
2562 2561
NIZLERWIAINNAINTINA ALY
MlanaumBiduld 38,825,371 210,679,638
MemadiufinsznuilsiennEduliduiuaniu@e)
INAINTINA NI
AiianTIAUuazAFaT e 11,800,670 10,020,519
AFANNINBRNTNILN 4,791,886 4,805,925
wft@zymwf:mﬁmxgry (NauT18N19) (577,943) (926,610)
Uz ITUAREUAN (NALTI8NNT) (20,046,000) (4,354,482)
NANUIINMILTUTIANFUMALTE 2,673,432 8,189,607
ANUIINNMIAAYAANIBIFUANALRE (NAUTIBNNT) 1,548,912 (1,040,091)
AMFINEINNTLINAGUALA FIEANTT 358,420 1,672,380
AlEIINNIRAFUAT1IA 973,272 1,588
smﬂnuﬁnﬂL’Eumnu%mnﬁé’ﬁmﬁ@?}ym%a (219,120) (108,739)
ﬁwv[,imﬂmif{imﬂwL%umnwﬁl"msn (402,505) (445,298)
mmnumﬂmﬁmﬁwLﬁumnm:azmaﬁlu 6,511,323 882,197
frlsnnmssmiedunsndiae idamne - (159,996,873)
PIANUIINMITMBLA ARSI B A ILazgUN IOk (723,018) 361,112
AldenaLeleriwin g 8,697,574 6,475,067
flsnnmasiiiununeumaddsuudadduduninduazvildusineu 54,212,274 76,215,940
ﬂﬁiL‘UgEJ%LLUMT%ﬁ’J%‘U‘jsﬂE]U?JE]\T5%71%%8(61’1Lﬁ%\i’m(lﬂluﬁl%)ﬂﬁm
anuitmafuazgniiivaeudu 24,882,389 38,259,112
FuFAnie (11,531,490) (4,542,961)
Auningvauisudu (2,552,827) (2,376,079)
Auninglavyuisuin (661,6083) 1,873,784

mMadAasuudadluaIulIzno oI AIHANAR WA NTW(@ART)
RV TR PRI EIR RV ARG E

Uz Iniaunyuien

(38,157,986)
3,653,290

(13,116,234)

nunmndsznauiunsRududiunilsrasaunisuil
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usun lo 8 8 dia (Umsu)
ouns:iiauaa (cio)
&nsSUU duaadun 31 SuoIAY 2562

VU L UM
HHELHR 2562 2561
NITLEIUIAINAINTINA AR (510)
RUEATUIINNIIANAI 29,844,047 96,313,562
Ienatszlesintinemu (10,246,255) (5,866,309)
e BEule (6,875,145)  (48,309,355)
nazuaduaagnslasnan(glulu)AanTsndnduam 12,722,647 42,137,898
NITUEEUTAINAINTINAIN U
L’T‘mﬂmhﬁ%aﬁuamu%’amn (140,000,000)  (430,000,000)
L’?‘mm%’umnmﬁmuwL’Mamwﬁ"amn 210,402,505 280,445,298
Lﬁuﬁ@fdws?ryaLﬁmmmwwnﬁlu (12,250,000) (9,250,000)
Suaasuaniududasanmiduiuadoy - 25
L%um?dwaiﬁﬁﬁmdu‘%ﬁwﬁﬁm%mﬁu - (6,000,000)
FusasududulidBaunuisniifedaei 2,888,528 5,471,779
Lﬁuﬁ@f\hﬂﬁ?qrjaa&”wﬁm%fwﬁﬁammmu (9,178,167) (20,520,481)
IuansuanmIsmheduningideliiene - 284,244,553
L’Euamhﬂﬁ??amﬂmmzqﬂmd (4,094,994) (11,018,307)
Juaaiuanmtiriigaimuarglnin 747,664 456,075
AnandneTaFunSnedlddmauan (12,340,575) (5,660,074)
nizuaduaagnslasnan(glulnfanisnamu 36,174,961 88,168,868
NITUENWIAINAINTINIAW I
L’EuamhEJﬁm‘\‘mﬁﬁmxaxé’?mmﬂmﬂumiﬁu - (80,000,000)
RuaaneduHe (48,000,000) (39,000,000)
nizuainaagnslannan(gldlu)fanssudaniin (48,000,000)  (119,000,000)
L’ﬁuamamwmmﬁEmwhﬁuamﬁu%}u(aﬂm)qw% 897,608 11,306,766
RuaALazTEN AR UYINTHEAAINEDAkIIA 6 48,566,353 37,259,687
RuaALATIEN AU UEAALAAD U9 6 49,463,961 48,566,353

nunemnUsznausun It dudiuniluassun1stuil



usun lo 8 8 91na (UML)
RdIRqUs:NouLUMSIdU
éhnsul duaadun 31 suoAY 2562
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maenziden 1 uishy iduiifyeesiidnnduluszindlng weTuil 14 Gomew 2516
wazldaanzaifenuds smmduussnamaninta WeTuil 9 wowmen 2537
nzfewani 0107537001323
Anenisn L vl 729/47 auurenAien keenslNenne LWAETHIN NTINIEIIHAT 10120
Uizinngina . S mhendairisznneIasinens e ta3osauas qﬂﬂitﬁLa%NaaﬂLL@:U%miLfﬁumwmm
goevunelngy ¢ dheviuwnelvg Ae uiEv e SrwAasuiuua 91 (N7 (foviuipeaz19.73)
ey U3EN avimmdmned Toane s1nn (M) (feviuineaz 12.73) o U3ETITO 2 v
Juifyaeafidanaululszsmnalng uaznedide sygws @ovulosas 15.01)
INCUIMSOAMoUMSIdU

2.1 UMIRUAIAIUMENATFIUMINENUNNMITY IR TRmansdydndsznaldlag

s I IninFlunwasusnrgang (s Ininigd) ngisdevuasUssmaamenIsnmMIMAUMaNNINdLazaa ANANNING
aIUA 2 ganen 2560 FomMIiaruardUNMERRLAE e TABAUT MM TIULAZNAM IR TN A
nziden WA 2560 Insguuunmmiiaussunaiuliuandoifiaszddgandsemansaiauigiiansdaeiud
11 ganan 2559 Favivuamenadaiidasiluunaiu @0uf 2) we. 2559

WwMIiuwee3vny davndulagldinarinemudanlumsiayadvssesdsznavsosnenisluiumatiuentiuaens
Adawwe i Tuulauenaginne e

swmakuwatume Inaduwiunaiuadunuisng Hduwmemamungnang swnaiuadumMe8Inn=LUaINIuna
Ruadumeingd

sumainianiuazwansmbeduanduinum daduwanaduililunsduinnusesnien
2.2 {EIFIUMITIBNUNNITUIN
N NIFIUMINENUNNNIRUAENENTIAUTT T TR

TuazndnD vy IhanaIgIunInenwnmINM IIuLAE N IAANNEIATTIWNITINENUNNNM IRIUATULTUY 39
UFudye 2561) wazavulnidwiunaeaiy FofinatieAu i mSuumaduifisenszeznanyinGslu wie
MRVIUA 1 unTAn 2562 indoUlia anesgumITsnwnIEEusnal#un Ul g SalEtw e
Widomiessvanesgunamenwminadussn i sana lnedmngidun il gedasduazindnd
M3FANE kazM IR IN T 3AUElTNNAITIY MIRIATTIUMINENUNNMITUAINEINED
ﬂfjﬁﬁfr Taifinansznuataiuaszdragsdasuniaduresuieny ag19lsfiamy H10I7 1M INBNUNINILTH
atulnd Folginadenulamannmasdty dail
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Held andngnfiiniugné Tnefanmasiuimeldluinuiuiinsfoudifmeuunuiinanseaiez]éu
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UiEnY Sufuanaznusesmmhanasgunerumamaivaduindeufialaedaszianmnemadydine T
Uinpruilsazan asnnidumaihduuindminesnansanneld o Tudl 1 annan 2562 uazlsidn
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= s
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Fuft 1 WnTAN 2563
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atun 7 madamedayaaiasdoniniitiu

AUUN 9 LAIDINEN NI
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A7 32 NSLAAIIIENISAIBIRENIINNTEN

MIAANNNIATFIUMITIENUN NI
atufl 16 matdesiuanadesosivasmugnilumibeaudline

AUUN 19 MITIEndiunInItumeanan

HATIHNITENUIIMIEungasIna i Amuandnmsfeiiumsdaussanazmyingadnieios
fliomamiuseyamefssravienamudadirinelae i sonNNUIANIeIe TN INMITw  anwke
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5. S1IEMSsSvAUUARANSONPMSAINEOTOVU

5.1 anwmweanNagnnuswazulourslumsmvuasan

usBhiia:unnaniNgodiovu ANUYNU:AWEAUWUS

U

a v a4 a ¢ @ o v & YA v 1 a v A Yy v
UIEn 10.3.3 Swmafiuduuus 3na ((Wmew)  ugfevunelvgluuiugn deviuioear 19.73 wazdiiou
LAZNITNNITUIRIUTINAY

a o [ a s g o W @) v £d [ a o A - YA 3
UIEN e dwnad laads 3na ((wmow)  ugtenunelvgluuiugn deviuiesar 12.73 wazdidou
LAZNITNNITUIRIUTINAY

=

U3un Buwmodiuinuua uauuemedd 910n  ugioduluuiun fedudesns 1.20 wazfffiodu/nsanns

DNEIUIINAY
UIEN oYanwol 109 (NinTw) dugdeduluuivn deviuiesar 0.13 wazfifdeduuisdin
FINNY
vaEn fle Tanaduuna (Inowans) 119 UiEnievuiosas 16.00 uaziniavin/nITansudiniinny
U3un laFeuda maou Jadua 4110 yiunieruiasas 15.00 uazdfiovin/nIannsunediuiinnu
UIEN 195 9ae% Tadus 900 Uiuniedudosas 11.00 wasfigforin/nIannmsuediniinnm
International Commercial Coordination UIEnfiaviuiasas 6.60 uazfigiiovn/nITHNILeEInIINGY

(Hong Kong) Ltd.

pad )}

V3NN aInuge 3nin HOOVUUIIRIUTINAY
FENd

@ ~

U3 Inined Aan3datu uoud ladafiad 1in viwndeduiosss 5.00 uazfigfeiuuisdiniingu

Sunieiuioeay 5.21 uasd

U

a o a < 6§ o s v

U3EN venanlaien goad 41a 7
£ ﬁ: % al

U

=

AN/ NITNNTUNFINTINAY
fgfiovn/NITHNILIEINTINAY

UIEN Ineyunzundy $1799 Tendevuiesas 4.00 uaz

=

[ =

FEnienuiesas 0.01 uazfglioNuuaIuIInNaL

=

UTEN YA HITH 0@ (NrnT)

U3En Tnenaug 911a Agfiovn/NITHNILIEINTINAY

USEN Uizrnennsal 300 (8vnw) Agfiovn/NITHNILIEINTINAY

UIEN AMengadInia 37 Agfiovn/NITHNILIEINTINAY

U35 Loa uawud 13 Bumadiuduuua Agfiovu/nITHNILEINTINAY

LOULABIINIE A (NVNTW)

USEn walawea. (Uizinalne) 310 fgfiouunaIuiinnu

U3EN anes 9179 fgfiouunaIudINnm

UiEn e, 9110 NITNMTUWAIUTINAY

u3En 401 Tnavea (Uszmnealne) 3179 viEndevuiosas 3.73 wazdAfiouunadiniinnu
U3En avlawden 30a viEnieruiosas 5 uardiiouuedIudinny

U3un anualdaaa naned 4110 viEnderuiosas 1 uazdiliavin/nITnnIIunsdIniinny
UIEN NIARTNT 9179 ADoNUUIFIUTINAY

PWNAYIW EEFINT NIINNTUIEN

wieyuedand ToaTawn IAFANNIINNIIRIANTT

UM YARRTAE NI ANNTUAATEUNTNILHUAIN TLAZAILAN

AAN15A9 9 209RANITINIIMNINTINTONDDN 9T IND
n3InMIvaIvIEn (ldazrminlivizauuimansal)
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5.2

100

msmruasIMAUNPMSRINgtovAU

g FUA
MsWUSNInIeeladn
Rudunasu

9

aandeFuinlvnds
TORUNINY
AlgIesaaINne
ANNUIN®L

anlganedu

gaAALUABNUNINTTNNEITDINY

ganrumdanuyAnaLaziaN I ToInY ob TN 31 SunAN 2562 uaz 2561 At

anwiinIaén
V35N 1049 Dumsuduung 300 (Jrnmw)
U3un lalSeuda e Jaduad s1nne
U3EN 80N, 9109
7
anvilngwieuds
vaEn ls Tanasuuna (Ineuand) 11
U3En o lawea. (Uszndlne) 970
Ui lodeuda t1aaw Dadiud 10
7
SR

39N nnes Aan3DIvw waus ladafad snnn

U3EN v dwnns Taane s1im (Hvnaw)
U3H 10.9.3. Buinosuduuna 5100 (Nrgw)
SRHY
Fuainuiions
anamuidundnnindidons

USEN 10.4.7. Do siuduuua 30 (NINTW)
UIEN arWawIduwaes laafs 310a (NHTw)

UTEN YA 136 3na (Nrnaw)
7

ulguigsim

IAANA/AUuNuLINTLI

AN TlEANaTINiY
ANANFNILATURUT A
Sarmenidedoeas 3.5 dal

TARAIA/ AT TILE AN AN Y
AR/ TN TIIE AN AN Y
AR/ TN TIE AN AT N Y
AN FNTIEANavT NG

TIAARNN/TIANNNA N LAANRITINAT

v

(Mg WU

2562 2561
237 350
7 28
5,244 -
5,488 378
11,959 14,805
12 63
34 103
12,005 14,971
408 408
117 117
23 23
548 548
62,869 66,052
24,409 25,722
17 18
87,295 91,792




(M8 : WHUM)

2562 2561
anmamuduiiliogluanudaimavosmain
v3En le Tanaduuna (Inowans) 109 11,200 11,200
U3En vananlafien doad 1nn 7,806 7,806
v3En Tnines dan3tonu ueud ladafiad $71n 2,809 2,809
UIEN 1% 1180% DETLLE 9100 2,200 2,200
International Commercial Coordination (Hong Kong) Ltd. 1,406 1,406
3t Ineyunzuniu $in 1,750 1,000
Ui loldeuwda 1aan Dadiud $11n 150 150
V3NN ainuge 30 4,200 4,200
u3en 90U lnavea (Uszindlng) 310 9,000 9,000
U3En anlaiden 910a 6,750 250
USEN arualdaaa mMaaes 1na 5,000 -
TIN 52,271 40,021
¥in anflanssesdn (9,980) (3.768)
qné 42,291 36,253
RuldiBaunuieniiieadaiv
U5un woulouea. WUszndlne) 31a 6,789 9,677
TN 6,789 9,677
ninadn
v3En Hls Tanatuuua (Inewans) 119 17,940 14,070
UIBN AMengasInia 3170 3,284 11,477
UIEN BUR0ITnuna LaUUeaImesd 311 10,295 9,024
U3En Tnenaug 9119 1,199 1,824
U3WN LOF LA 19 BAastuduuna onaasinag s1in (W) 1,926 2,120
V3NN oyansol 109 (M) 1,086 1,668
U3En lalSeuia 1aew DaTud 31N 95 4
U5un oulauea. Wszwndlne) 31a 5,060 -
et 40,885 40,187
Fnitngudeuds
v3En lnines dan3donu uaus ladafind $71n 271 439
U3EN BUR0duduuna Lauuemess 311 69 74
USH L0 UanE 19 Braasiuduins owaaslnad $1i0 () - 71
U3En 1043 Huaasuduuna $900 ([rmw) 102 135
U3EN animmdunes laafe 3900 (N 7 69
U3 lolkewia 1aan Dadiud $11n 1 -
U3un oulauea. (Uszndlne) 311a - 73
TIN 450 861
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- & a Y va i av dd v o ao &
ﬂ']iLWN‘IJ‘LLLLGZﬂ@aﬂ‘ﬂaﬂL\‘]‘HI‘WQEINLLﬂUi‘i&WW]LﬂEI'J‘UBGﬂ% HEN

(M8 : WKL)
LUMSIdU

HOAAVIRGD TU SUA
31 SU0I 2562

N N 8OaAVIAED U SUA o > . e
PUIRAgUINUSENAINgogovU 2 Suowy 2561 WUBUSIRGWD  acavsincwl

1%

U3un oxlo.ues. (Uszindlne) na 9,677 - (2,888) 6,789
PIFY 9,677 - (2,888) 6,789

(% @

53 elawazelgaenuiansinel e

TemsnuiaMInnedesnud vl augaiui 31 Swnen 2562 uaz 2561 i
(Mg - WBLIN)

2562 2561
PEFUATIBNITIAUINIG 15,267 25,055
SHSEIATY) 4,196 3,318
eladug 1,166 25,236
FoFuf 310,506 342,846
Al FILEINNNY 736 2,198
Anfisnen 7,651 8,546
Anlde8u 9 6,774 18,916
ANMDULNWNTINNT 4,684 4,747
ANRDULNUKUINT
wadazlomiazerdn 22,162 23,669
navszleniszezeniin 1,721 1,673
FINANADUUNUKLTYN 23,883 25,342

6. doyawuIduInaonuNsIaIduAQ

HUFALAZINENTAEUYNEUER UIzNaume HuaaluiolazeanndianluswIans RuaaLazIensiesuyintuanly
IWNTTUEIUFA YTzNaLIUIINTIENTIILUEAITIHENITY Aot

[

6.1  RUFALAZINENNIUYNNBER Db TN 31 5WINAN 2562 way 2561 J5gazidenaed
(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
NUER 76 123
RuHINNIZLETI % 1,317 2,824
Wuehnaaaning 48,071 45,619
I 49,464 48,566

6.2  FTEMTNLHNIENUENER
(M8 : WBLIN)

2562 2561
dmiud Auge o Tul 31 Fwnay

L‘:]J’]Wf‘:ﬁ]’mﬂ’li%aa’lﬂ?iLL@xQﬂﬂiﬂf 84 1,952
Bhwitanmatedunsnelaifdanan - 5
IauﬁmmmwzmaLﬂmﬁumnu%mn 10,000 -
Andutasanmduriuadoy - 2,401
mmnmmmﬁwamLﬁumnmﬁama (5,847) (1,190)

I 4,237 3,168
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IBUALNUIBOASID

RURIUIIATI ob TN 31 SunaN 2562 uaz 2561 dngazidenniil

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
anaImuialiifiaf 40,328 90,109
Ruandazinszeziianliiin 19 120,000 130,000
nm‘%umnu%’amn 160,328 220,109

1 2562 uar 2561 Guasnuinaludwihndszdnszeznalaniv 1 U 8daneendedeliveas 140 - 1.85 uaz

150 - 1.65 AINA1AU

v
a

Nemauadewlmlussnindfugaiun 31 funan  raemnammukazanmIrinegluaiudoinsvesnaalai

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
o % 1 unTan 220,000 70,000
Foszwined 150,000 430,000
183213191 (210,000) (280,000)
TNensUIvUInmsUiuyaen 328 109
™ 31 fwAx 160,328 220,109

anndmsmiaanhinyuIdaudu
aniinsuazgrviinadeudn o il 31 Sunan 2562 uaz 2561 fimeazdeadiil

(M8 : WHLI)

2562 2561
anwdin1Ien
anwinadusEniAe oA 5,488 378
anwiin1IdUsEnasy 163,555 190,611
IIH 169,043 190,989
N QWLﬁawﬁﬁaﬁaﬂzq@ (6,971) (7,549)
AudoanMITuAnARAN - (20,046)
E\j‘ﬂ% 162,072 163,394
vy Ieudu
anviiusEniiAedaeiu 12,005 14,971
1) 529 500
EREN 12,534 15,471
nugnniinsfuazgnnilnyuisuds 174,606 178,865
Aifaviaodeazgy
AN 7.549 8.476
ANTW (anag) Tz (475) (809)
wﬁqmﬁﬁﬂﬁmmmwdwﬂ (103) (118)
Uaneein 6,971 7,549

@
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(M8 : WKL)

2562 2561
vasnilgnuiinnaduenenuengnilldal
Qﬂwf:msﬁm%ﬁwﬁﬁm%ﬂﬁu
goluaTuiruadIz 1,565 89
ARAIRATITE
%o8NIN 3 LHow 3,692 -
3-6 Lhon (10) (53)
6-12 Lfiow 38 126
NINNI 12 1D 203 216
TngnuitmIfuIEnfAedeeiu 5,488 378
anviiIfuIEnay
g9lNATUARATIE 94,791 129,57 1
ARANRATITE
#oenin 3 1hon 64,647 55,715
3-6 Lhan 972 1,516
6-12 fiow 213 27
NN 12 Lhiow 2,932 3,782
squwffmiﬁm%ﬁwﬁ'u 163,555 190,611

9. dumMAvindo
AUANALNAD th YU 31 SunAN 2562 uar 2561 ATeaziBensl
(Mg WBLIN)

2562 2561
FuAAurde 137,344 134,816
Audnshnane ¥in Audoyadndudnanag 101,134 96,138
Rt 238,478 230,954
N ﬁ%ﬁlmdamﬁuﬁmmm (3,037) (1,490)
TNEUAIALAAD 235,441 229,464

@ v

sureasduianrienuuiiniduenldieuaz Tanludnddunuane
(M8 WuLI")

2562 2561
- AUNUINEY 589,463 642,329
- madFuanyasduyargniiaaiazlaiy 1,547 (1,040)
3N 591,010 641,289

10. dunswéliryuidaundads:innidudunswenioldiwoud
(Mg - WULIN)

AN
o IWN 1 WNIAN 2561 144,248
MUY (144,248)

o Jufl 31 SunAN 2561 uaz 1 NNTAN 2562 -
o N 31 5uNAN 2562 -

A oo ~ a v P ~ P Aa Ao o | aa o P
WBIUN 21 Junan 2561 U3und leaansideulonnisnandnnsunaw 4n31l5annnssnvuinegnan 31wiw 160 a1uun
naINAN L gINeN19RTelNNTINe
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11. 1duavnuIWoud

@

RuaIULeIeY o TN 31 SUNAN 2562 uay 2561 Aneazidenndil

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
anaauiidundnnindidons
vasnAedaei 87,295 91,792
U3 7,290 8,640
TN 94,685 100,432

Nemauedeulnilusznindiugaiun 31 suinan vennamuuazanmIrinegluanuseinsrenaind
(Muag : iUy

2562 2561
") fuﬁ 1 4n7Ay 100,432 101,622
nmadasustatluyarigfiosss (5,847) (1,190)
o 31 DuAN 94,585 100,432

YOAEATITNIDIFUNINETINITN kazy AP N INLEATIWIDLEAITIHENINT3T% 0 T3 31 Funan 2562 8

(Mg - ABLIN)

. v o YAANERDIIN
yaemNtnd Y2
§ - JEAU 1
anasuiidunannindidos 94,585 94,585

v
= o

Y]

@

2\

@

o

A

%

ARl Tz TInyaAeAsTIniniudszidniuauningminiadu mitayargfsTssmanignindizam

@

agluszAundnuIassIAUTUyaA18fsTINaNdayanlTlun U sTinyaan AeneessAUNAEIRINUATI AN TNUN

WWunannineiioevsiuien fAo

'
=

o &) Py 5% o o , o o e o o o v ¢
b AU 1 WuIeawadaany (VLNWQQ‘L]TU‘]_]?Q) I%@aWG"IWNﬂﬂWWﬂaaﬂ (W@qﬂﬁﬂﬂ‘ﬁiwa) NATUAUNTNEG AL

UIENT NIRRT Db IUNIANEAN

a

12. 1DUavNUS:E:eN0dU

v
=]

WUaI1ITeLenIDn o TN 31 SUNAN 2562 uar 2561 Aneazidenniil

(Mg WKL)

2562 2561

Rua NIz N uanUInN1IN% - 10,000
anmmuduiiliogluanudoivomain

visnfiAedaeiu 52,271 40,021

Wi Auieniidoee (9,980) (3.768)

qnd 42,291 36,253

U3Enau 8,125 8,125

W Aiienissoaen (3,976) (3,677)

q‘m% 4,149 4,448

JIN 46,440 40,701

TINARAMUTTEZEN AN 46,440 50,701

72561 RuHnszezennuaanUwnsInionseendesatSoeas 2.125
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13. IPUIRAEUINUSENAINETOOU
o Tufl 31 Swnaw 2562 uaz 2561 UENY ﬁﬁtycywﬁﬁuLﬁuﬁuu%ﬁwﬁ'Lﬁm%aaﬁmmwﬁ;a WINE 6.79 AUUIN

uaT 9.68 MULMN snNaeU areenieSpeas 35 foll InefidanlunsHaninszdumnianmandeifauas 300,000 1N
SNTNIZ0IALINIUA 31 WasAAN 2562 FugAiun 31 SunaN 2564

14. odom3sunsweiwomsaonu

(M4I8 : WHUM)

EAGRVI
o Ui 1 WnTAN 2561 287,708
w‘\‘jwﬁyu 20,521
o U7 31 AN 2561 uaz 1 NNTIAN 2562 308,229
w‘\‘juﬁu 9,178
o Jufl 31 Sunawn 2562 317,407
AndanTaazan

o U 1 WnAN 2562 -
AndanTAdmsuT 512
o WA 31 Sunan 2562 512
yaAgnsNinyd

o0 Ui 31 SunAN 2561 308,229
o Jufl 31 sunawn 2562 316,895

o IWN 31 53NAN 2562 uaz 2561 Yszifinnailaeuiun luaodu nienmweifnaudauaur 3100 Faduglszdiu
TedaTz TagRansanTanaIaNISiSeufieusiaiaaia 451005 % 1w 365.65 a1UUIN

15. oymsia:punsnd
(Mg - WKL)

indovcnico  dunswe

o1msIiia:En ounsnd ounsid _ )
Ugnaswdu  dinow Esuacy WU dhunow SHNLY =l
lla:zuavd noasiv
1A%
o U 1 NnTAN 2561 51,068 36,688 4,214 24,932 90,428 - 207,330
LANTU - 3,122 240 6,709 2,818 83 12,972
U8 - (960) (537) (5,200) (2,211) - (8,908)
o U 31 Sunan 2561
UaE 1 HNINAN 2562 51,068 38,850 3,917 26,441 91,035 83 211,394
WAnaw/ Towdh . 2,304 26 30 1,901 - 4,261
I mie/lawaan - (8,934) (28) (6,007)  (31,296) (83)  (46,348)
o Ui 31 Sunan 2562 51,068 32,220 3,915 20,464 61,640 - 169,307
AndonTiaaean
o A 1 8NTAN 2561 51,068 31,847 3,547 22,189 76,505 - 185,156
AdonaimiLD - 2,534 251 1,170 5,079 - 9,034
U - (954) (537) (5,169) (1,431) - (8,091)
o U7 31 SunaN 2561
uaz 1 NNINAN 2562 51,068 33,427 3,261 18,190 80,153 - 186,099
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(M8 : WuLm)

InSovanico  dunswe

oxmsiiady  gunsni gunsni - Y o
Ugnaswdu  éhunowu 1asuaod ’ eéhunowu SO S
lla:aud Noas1v

AnfenTadmiuD - 2,690 256 1,925 4,752 - 9,623
VU - (8,932) (28) (6,007)  (31,274) - (46,241)
o SR 31 SunAN 2562 51,068 27,185 3,489 14,108 53,631 - 149,481
yaPmgnin1Uy e
o U7 31 SuanaN 2561 - 5,423 656 8,251 10,882 83 25,295
o Suf 31 SunAN 2562 - 5,035 426 6,356 8,009 S 19,826

T 2562 uaz 2561 orAsuazalnInt Folavinandonnaaaniniwiues uidiasldoueg amuessduning
AN #9711 180.90 AL Uz 165.62 SULIN AINAIAL

16. dndNMSIs

(Mg - WKL)

IAINU

o4 Ui 1 unTIAN 2561 34,200 45,204 79,404
o JUT 31 SunAn 2561 uaz 1 NNTIAN 2562 34,200 45,204 79,404
o Jufl 31 Sunawn 2562 34,200 45,204 79,404
AFIATINUIE T TN

o U 1 anTAN 2561 2,303 30,724 33,027
AARINE 1T 3,300 1,506 4,806
o SuT 31 Sunan 2561 uaz 1 NNTIAN 2562 5,603 32,230 37,833
ANFAITUIER 1N IUT 3,300 1,491 4,791
o Jufl 31 Sunawn 2562 8,903 33,721 42,624
yargnin 1y d

&% N 31 suNAN 2561 28,597 12,974 41,571
o Juf 31 Sunan 2562 25,297 11,483 36,780

VIEndansmadnnmInedszmanszyiudygiinaw enmsuaziunnaeasy Tunsnuisngdensdasingdns:
mundunefennaenegdnuienaenfiszyludyn dyonfszeznaaue 10T 8128 Tuavazfugaluizning
1 2563 iy 2573

17. aunsweluiddoaudu

(Mg WKL)

ISooRE lUsiinsy T_u$||rlsu= sou
msf AOUWDICDS  Sthowdado
FIAMU
%) ’T%ﬁ 1 4nI1Ad 2561 747 32,072 - 32,819
LANTU : 165 5,500 5,665
o S 31 SWNAN 2561 Uaz 1 NNTIAN 2562 747 32,237 5,500 38,484
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18.

108

(Mg WKL)

ISovhe [Usiinsy T_u$||rlsu= sou
mSM AOUWOICIOS  S:hdwdacdo

Ana W/ Tawdn - 17,841 - 17,841
Tousan - (1,253) (5,500) (6,753)
o Uit 31 SunAN 2562 747 48,825 - 49,572
AFIATIN U TN
) i’uﬁ 1 HNIAN 2561 - 27,326 - 27,326
AnnarUe a1 rIul - 987 - 987
o WA 31 SuAN 2561 uay 1 NNTIAN 2562 - 28,313 - 28,313
a1 a1 rIul - 1,666 - 1,666
lauaan - (1,253) - (1,253)
o4 WA 31 Sunan 2562 - 28,726 - 28,726
yamgnsnUyd
o N 31 suNAN 2561 747 3,924 5,500 10,171
o Jufl 31 Sunawn 2562 747 20,099 - 20,846
iwmmmiﬁm‘hwmaﬁmﬁaagi 1IN
1l 2561 1-9
1) 2562 19
aunswdamasuldsodauryB

[

FunindmBiduldseantnd o N 31 WA 2562 uaz 2561 Heazidennidi

(Mg - WU

2562 2561
FunIwdnmsiulasoannd 47,576 46,408
wildumBEulfsesninyd (10,977) (12,146)
qnd 36,599 34,262

v v
@

NanmaAfenlngnsRuninduazniduwnmstulasanaaatninnedulull da

e

(Mg - WBLIN)

y uuriniOu (sweoe)/sidldiu L
fu dun dun

1unsiu  MisnSo  milsmanu 31 sumAu
2562 anu IUdIaSvoU 2562
(nuEing 23)

unswemsinlasamadntgd
anvdin1Ien 1,510 (116) . 1,394
fufaunie 297 310 - 607
fnlstuduansdusninane 24,585 (934) - 23,651
L‘\‘mammzawnﬁlu 1,489 1,302 - 2,791
Uizmmmiwf:f?mhimuﬁmém%fuwaﬂaz‘[mﬁwﬁfmm 17,464 (311) 949 18,102
du 9 1,063 (32) : 1,031
374 46,408 219 949 47,576
nianmBisuldsoniend
Lﬁumnmrﬁ'ama 12,146 - (1,169) 10,977
pIokY 12,146 - (1,169) 10,977




(VY38 : WKL)

uufniOu (s1ae)/swldlu

fu dun aun
Tunsiu  MisnSo  mlswanu 31 sumAu
2561 ganu Iudiasvou 2561
(nuEing 23)

uniwemsiinlasomadntgd
anwiin1én 1,695 (185) ; 1,510
FUAAILARD 505 (208) - 297
flstudurotdudninae 24,187 398 - 24,585
FuainuIzezed 1,313 176 - 1,489
Uszanosmavilanlavspalsudmiunaysslonininns 17,342 122 - 17,464
i 9 1,261 (198) . 1,063
3 46,303 105 - 46,408
niaumEinlsan el d
Lﬁumnmrﬁ'amw 12,864 - (718) 12,146
I 12,864 - (718) 12,146

. dunswlunuuidaudu

FunIwdlanguioudn o i 31 sunaN 2562 uaz 2561 fneazidennii

(Mg - WU

2562 2561
SudnsusEniieadoein 548 548
SndnsusEnsu 3,808 3,146
IIN 4,356 3,694

IIndMmsMIaindruudaudu

WnHEMILAzIRAywIEREw ob WA 31 SunaN 2562 uaz 2561 Hneazidenntii

(Mg WKL)

2562 2561
Emin1ae
QT BT QU Rt I RS AR T 40,885 40,187
FANIRUsE N 42,298 56,439
TIN 83,183 96,626
iy deud
FmRuIEn TR aiu 450 861
AldIaA9Te 31,039 42,394
B 26,419 39,284
IIN 57,908 82,539
nudminsdussdmingwieudu 141,091 179,165

. Us:nrumshidauldnyuidaushnsuwaus:lasuwinoiu

UEnIanslassnstimiatiwgwinnuaadeimuase sz nadyaaduaTessw W 2541 Tuniling
Uszlomiilaindonunininiuaninduazongemn

Tassnsnadszleninfvualifanudesanmsdszanansmananamiamansdsznuie Taun anuie e
Fin ANuFgIINeRTLANUAgY ANNREIINaATIAENTE LATANNTEINAAIA (TUAINH)
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(Mg : WKL)

2562 2561
JULEAIFIBENITIY
‘Ui:mmmwftﬁuhiwguﬁmimuLLaﬂaﬁmzmiﬁuﬁm%ﬁJ
naUszlerinasaanaineiu 76,839 57,753
waUszlemiszezennin 13,672 29,562
TN 90,511 87,315

nawdsuulasluyadntagineesdssinumamviausasasinmanalsslomt

(Mg : WULIN)

2562 2561
Uszsnomanitansedlasemanatazlend oo uft 1 wnaen 87,315 86,706
Fuiluilsmnenu
AunuuInluede 1,179 -
AunuuINIITatH 4,380 4,581
mamﬁymmﬂmi:;dﬂ A 1,742 1,696
7,301 6,277
suiluilsnenudaaiadu
namlsnmIdszanmmuranamamanslaznuwie 4,745 -
4,745 -
A 9
TN 1,396 198
navazleriang (10,246) (5,866)
(8,850) (5,668)
Uszanomanitansedlasesmanadazlend o Sui 31 e 90,511 87,315

KoM lsanmItszinumInamranadamassUsziwieisuiiuilmenudaaiadu o uinIeuITezIa et
FPIUIN

(Mg WHLIN)

2562 2561
dmiuidugaiud 31 sunan
SNNATINNIINIINR 4,745 B
RREN 4,745 -

FoanNdlunTUssananIaNanAma A aasUsEAWAY
U a s s a 6 s s/ s a' aa v aA' 1 31 s U 1
YOFNNANAN IWNNIUIZHNNINHAANATAFTAIUIZ WA o IUNTIe% (Landlagdinuadenieiinnn) lawn

(Mg : anTI08A)

2562 2561
aRINANEA 13 2
mil,ﬁwﬁymmﬁwﬁaﬂuamﬂm 445 - 8.20 445 - 8.20
8NN INYWIEUNTENIU 1-47 1-47

JoauyRinenuannuIncluamanionudaganeaianueunimiduazen s
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22.

23.

MIRATIEANNE DU

maasuudasluudasdoaunfigiuitiedodunmalszinumsnunanadiaanansissinnenonadullldeesaumgauns

o Jufinenu lnefiohdaaunfigiudn 9 asf wfinansznudamzyniuuadszlesinimuaiduiwninasialUd

(M8 : WHLM)

2562 2561
1.]3334'1mﬂﬁiﬂﬁauﬁlaﬂﬂﬂﬂﬁiwﬂﬂiztﬂ‘lﬁi 1) Tuﬁ 31 swnaN L‘ﬂl}l%’% AR Lﬁluﬁﬁlu AR
anTAAaA (Lﬂf\i'ammm%aaa: 0.5) (2,448) 2,564  (2,4006) 2,521
mMamnIneeuiwianlnowan (Lﬂﬁﬂmmm%maz 0.5) 3,054  (2,936) 2,605 (2,510)
BMTININYWIEUN TN (Uasuwuasdoeas 10) (3,517) 3,839 (2,871) 3,101
Sornsnzluanian (Wasuwwasdoeas 0.5) (9) 9 (8) 8

wihmaienedildldmdamanszneduuuifagiurenisuaivaaiaaniimeldlasinisding udlfusas
UszannInnugaulnizasdaauufigiudie o

dleTuil 13 Sunan 2561 s Addy A Aledufdnuimsenedygfquesewstnuwaiulng Fonnrane Fna
Tgremalunafisnpunudiouil 5 wwneu 2562 wznaiydignameusnuatiulnilimuesemenaameiaiy
nadwethadnie dmiugninsdeinnudeseiuasu 20 THRIFRENEL# U Aaamelaaenhamdedamnaahe 400 Tu
gavhe madswasiinandedumaudlalasmsdmiulasmanadsslonivdsoonanem wazinansznliisny
fvilfudmaulanfzazenasmsinmuiadu netuisnyldtuinnansznoanmaddssasinanlnesusm
vimsluafaiunldieudiluiuilsneruaesd 2562

NOVNUENSOVIAEVEW
UisnlFianomudsondedndmiuwineuenishuwiuguanaaindlareminodumaisidnaenasmm
Tnegndnnuieduazanludnniosas 3 - 15 vosdwdeunnifeusazuienieaunuludnniosas 3 - 4 vaainiauvas
winnunnidon  nemudiondednitldanadeudunamudmauiedwmadarmuasamnsnnamIndussdams
nosulaefinmanesuilésuaugne

maduld

23.1 MM Bdulavesnifagiu

1 2562 y3Eny A Biula wdamiosar 20 i lsnewinmBduladmivrauinnaumedsesaldinewas
N3N 9 ﬁlu’mgywGflﬁ’ﬁaLflmwsﬁhsﬂuﬂﬁﬁwmmmﬁtfmvlﬁ (f)

232 alfemBduldisusluinlmianenu

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
mEdulareinadagu
fnTuradagin 7,485 41,690
mituldaniafadnd
nawasuilasesnasedin? (219) (105)
I 7,266 41,585
mBaulaisusui lsmanmdaasody
Funiwgnaniaduiens 1,169 718
HAIIANUIINNITUIZHIUNIIANAANAGAM AT 52N 1A 949 -
I 2,118 718
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24.

25.

26.

27.

112

(M8 : WKL)

2562 2561

NIENUEEMADNIBAIINIBTIUITIF0
flananenlginemBkule 38,825 210,680
anMmMBRulaifyanas 20% 20%
mEdvlamnnnnBivlaiiyana 7,765 42,136
elailigondond (1,001) (1,022)
AR DRI E 502 471

I 7,266 41,585

aisov

81399 Usznausme

NUAITDININNYNHE

AHUNTTY A ALINTETIURUTENNMIRIING WA 2535 1A 116 UiENIzdetdnasmudses (‘diIsiau
ngrane”) egnsdesiosnr 5 vainlsgniUszi Dnataninaanuazanendn () awunddrsessenaifdwiuly
faenin¥asn: 10 sasmuasmzden BudiosiazihlUdeduiulumaldls

NI

U%ﬁﬂﬁ%@ﬂiiﬁﬂif\huwﬁﬂiﬂuﬁunm‘hiaﬂﬁ"ﬂﬂ %ﬂiﬂé’fﬁ:qi’mqﬂizmﬁlﬁamﬂ@mﬁwﬁﬂmmwwz

Iwuduwaoig

Tz diovu el 25 ilaTuil 22 wiew 2562 eudinsieiuiiunalusaTiuaz 0.80 LM S
60 dwuiu dmduilagnduszind 2561 Wuduiunansaudnwmg 48 Fmum dutluadananildieliunigiedul
Fufl 21 WowMAN 2562

iz dioviu aon 24 flaTuil 23 wew 2561 euiEnsheiuiunalugaTiuaz 0.65 L S1uam
60 furiu dmiuilsgnduazdnd 2560 Wwiuuwanaduiiuam 39 Suum duifuwadnanldieliuigdoruls
Fudl 21 WowmeN 2561

mlBSEmuanunu:

sumaduldnamAengvienlinemumihi enlisemusnuo fdamemadaimualunaTgumInegnunims
Ruadusg 9 orait

(Mu2E - WHUIM)

2562 2561
mawasnutasiuduianie (7,524) 5,320
Foauduagy 597,854 635,208
aldefeioyaaing 332,252 356,949
Al gEILEINN1 978 12,175 89,869
Al 8AI0E1 9 AN 19,983 31,908
GRICYTY 5,892 7,689
ALAENTIALAZANFAS YN 16,592 14,826
Anfi3nmn 7,651 8,546
ANMDULNINTTNNNT 4,684 4,747
ARBUUNURLINTT 23,883 25,342

goyamoumsIduMIUNCNUEIUIU

UIened 3 dimnuimenu armeasdendneay Fadwnhenugsfandiagaesisn luuuraniunismeandim
NUFINIRIITWNINIZULNILINI MITAM ez laTsaImInenumInsdumelusssisndunmsilunisivmue



NN
mMIfrueAIznIvEInnvegundanlananasINiunIdo e

wald (1fe) Funswduazriausmudinms nuenInedndlaeasanusineny Wienamansn Tudwldnuainen
Trognanmgaaranemfldamnaniudnlddmingisznevie aondenisiulfunanssivsosduninduaz nela

wazRunInduazalginesatianisinesin
MIWNUOIND
UisnnauadwnugaiandAnydil
0% 1 LATEIEIDNIUAZUSNITETNAIININ
fwnm 2 1dadh
91901 3 5%6]

(7]

JoyanamIniniwIaILsns U NENulaTINagaia iR namsiinnwialaeldmlsneumEtulavesdin

A o

1w Fehauelunegnunsdanmelusazdaumulaggdsimsnndulagegasmunidiininusosuisn Juinage
Nmsliflsnewmedulalunsianansdivonunududoyafivanzaslunis)ssi@unan sdine e sdmnuas

A

FaaAdeINUAINIAUNMAUGINlUgATMNTTNIAEINY

ToyaeNFIRIUNTIZIY

InSovéhowia:

(Mg : WHUIN)

_ - 1dowh Bu sou
usmsliasunduviy
dm3uT Augaiud 31 Sunaw 2562 2561 2562 2561 2562 2561 2562 2561
MelsdnngnAimenan 1,001,606 1,112,684 125,686 160,549 2 1,585 1,127,294 1,274,768
Mls@enwemndmnuiowdnmé 57,148 74581  (11,414)  (5,108) (7) (786) 45,727 68,687
ﬁuﬁwémmhmmﬁﬁwmm
o Tuil 31 Sunew 342,616 337,193 77,189 82,500 - 5 419,805 419,698

nansznugaailavionanuuaFunindamudimnuinenud mivd Fugaiui 31 sunan 2562 waz2561

mlsr3eanu
IRl E IR AT
sl @ uaam
elaan
Al uan
mlsTnnanmBniula

FunIng

FUNSNETDIFINIIA T
anwiinIIf
FurAurae
p1ansuazgUnaol
fndn13tan
FunSneladmandn

7

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561

45,727 68,687
10,487 171,495
(17,389) (29,502)
38,825 210,680
(Mg ABLIN)

2562 2561

162,072 163,394

235,441 229,464
10,662 14,247
11,094 12,102

536 491

419,805 419,698

@
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28.

114

(Mg - WHLIN)

2562 2561
Funsndilllauend e
NUEALAZIIENI AU AR 49,464 48,566
Lﬁumnwfﬁmn 160,328 220,109
vy ieuds 12,534 15,471
Auninevanioud 31,294 28,741
Lﬁumnwﬁamﬂ 94,585 100,432
Lﬁumnm:mmaﬁ'u 46,440 50,701
AuligBaunusniiiedaeiu 6,789 9,677
ofam3nnindionanmu 316,895 308,229
FuniwgnmBRuldsonnnlnd 36,599 34,262
Auninglavyuisuin 4,356 3,694
37 759,284 819,882
FunIndilllaiudm
a1AsuazgUnIt 9,164 11,048
fndn13ian 25,686 29,469
Funsndlufishaudu 20,310 9,680
IIN 55,160 50,197
Auningau 1,234,249 1,289,777
N AFans

vindiugsiammne sz lifneldnnssssinaniodunsndlusmossmanfaszdidny
gnennelvig)

Uiwnlafignéinmeusnidugnénelvguesuiem

InSoodomomsiou

wleU18N139ANIIANINE LN NAIHNITLT

U%ﬁwﬁmwmﬁlmmﬂmsﬁwLﬁuqiﬁamwmﬂm?mﬂmiL'ﬂﬁlﬂmmma”mmamfmm:é’mmaﬂLﬂf?:lemﬁumwiwﬂi:mﬁ IRH
M3l uReadariruam sy g U%ﬁlﬂhjﬁﬂﬁaa‘ﬁ%aaaﬂLﬂ%}aﬂﬁaﬂ’]ﬁﬂ’]iﬁﬂ%@lﬁﬂﬁa%ﬁ%gLﬁaﬂ"ﬁ
ernlarIaniam

mﬁﬂmimmL?ilmﬂudmﬁﬁﬁfymaﬂﬁqiﬁwmﬁﬁw U%ﬂwﬁizuﬂumimmﬂﬁﬁmmm@mmi:ﬁumwmﬁ'miﬁ
Tudaaiuld TneRnaonszviefumuiiinnnanadsuasfuuamsianenadss dheudnsldinieuay
n3zUMMIMITAMIeadsosUisnatwraiiasialiiula e nusugaszniinnudsussMImuaNa N EDY

MIUINITIANITN

UlELNBYBIAMLNITNNILTEN ABNIinETzauRunuliiuasfioInBIinamy i mikazA N daduIaInaIALae
TAanIimwre9gInaluewIan AMeNITNNILAENMIIAULANARELLNUIINNTAIMNY TILTENRITMIINTAFIL
PDINAADLUNUIINAINTINALARIUFDTIMIDUTVDITIN BnnedarinnuguaszaunmIneduiuaaiungioruasdoy

{ o o g
ﬂ:)’)JJLﬁE/\?ﬂ’)uarﬁli’lﬂanLUEl

ANHAsIueaTeanderineiy AnaEssniianmMaldswilasnazifaluowmansesannaonideluaan  d9a
NANTZNUABMIAERNULANTZLEIREAIRILTEN UinAanudesinudnnaendeninaniuasmuszezend le
vimslansmnuanandsssuannnandesasuisndazaui iasnnanneendediwingidudnaa



@

snnmendenuiadasmannineniduanamuuasaami o ui 31 sunanuazszeznafiasuimuaiudiaod

dasiaoniUa AavoN 1 U
ANRD3Y malu 10 icimalu 5 U Sou
(sogazsiat) (idag : W19
i] 2562
nyuIn
- Fudntszansseznalabiin 1 7 1.4 - 1.85 120,000 - 120,000
I 120,000 - 120,000
i 2561
NyUILU
- Budndszanazezimldiin 13 1.5 - 1.65 130,000 - 130,000
I 130,000 - 130,000
Tainguiden
- RuknIzezeAUE0TWBNINY 2.125 10,000 - 10,000
39N 10,000 - 10,000

ATNAEIN AU T

v

ANNLEBIN I UEWTaAD ANuEssNgnAvIagd limIdssniLiuIEen sndoulananadliifiaasuinnue

U

rhevimslammuauleunemefuduiaiiomuananadsmefuduiasinaniagmiiase lnemsnneigue
msmIiuesgnénmnmefiversiuiwialusziunil 9 o uinenulinonianudsandwisfdumszddn any
desgegameinuiwdouanslilummaatgrasauningnisnsiusiasnenslusuuansgiuznaiu. aislsfiog
dasnnuisniigugnéndmuann theuimildldaahasiamademedissddganmafonildls

ATNLAEIINTNINAREDY

U%@’wﬁmimmwmwLﬁmmﬂmﬁmmmwmaﬂlmmﬁﬂmsxﬁmaﬂ@uamm:mElmiLﬁaULV}'WL‘\‘mmSLﬁLﬁmwa@iaﬂﬁ
AUAUIUIDIVTEN LAZNTNFNANTENUINNANNHBAIUIDINTELFIUTARAR S

MIMIUAYAAIYATTIN

wltnematinfuazmadamesedsnimualifinrmuaysdgforiansduninduasnitaunmisnatuuaslail
NNINTRNU YA TINNINEET ﬁwmuf\‘mﬁ@%yaLLazrz:imamﬂmLLaﬂLU?SIﬂuﬁuw%fwﬁw%asﬁﬁwfrﬁuﬁuTummzﬁﬁ%@aamw
fanaseufiazifnlalumauanifsuiu uazmanandesoimaiulfoeaiudrs udnsuzaasilidanuiedaiu
SnnUazasdaasmiinyacuaz/miamadame yarmefoTingniualaeisdelil dayaiadnfoiuausiginluns

(]
a A 1%

fvuayargfisssngnidamelunanemaiinedosiuiuninduasnidunn 9
yargfssanasgnvimafuazgnniiszezaudu 9 Wiyarnindldssiuyamauinyd

yareAsTInsesdiunasnuluranningnduanammuuazanaminde e Nazdeliwmasuimue wazifions
Asonlagdedenunanauede o uNlueny yargfsrinrasinasmunazislfanasuimuagniansonie
AnuyInEnglum adame Tuaun s

YaAYATTINTDIFUNINEUAHATUN N AT WFoNNIYaANTTTAEIU N IWIDLEAIIMEINILT0 o T 31
swNAN Jeeit
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2562 2561
yamgdsssy  yamenuunys  yarigdsssy  yamenuunyB
(M8 WuLI")

Lﬁumnu%mn

- amanmuioliied 40,328 40,000 90,109 90,000
- Fuihndsednszeziialuiv 1 7 120,000 120,000 130,000 130,000
Lﬁumnulﬁamw

- anamuidunanningdidens 94,585 94,585 100,432 100,432
Lﬁumnm:ﬂ:muﬁ'u

- AuAINIzezeINUENNITRNNIEK - - 10,000 10,000
afivEunindiianianamu 365,650 316,895 365,650 308,229

29. Mswnwula:rdaunewInadu
29.1 MIENAUNA LN
U3sne vhdginiuiuasdygnusmatuuseniudssmananaurs Tnedgadmnanidszezng 1 8 28 T uazaz
E;uqﬁslui 2573 Uaznausme

- mIzgniueNaaiuuiendnllle o T 31 funan Jaui

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
melu 11 5,554 10,137
Vi 13 weldiin 5 ¥ 14,002 14,629
\iw 5 1 10,534 13,247
7 30,090 38,013

5

- mIggnuNdsemELarUINI Terzdosniediszemoriidendunsneuunulae Ssnsneldainnne

ﬁLﬁ@%ﬂuﬁuﬁﬁu@mETm’whﬁiiNLﬁwmmﬁﬁ:ﬂuﬁﬁyﬁyw

292 mIuil 31 5uAN 2562 uar 2561 U3EN Anitauiioraintuannmsliouassenmisdordasiuliio v
Tuswdidlng 910 msluiuasrais uazdminemdnasasiuilag $1uim 0.64 &M waz 0.61 MUUM ANEIAD
293 mIzynuAn

19

U3WNY A IRURWTDNUGTUIANT 3 Wi NELNLALT Aefh

(Mg - WKL)

2562 2561
N DniAnydouwiang 110,000 110,000
Tdu193n 185,000 185,000
aamniaaniATindnIudeauiuaz g 20,000 20,000
eisRnANU3 ANaINEIANT 1,000 1,000
3N 316,000 316,000

30. MsouucaoUMSIdU

UM IINRlATuNMseutAHaaniuMIRulneAmenIINNIVBILTENY LHaTUA 12 NNAMWUE 2563
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13. MS3IASTANIA:MOSUIEUOOWIEYAMS

1. wamsaiudumuia:su:NMsiou

11, MWNHIBINANIAUAUNULAZFIUEN THIUNHIUNN

Tull 2562 vsEnAneldTn 1,139.13 auun Wisuifieunulnenanas 331.76 auun Aaduaningin
anas 22.56% utaduneldanigme 1,127.29 &uwun anavaniiion 147.47 & vseanas 11.57% wazmeladn
11.84 11 anaandian 184.29 d1uun viseanas 93.96% feldsneTinmsan 1,100.31 §mun anasantan
159.91 duumn andudaduanay 12.69% wazfimlsgninataninmiiulaffyanauds 31.56 duum wisuifiey
Autneuanas 137.53 auLn AndusnINEIwanas 81.34%

AunineTin o Tuil 31 Sunen 2562 fiyadn 1,234.25 Fwun aaasniien 5553 & wun vile
4.31% lpaAFunindvywionanas 54.61 amum wasfidunindldnyguwisnanat 0.92 Suumn Funindvywieniiinas
uazTEMATELYNERIARNTY 0.90 f1uun HuamudanTianas 59.78 Smun saInmIsaamamaTRial fife
AuazFudndszinszeznaliin 1 3 @uﬂwfmis«gﬁLLazQﬂwfrmuﬁaué'umm 4.26 §MUIN MNNIUTURITBIEDATE
AufAInRaRNGY 5.98 Fuun nmasdenaudl i mihelugiananiad ez ageiu Auniwdnauleuduiadu 255
duum Funindlivyulendiuamuionsanss 585 Smun ennmIsaasasnaaaannmuiumdnning
Home Fuamuizezeniduanss 426 Amun sanduihnizezeniusniunaiu Guliiiunuidnauiiedoiv
anRY 2.89 AL aﬁ'wﬁm%waﬁﬂlamimnmﬁ'ﬁyu 8.67 dwuN Lﬁmmﬂmiﬂ%’uﬂgﬂﬁwmﬁﬁu dmoanazgUnIot
gNnBanay 547 MWLM FNEMTTEART 4.79 UL %@L‘fluwamnﬂﬂiﬁ@ﬁﬂﬂmwuawqﬂWii%ﬁqwu ﬁuw%fwﬂsiﬁﬁmquﬁﬁm
Tu 1067 &wunn AunndmBRuldsonsdmigdiadu 2.34 Suum uazfidunindlaimyuionduiaiu 066 Smuum

wsugialnelull 2562 finwndfamemadulafifaseiinawdenoufesuiolion nnzsdyiy
Tadadsspuhnmmasesgsdmensnuazmsrzaemosglssdmelulszina manmsssoenanassiatitosannaasms
AarunTaduasiiymainTunIf s ievigawiniuiu fudmansznuidwnedearsgiadi daumammeaies
yenefrzannmuiuinonfieniwdudiin lwnisigUsdmelulszmadinssouua lnansuilnamaensudarzan
i Befithistenneaassnuiddlifiui nufmeldafFoumanuriogluszdud Snnedeiinilogluizduge mas
Folaemnvasniudoudediliduudnin naldelumaiianfes dwalinaigdonizduamsinduizesianeinian
mpsedniehemiedingldiios endudunmmeniemeluisma inasmIhemisinsnIininages 110N
miifosaanmaasmumelulszina forildifssmeoamsgianiim dumanmumeiontudagluiz i soefimaamu
TumagarvnIdiamumanganeliaimandnaidsladniu Yszneuiuanmiunmaiuszdas Timaldawdoun
g3fe [nsamnzgsAamnenauazanagon dniumsliiemeigiiidmmenefuaegio lnammznaaswionmm
Tassasoiuguszunusgenone wiluondlasimadfanaddegihe

mnaMzamegifisoundyuidgauasanmwesenngiiadnllmeanaluiwinengs imadfeuulas

atinanaa gUslnadidmazviasideudnluwizaugs Suldrzaonsfeduiailasidondadudrindnduuasuilnalul3anm
713100 Yszneuiunizmsudidunduiugmiansguesiinngean dguisiudnanlunainagedaiitos foudinuIsndnms
a ) - Ay oy & = Y o o 4 v v N o a v
Aanssndaainnmendnduiuluranransduuiienssfuinastoudifionn Advlimansainnelaliinadulnldde

' ' o o !

waneesenlseaunutlymmaendageednauuienns

a

o &

wanNfgefifatedng Adnansznudenamalszneunmnefifiesudin siuauurdaduglaadanis

Uiznaugine wiu

(1) naasulansiiuguamnalvgresmegiiodlusesdusiu amtumaduinanadusatunsliiu
\Hourigafie nAianansNainsAsgluaz Ui MITEABMYBININARMAGAFNITHTINIENUAD TS
Tgsadeon anmdeduduilnadogluizduim Aoormmanimefaduazmamanignnie i
wanszUAaAtouazMITUhefitaeas

117



(@)

samiwimdenidiiundfamiuaaswnamszasissgusdneluszna s siasaniduia
foeluszausi SolidmansznudemaTasingosszamusinniin Sauen@uumiiemsimnmazEnd
erlutsaeiidaisufeuiuiuananeanioniy atndlsianaundesaseniiunmanaan ik
Taigsnansznuasiiaddndommuingiuuaz dusaisegihidhansesnea

1.2, uleiNeuazwNwiul3ENluAIUIUA2

(1

mnam‘wmmmﬁﬂmwﬂﬁuﬁ’uaa'wwuwmnéa%u %ﬁﬁﬁgﬁgﬁ,mmmﬁuLm:iwﬂwﬂﬁllmLsﬁngmmmatiw
doiflas Tnalinagnsfinannraneffifiotsdoduuiminanaia Lisnldnanagniiiainsgugnéh
i WEnAUldeNeainSnngrgnAlidemdaAanTIs b 9aneiionszduliAnnmaans
TnanAosiuzmalasandsznduiusisudauwiinnnguthmnaiosimssuiuszaulanasos
Tdauen

vigndadianudsnlumsfnduiamndaiirfiduinnsmulaneu Woneususianadomsves
fuilnelunnlamauszUutpannmmmaliansludiuie g ieafeadeiuszanafomels
gegalinuguilng

fusinanadanuanIneinnulunnzdufemiaeuTiRninssmunagnsmaAUlanigIne
woliidnenwinwgAaluganuduwdaadediin maa$efisnm Culture Working Team Lita3au
sossAantgnilsaedfien 6 n MeldimusTINesAns BEAUTY from within S38ARIruaLHm
UatiBnmaieliudazmhenundoshsushslainlugiamnadeniu ahoiamusauminuis
fuidalasuiouazndnamwouwiaalumarneulng TanueAAuM I wINnwninagle
13 doadnaiuayulfiAnmauanudssussiiuasfias Seushniuszingunsinnuluusiazane
e Fwrnudnsn g melusnlnemnizdoimensdess Intranet Web Board

1.3, HAaMIA AR UIDILARTENSNARA A

Tl 2562 UsEndselaannnsesin 1,127.29 auun anadantneu 11.57% 1nnN5STeanfI 1o

anzasegialnewazusie A Iueldves duldogsrumn Jszneunulull 2562 viEndmsdadsznmaenisvnd

TAINNIATTIUMINENUNNMIIUATLA 15 FespsdFudmaTuinelaainnismnediwimn 52.34 amum udlul 2561

guaviiaulatnanatniiin lnefeanenennain 2 SeRAANMWITAN TINEaRIERNAIAL A%

118

(n)

v
a

NARNDWTLATDIED1ILAL DN

fluanne 1,001.61 duun Aadudadimrinny 88.85% 10v8aamne3anneu3uy Wisueunulnen
fionanay 10.11% Fadunsanasninnmazzasmilievesiuilnamuanizaswginldidaswe
wivdungiamnIndnegmwgnanmbildagnanieudin uazmnanudedululssnaiudfialinez

snInadwsanneluduiigiudaly

WAL

fivonne 12569 1uun Andudnaiurniy 11.15% eigammeTinniuisn isnifeuriulinond
Samanat 21.7 1% aoldTunansznulneasanammarsgiuasidseifagainsinin Usznausu
fulnedafmaznitaueidauiiogluaduge Sedasmueuertineiiuiles fudrelisanosndn
uazdarhiiduiulneviuysslonilivos

1.4, pamsawdnnul3esieuninlseaanis

i wan viEnlalduaasszanmmanamsdivnuliuiuuuaasmenisdoyansiauemeranning



15, MINSNUNIIRINE1TYTSUAUNNA

| S > . w

Tulnshwan {eeulisuennnaldnasouiuNITRIBILIENLAZ LEAIANHARI DN IRIUAINEIQNGBY
AT TIUEN ST AR ANENAT IR TSI 3%

@ 9

16, maasuwlamleinematiyinadn

1% '

madaguudasulaurenistgdlud 256213434Nﬂﬂiw'm_laEl’NLﬂ%ﬂ’]iwﬂ’]F’]E]J@aﬂ’]ii’]EJG’]%GUﬂ’]iN%‘IJQQUiHV]

] o

2. powaisnlumsmmils

21, Telg

1ui) 2562 v3EnfAelaTIn 1,139.13 a1uun Wisueunulnauanad 331.76 a1uunn AaLuonsaIn
anad 22.56% Nelananunaneanene 1,127.29 auum F9anasanilian 11.57% lasxnan 2 fandadivianfing?
9971971
22, gunuineuazalgsne

Tuil 2562 Al Afunuandane 591.01 duun Andudndin 52.43% sossonmnegniTuiniu
Nnliron 2.12% Waanuansznuannmadasuilsmlounednd dudunulumidasmhedmu 344.92 duum anas
107.33 dwun vaadAadn 23.73% ImﬂLﬂumia@mmﬂwamwumﬂmiLﬂﬁEJuLLUmuIEJmEJﬂty%ﬁhmu 71.07 amun
fuivas 3625 a1wun snmiIeuanmslEglunande glaegeidszdndam uwazdenlaiglunissimsinm
164.38 uun anat 2,02 duunn viedadu 1.21% faduldamaiamaieiiunisanasmeseenie

T uan viunlidnmazeaendedns evanuisndanmeasosagluszaundan laadunaniainans
A0 lNIIMIIANINIzLERREANNU Iz ANS W

23 meladu

eleau FoldlFinnmasuineuammUngsl 11.84 druum anasaniiion 184.29 dwuunn viaana
93.96% 1N9INMIanasaeinlsanmssmean 160.00 & wuin MAniululinew dufiraedn 24.29 dwum s
Jauszanmenatig@lainuanesgumsnenunamaiuiiuam 18.73 duun wazdusonidesy dugisy neldaniis
I T8 IwIn 5.56 S1ULIN

24. mls
davhngldnmaneinauiodunuandine sunulumsiadimine alfnelumaimauds visndmls
MNMIEUTIRI 26.99 LN WRNTWIIND Ao 12.15 s Lﬁaaﬁnnm@waﬁﬂdnm%’wﬁu usidaTInTelEan uazein
oniadeuds dwalifiilsieunBiuliifyaan 3883 Fmum anasaniiden 171.85 & wiedndu 81.57%
LLmLﬁaﬁﬂmﬁﬁuvLé’ﬁﬁUﬂmLLéJammﬁaﬁfLiaw% 31.56 SULIN anasantnan 81.34%

MNFeueuNUIUNTEUELIUER a@mmwnaﬂLquﬁﬂﬁmﬁmﬂmimmmmmambaw 1I% 0.40 v
S o
vinduantneaw 0.15 1vin mmiemsmmmmwmmaglmmum

25.  ganHanauLnuaniavu

Eninedulunadniud 2561 ludnaviuar 0.80 v Aadudwiwdn 4800 duun wWisuiey

o

AdIWINY 28.39% veeitignslull 2561 TvaanadesnunleuIenITeliudurar0ILTEN

3. ADWAaINSOIUMSUSMSAUNSWE]

3.1, ADAMNUDIANAD

gnuiinImAdengfin 3 thow 1mamiin 4.35 dAwun wWisuisunulneuanas 22.55% wazmnaaiu

v
[

Andnfities 2.68% 109gnranIAIvNe seriouliauisnisuimdwdendiogiuizaund fnsfinaaseianssaiv

v

a [ Ve a o QJOE-JI U dl = o/ Y 6 a s i~ P =t o a ¥
Wueegelnada Ui‘]&l-ﬂl@@]\‘iﬂ?LNQ‘W‘HE\Nﬁﬁlﬁ]zﬁjt]ﬂﬂElimﬂOzlﬂ’lL@B?ﬂ%ﬂUﬂﬂ@%Lﬂ%ﬁ]?%’J%Nu 6.97 MWUIN

119



32,  fureuvdsuwarniifaeen

o Au1) ARUAAIARY 238.48 A uUN USEnAnsasasmiasasavasiuenlaaldnaideinuiinen lae
Pafennd509Asd 3.04 UL Andludasain 1.27%

3.3.  NINU
N8N W

@

i vinldladnensamuwinfifineddgitosanaounisaimenifieuaznziasegianly

-3 9 v =

Wad e egntlandmnanmneamameusnlaeTindIumAT UiEninSonfazrenenInemu
4. amwAgovlia:naoidounu

4.4, anamEnzanndlATIEaiuy

(n) la39s5198uny

U%ﬁwﬁé“mwdmm‘fﬁueﬁaﬁamaﬂﬁﬁaﬁu (Debt to Equity) 0.24 1711 anasantnan 0.03 1 uazldf
mIziudinesdns  stiamaiuaadiiuidasshmamaiuifuasigusmematiuiuunde
ynlamangifndosneunsinanouumumaarsgiafidue vinAszianusaniolunimens
maasulaelfduszanidageugiumiliiudinnnaoniumensiuldoiusivon

(1) SIuIIRDBEL

full 2562 dauvosdeduiyad 993.17 S 1uum anavaininon 24.91 Suumvidowriiiy 2.45%
Tnenfunsanasaniilagnitszand) 31.56 Sruum inaadenananuidiliiisdunnmaddswas
NAAIRNINUIIHNNANYAAIEATITH 8.47 duuIN AinaanITeIuiuHad iUl 2561 SwInlin
48.00 §%UN

(M) NILUANUEA

Tl 2562 AdudagnFanianssuALiunu 12.72 1w aaasandneudiwiu 29.42 auun
1HasnaNMIanasTBIInEATINNMIALTINNY m‘sama‘naqL%’wf:miﬁwLLazﬁwwi{muﬁmﬁlu Wy
MainduasAuAAIAds usagnsliinanAansinamuiiniu 86.17 §uum Fafnandudn
FINMINMNEERNUTIATI 210.40 S iiuaaiuAudulidBuuduisniiesdaein 2.89
UL IuaaiuanmIdmigenmIkazgUnInl 0.75 duum ﬁ‘ﬂ@hﬂL‘\“iuamha%aﬁuamu%mn
140.00 & %uN Lﬁuﬂmha%yaLﬁumnmwzanﬁlu 1225 §wum iuaaiiedoadamiuningiia
N38INHU 9.18 a1UUM Lﬁuamwsﬁyammﬂl,maqﬂmnf 409 &wunn Guandnededuninglaidsn
A 12.34 §1uum a'am‘?mmqw%i%’lﬂiuﬁﬂmm%@mLﬁuﬂﬁgaﬁyu 48.00 AUUIN H1INIUTATIEY
Tunaligiforu Wornrudusadutludddusananie o full 49.46 &mun

(1) AAE

ful) 2562 UTHNANATUIIN 24 1.08 UL aaniaNTnen 30.61 MIULIN HIINNIAARIVBINHTY
wyuden lneniduwnyudeunfogdmngidudminsfuasiiningisnduwisuienladsz aseens
fvuanaane wazlusznindilddnmagiaiuas Tvlifanudeninanuiuwressaaaenie

42, ANNARDILATANNENNNTO N ITNTEH

os Aul) 2562 Sanamanwasoariy 4.32 h isduanniiion 050 h kazdRTIEMENINATDIIN
S0rD 145 i fisduannTinen 0.15 h damuisrosiiasdnmmededdussAufigannuasiuupaleuddiagons
wigana vnuadluningan Cash Cycle aziadsagil 145 Fu fdufisduaninon 16 Fu Tasfinaxanizeznamedud
WwABflentu uazszeznadisvilndefiauss udflifinaniznudaanwadaudodile

WiasnFunindvyieniiya 651.13 duum ginniduwnyudewdudwiniv 50056 duum
N TuAI LT LA UD 9NN INDYDIFMNARDILAZANNTINTD UM TTN TN LS DENITALI Y

120



5. Jpvdlia:dndwanannowidwadowamsdidumiurdosiu:msiduluownd

INMIFARINUNRITDYAFN Vlﬁmmmmﬁ‘ﬁ'mh”mma:mmgﬁﬂmhﬂ 2563 Tzfienmmsvenesifiaeas
89N 2562 mumamasvoaniifunliamamdaiios ez wuinveaieimaihazanamasnimauniszonnes
Tialalsaesiuglva (COVID-19) ﬁwuqﬂmﬁtuﬂsumﬁLLmIﬁmmaé’ﬂﬁwﬂué’mwﬁﬁﬁmammwmﬂﬁa%’aﬂ@ﬁu Wms
anasaimIsnulpgamzlumagaavinian ansdesuiuilnefaadasaiios naldmansasifunlinldFonanss
nundeuds ndmilaHiZouflaglussdug Sudmaniznudensivhelisesvasniaudon dusunsamunaenaud
Armerzaod Mndanmslimaimmdaiogluazaum uazseAuanianaimagaavnisniogiuaziugs Tussefigania
rossedldUslsminnmasenedroimamunessiulanahoiuguewnelgnimaanianwuasiedmin ogslafos
wwrsgialnedinanigiaiadennszaomaanassgialan Aiennenaliuiuewssmleusnmdsrnhaszmnaeg
angewin wazmeulfanlzinagén anudsiunfisgeaanilasmmnzanudauaeridnhuiuamigewsn nms
Userhefidadalugons nanandtdaiiasedesdn 9 melulsimnadnranedsznns o1 anulaiusivaunenades Tnemamns
oe9BIMINAIEAE TN TR TGN AEAN TR RID N AU AN I ITiwIBIM AR T e ULz MAGIY
Iﬂamwwzm\juﬁﬁmi:wfﬁmzﬁuqa maasnulassnunalulad (Technology Disruption) Lmzmmﬂﬁuﬁﬁfui’mimwNEuLLN
NN

09131 Uismazdiiuismadheanaliszam Tasdiliieadaanadedunmlsznangsfieeesondm uivs
p9RNIRENITERTE TIREMInTEaeNANnSa N S s Sufl o anunsniie 9 flazified AamATZAUeng 9
oeeaziBensounauMenNvana MyvuauEuaninTasTuR AN Iinsdha e Bamanmsmiuguaiamsfia sjeds
WannhisseAuduazuimilinniuanadaimmosuilnaiasiuenafmelaaziinanadssilagege wiumdams
HANNIZUUETENA U 9 Wi ashan I umssaaula LLazLLf’ﬂﬁnﬁz:ymVLé’aEhGﬁumammfLﬁ'wuﬁnwmzﬁwmﬁﬂﬁmw
yossinouliivimsnuldodsfioodnsinawssmanaouifiie liAsndshauasndaaiezinluganudiiaim
AuaenidiBunaonald

121



[nsun1s CSR
‘ARG VIaIAU.. WIUURAIIKIADINY

faedeiinanfa 1 T 100 Fdau win 100 YR AmMoTIN
sasyanagnInfiesd asfes lvalaun fuzauanudiia
& o Yot taoih w a v o
nalueumsladin waznsnasnainegiia idunda auag

D Vo ot ' - 1 ' v
G G wniuduldlnaifivesnouudunds Wiulaothoming wiTam
, - LIAINTHEY  wazHBRBNDANNABENIENY IR AAUTUNGY
e "
uauns:=annUsen v:luikuo:ls nsduingina leedanansIsnAvnauasmInauunusas
uanNIINAUIDY AURIKUINED Fedusmwineiuisniueaiasnnauiysdanu wiaufusn
' ' e f v & ) e wr

A o SN, LAZFDEDAMNIAWITNOL BBINUENDR wievnadiex TraTamn
UIAUTaEdU ARDuIFIAUIDY o y il il e
ATLTINNANNINTN §1930aUNNIuE 46 T uwiimstueden

= L o Y " al = X
ginlvauwniegefilszindawees unaladd Limeaziae

IljouAuRUauIFnS=aNaUUsoN
5 [ E oty il E
BulUUUL=IRUEIOUUDNYIN mausluRefidAuna U gaoan

AUIBYINIUU 9 9 Tamam3 CSR Aslansmifiviasanainawdunmndayos
s ar B geroy B e ' ar
29An3 WumuATuiamLisny 6 lasimatoameldlassnimvan

PBINUNIIUNNAY

The CSR Project
“Pass on Happiness to the Society
through Beauty Dimension”

The above quote is from the 100 Philosophical

Thoughts written by Dr. Thiam Chokwattana, who was the .
respectful person with great success of both living life and “Look at the mirror to
sustain business operation. It can be compared as a big its quioks”ver you’” see
tree taking root strongly, having graceful growth, spreading :
its shade of cool with the rich blossom of flowers and fruts nothlmg but yourself.
for the next generations. Therefore, to operate business with Selfish persons who care for
corporate governance and return to the society is the model no one but themselves,
for the companies of SAHA Group adhere it to continue S
their business operation following the intension of Dr. Thaim Is likely those who look
Chokwattana, who we all give him our respect until now. at the mirror coating
During 46 years of business running. O.C.C. PLC has never with quic ksilver
stopped sharing and retuming good things to the society. ; :

- 2 = Y v they will see nothing

“CSR Project” | ded from the chari
The “CSR Project” is expanded from e but only themselves.”

activity since the established date of the Company. The 6
minor projects remain drive effectively through happiness
working of all staffs.
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“Beautify the Hair with Love” Project

“Beautify the Hair with Love” ProjectEvery year the Company’s CSR working team has an obvious plan for “Beautify
the Hair with Love™ Project by giving happiness with the haircut to the disadvantaged groups, social volunteers and the
patients. In 2019, we emphasized on the group of patients who were unable to take care themselves such as wheel chair
patients, bedridden patients and those who have long stay in ICU. We have collaborated with many government hospitals
to ask for their cooperation to work on this project to meet with success as per its objective. We realize that to do the
haircut for the above mentioned groups are not easy because we need permission from the medical doctors and must
have professional nurses to look after them closely inclusive of expert skill of our hairdressers, who have their intention to
convey them happiness, freshness and comfort. Due to the good cooperation from the hospitals that had collaborated with
the team, this project could have met with satisfied success. In 2019, there were about 300 patients from government
hospitals comprising of Klang Hospital, Somdejphraphutthaloetla Hospital, Nakhonpathom Haspital, Pranangklao Hospital
ete. If we count the numbers of the haircut for disadvantaged persons from 2011 to 2019, there were about 6,000
participants in this project.
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We believe that when we plant a seed, it can grow up to be a strong free if it has been taken
care in a correct way. It is as same as the development of the persons and career if they have an
opporfunity to improve skill and knowledge, they can grow up to be qualified persons for the
society "Seeding Beauty, Starting a Career” Project has created the new wave of persons, careers
andincomes. We increased the level of sustain living for those who are interested in beauty career.
The Company has provided the beauty professional team to conduct basic makeup training
courses for the students of polytechnic colleges and the leading beauty academies throughout
Thailand. There were about 5,000 persons who interested and had attended our makeup courses.
In 2019, there were about 10 colleges participated in this project which comprised of Suratthani
Polytechnic College, Phuket Polytechnic College, Chumphon Polytechnic College, Trat Polytechnic
College, Bangkok Polytechnic College, Pattani Polytechnic College, Ratchaburi Polytechnic
College, Rayong Polytechnic College, Ubon Ratchathani Polytechnic College, Peftchaboon
Polytechnic College, Jantaburi Polytechnic College, etc. We are proud to be a part of social
compensation by giving knowledge, job and to develop beauty profession to be stable for
inheriting to the next generation.
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“Enhancing Beauty, Filling up
Happiness to the Society” Project

During the past years the Company has created the qualiied Makeup Artist Team to work in the
entertainment industry for a long period. They provided makeup to all artists, actors, actress and all persons who
worked in troops shot drama, movie unit, news report and variety show, etc. In addition, we were the part of beauty
creation for the charity activities such as fashion show, concert, stage play, charity event for raising fund to help
people and the society. Our makeup artist team lighted up beauty to everyone with their determination and no
payment.In 2019 we have provided makeup for about 30 events which comprised “"The Sukosol Family The Music
& The Show" which was held for raising funds for Princess Sirindhorn Craniofacial Center King Chulalongkorn
Memorial Hospital of The Thai Red Cross Society, fo help patients who have craniofacial problem; The 24th 1001
Nights Charity Event which was held by the Thai Muslim Housewife Foundation to raise fund for being the
educational scholarship to provide all disadvantaged children of all nationalities and religion starting from
primary school fill university and also to raise fund for King Rama Ill Commemorative Foundation Under The
Patronage Of Her Royal Highness Princess Galyani Vabhana Krom Luang Naradhiwas Rajanagarin, etc It was 46
years that the Company has supported and participated in every charity event that needed our makeup artist
team to light up the beauty for conveying happiness, warmth and goodwill to be returned to the Thai society.
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“Inherit Palangpracharat,
Develop Knowledge to Move on
the Career Path” Project

This CSR project has been carried on for 2 year
continuity following to the strategic plan of
government sectors which required fo drive Thailand
for having the sustainable development. The project
“Inherit Palangpracharat, Develop Knowledge to
Move on the Career Path”™ was aimed to pass on
knowledge fo the young generation, general people
and all disadvantaged persons in the society fo have
an opportunity to get a better life quality and be able
to develop themselves to move on the career path. We
gave the advice how to treat their skin correctly and
instructed them to apply makeup to be appropriated
with place and time as well as to improve their
personality to move on the career path for the
students who have qualification. We also support the
general people and all disadvantaged persons who
are interested in makeup career but no have financial
problem as well as female prisoners to have
knowledge of basic makeup and can further develop
their career in the future. In 2019 there were about
1,200 attendances from Kasetsart University, Siam
University, Ayuttaya Provincial Prison, Samutsakorn
Provincial Prison, Pathum Thani Provincial Prison and

Samutprakarn Provincial Prison.
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“Consuming and Giving
with Creativity for Us
and the World” Project
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Today, environment is admired as a serious problem which draws attention on everyone in the world fo have
collaboration fo solve it. AS a trader the Company has never ignored any problem that may affect to our
consumers, sociefy and the country. The Company and all members in OCC Group operate the business by placing
importance on human rights, labor standard and environment as well as the anti of all kind corruption. We move
further to develop the high quality and safety products which are harmonized with modern life style for
distributing fo all of our consumer’s groups. Our OCC Group distribufes cosmetic products, hair care products,
supplementary foods and apparels. About 8,000 items of our products are available in the market. All products of
O.C.C. PLC remain having trust form the consumers as always. The packaging of some cosmetic collections are
made of glasses and papers which they are friendly fo the environment_In apparel category, we have selected the
natural fiber for having the fabrics that help reducing heat, absorbing sweat with comfortable wearing and long
lasting usage. We also distribute hair care and hair styling products which are the extract from natural plants for
being alternative choice for new generation. We distribute high quality supplementary foods fo improve the
better living quality of consumers_ All these represent the responsibility of OCC Group toward the society during
the 46 years of business operation.
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“The Beauty of Sharing Charity” Project

The unity in the organization is a posifive power that helps driving the work of employees to move forward
strongly. To work as a family which has been forwarded from generation to generation, this OCC home can
maintain happiness and warmth as always. This happiness and warmth can be forwarded to the society through
“Birth Month Love Sharing™ activity which has been held since the establishment of this CSR Project. This activity
allows all employees form all levels of the organization to celebrate their birth day by passing on happiness to
disadvantaged persons who stay in foster homes. These employees will visit the disadvantaged persons which are
children, elderly persons and patients for having the lunch meal including money donation and stuffs donation as
affordable. Though this was not a big event form a small group of people, happiness and warmth are so huge
from both the givers and takers during the past years.
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VISION

0.C.C. is moving forward strongly

by creating products with a difference and best quality.

We strive to return the loyalty of our customers, employees,
trading partners, shareholders,

and Thai society by providing products & services

which create beauty, happiness and complete satisfaction.

o O.C.C. Values

B = Boundaryless

E = Ethics and Integrity

A = Adaptability to Change

U = Unity

T = Talent

Y = You are Our Valued Customer
BEAUTY from within
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Message from the Board of Directors

The Company is committed to conducting business with honesty, respecting to stakeholders’ rights,
responsibility towards society, community and the environment, including respect to the legal rights of all related parties.
The Company has modified the operating strategies and the adjustment to accommodate the uncertainty factors of
various situations, whether in natural disasters, politic or slowdown of the economy, both domestic and foreign. The
Company keeps maintaining a steady financial position coupled with continuous expansion.

In 2019, the Company had total revenues of 1,139,132,532 Baht and profit of 31,559,805 Baht. The
volatility of the Thai economy and political has affected the overall economic sectors and the Company as well. In
comparison to 2018, the Company’s revenue is decreased. In 2018, the Company had increased revenue from disposals
of assets held for sale amount 159,996,703 Baht, revenue decreased by 22.56% and profit decreased by 81.34%
However, the Board of Directors strives to developing the organization to have sustainability in all aspects, abiding by the
risk factors for business operation with carefulness and strengthen the ability of marketing competitiveness to increase
further, as well as to place importance on employees’ development to strengthen their operational potential in conjunction
with the development of Information Technology. In 2019, the Company has changed the system of ERP or Enterprise
Resource Planning from the SAP Version 4.7 to SAP S/4 HANA for enhancing the agility of working system. Data
processing is rapidly with less complication and is more flexible to work. It can response the Company’s need in various
aspects, which the Company can assess the benefit form the working system as a guideline to develop business for being
the strength organization that achieves with success and goal of the Company.

The Company has a policy against all forms of corruption. A call or accept a bribe is considered guilty though
it's for one’s own benefit or for the others. The Company has been recertified as member of Collective Action Coalition
Against Corruption (CAC) by the consideration of the Private Sector Collective Action Coalition Against Corruption Council
of the 3/2562 quarter on November 4, 2019, and the Company continued to monitor and supervise the corruption risk
prevention, as well as to follow up the practice evaluation in compliance with anti-corruption policy.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, we wish to thank all shareholders, customers, business partners,
employees and stakeholders for the great supports throughout these years. The Company’s Board of Directors strives to
operate business in compliance with the principles of good corporate governance for the maximum benefit to all related
parties.

7@* Toeserda A

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Ms. Teerada Ambhanwong
Chairman Managing Director & CEO
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The Audit Committee Report

To Shareholders,

The Audit Committee of O.C.C. Public Company Limited comprising 3 independent directors with  complete
qualification as announced by the Stock Exchange of Thailand and required by the criteria  of the Office of Securities
and Exchange Commission. Mrs. Watchanee Watanathawanwong is Chairman of the Committee. Mr. Wanchai Umpungart
and Mr. Knit Kounavudhi are the committee members. The Audit Committee has duty and responsibility complying with its
charter and undertaking other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors as well as to report the minutes of the Audit
Committee Meeting to the Board of Directors as a regular agenda. The Company Secretary is the secretary of the Audit
Committee.

During 2019, the Audit Committee held 12 meetings upon consultations with the management as necessary
and joined 7 meetings with the Board of Directors The Committee’s main activities in 2018 are summarized as follows:

1. Review of Financial Statements

Reviewed the Quarterly Financial Statements and Annual Financial Statements. Supervised the financial
statements to be in conformity with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) and was sufficiently disclosed in such
statements. The Company’s auditors were invited to attend the meeting on a quarterly basis to acknowledge information,
notice and recommendations concerning the results of the review and audit of financial statements. The Company’s
auditors has performed duty and expressed opinion independently. Additional, the Audit Committee had considered the
Company’s performance by holding a monthly meeting with the financial and accounting executives and internal auditors
to acknowledge the report and considered the explanations from the executives.

The Audit Committee has commented that the Financial Statements of the Company is accurate, adequate and
trustworthy. Also, in place work practices aligning with the Generally Accepted Accounting Standards and Thai Financial
Reporting Standard.

2. Internal Control and Internal Audit System

Supervised the Company to have adequate and effective internal control system. Reviewed the anti-corruption
practice to manage the risks across an organization, by considering the reports of internal auditor unit, the risk management
committee, the Company’s auditors and the adequacy of the internal control system based on the Security Exchange
Commission (SEC)’s evaluation form prepared by the Board of Directors and reviewed by the Audit Committee. The executives
reviewed the result of audit and monitored the amendment of defect internal control systems as well as to develop an effective
performance of the audit. The internal audit unit reported the results directly to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee
considered the agreement of annual audit plans, budget and personnel of internal audit unit, including the evaluation and
supervision of the chief of internal audit to have knowledge and experience that is sufficient for operating the duty.

The Audit Committee has commented that the Company has adequate internal control, related to its businesses
condition.

3. Risk Management

Supervised the continuity development of the risk management systems in compliance with the COSO ERM
framework. Various types of risk were evaluated over an entire organization, especially the risks of corruption and
communication with the Risk Management Committee to understand significant risks relevant to the internal control.

The Audit Committee has commented that the Company has adequate risk management by having
evaluation and risk management to comply with the risks that was accepted by the Company.
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4. Related Transactions or Potential Conflict of Interest

Reviewed the related transactions or potential conflict of interest. Agreed and jointly considered approvals of the
related transactions to be complied with the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Capital Market Supervisory
Board.

The Audit Committee has commented that various ordinary business transactions of the Company were in
compliance with the Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

5. Acquisition and Disposition of Assets

Reviewed and considered approval of the acquisition and disposition of assets to be complied with the
Notification of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

The Audit Committee has commented that various ordinary business transactions of the Company were
transparent, equitable and gave maximum benefit to the Company, including adequate and accurate disclosure of
information.

6. Supervised the Company to practice in compliance with the laws, regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission Thailand, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the policy of anti-corruption practices.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the practice in compliance with the laws, anti-corruption policy and no
action was found to violate the laws, rules and regulations of government sectors, including the anti-corruption policy of
the Company.

7. Reviewed Self-Evaluation Tool for Countering Bribery of the Company for Collective Action Coalition Against
Corruption (CACRecertification).

8. Appointment of Auditor and Approval of Audit Fee

The Audit Committee considered the independence and qualification of the Company’s auditor and proposed
to the Board of Directors. Then, the Board of Directors proposed to the shareholders’ meeting to approve Mrs. Suvimaol
Krittayakiern, CPA No. 2982 and/or Ms. Suphaphorn Mangjit CPA No. 8125 and/or Mr. Nopparoek Pissanuwong CPA No.
7764 of the Office of D | A International Ltd. to be the Company’s auditors in 2019 as the 4" year.

9. Review of the Charter of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee assessed performance as assigned in compliance with the Charter by utilizing knowledge,
competency, caution and sufficient independence with none limitation to receive information and cooperation from the
Company, to assess performance as assigned by the Board of Director with effectiveness. The Audit Committee found
no defect or significant strangeness.

\.? o
(Mrs. Watchanee Watanathawanwong)
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Risk Management Committee Report

The Risk Management Committee of O.C.C. Public company Limited consists of 6 senior executives by having
the Managing Director and CEO be the Chairman and the Chairman of Audit Committee also joins the committee, then
total numbers of the committee are 7. In 2018, the meetings were held monthly for supporting the operation of the
Board of Directors and Executive Committee in regards to the risk assessment and to define protective measurement, to
manage the risk and follow up the operation results constantly. Important duties are summarized as follows:

1. To review and supervise the Company’s risk management by considering important risk factors that
may affect to the Company to achieve the goals by arranging the meetings that corporate with relevant departments
for monitoring the risk management’s result of other working units as well as to support and encourage to improve
the development of the Company’s risk management system continuously, in order to manage the important risk to
be in acceptable level.

2. To provide opinions and suggestions for the development of the Company’s risk management to have
more effectiveness.

3. To consider the risk of investment in the type of establishment by focusing on operation guidelines
to gain more effectiveness that contains of lease renewal of establishment, modification of the contract’s types of
establishment and to monitor the performance result of each Company’s branch for considering the risk likelihood that
may affect to the business operation.

4. To define the risk management to be a part of routine job. Employees from all levels and all units are
participate in the risk likelihood and affect to the business operation of the organization in order to have a good
working process for getting the result of development and risk management’s operation to be in the same direction.

5. To consider the risk following to the anti-corruption measures and this includes the design of other
operating process for considering the appropriation and sufficiency towards corruption likelihood, in order to allow the
operation to be complied with the Company’s policy and anti-corruption measures.

The Risk Management Committee is assured that the Company has continuous risk management with efficiency
in conformance to our good corporate governance including of sufficient and appropriate internal control system. There
is a practice along with the laws and regulations that concern to business operation accurately and completely in order
to build up the strength and readiness for all around which is forward and sustainable.

Teorrds A\

(Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong)
Chairman of Risk Management Committee
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Remuneration Committee Report

The Company’s Board of Directors has appointed the Remuneration Committee to have the rights and duties
as specified in the charter of the Remuneration Committee. The Committee comprised of 3 members as follows:

1. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana Chairman
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Member
3. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Member

The Remuneration Committee has performed its duties as assigned by the Board of Directors, which is
specified in the charter the Remuneration Committee. The committee has duties to determine remuneration to the
Company’s directors, other various committees and top management at the appropriate level, and to create incentive to
obtain work efficiency as well as retain to knowledgeable and capable persons to work with the Company and propose
to the Board of Directors’ Meeting.

In 2019, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings to determine the remuneration policy and criteria as
appropriated for the Company’s directors by comparison with the other companies in having similar business features and
similar business sizes that get along with the competence and the Company’s turnover. The consideration is based on
the authority, assigned responsibility, and operating results, as well as growth and the Company’s performance, business
liquidity and factors which may affect the company or overall economic situation. The methods are in accordance with the
Charter and related regulations.

The Remuneration Committee reviews of annual charter of the remuneration committee, for being able to work
effectively with clear scope of responsibility. The remuneration of the Company’s directors, other various committees
and the management has been disclosed in this Annual Report and Annual Registration Statements (Form 56-2 and
Form 56-1) of which the Remuneration Committee has considered it's appropriate for their duties and responsibilities in
accordance with the Company’s policy.

=~y

o

Mr.Manu Leelanuwatana
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
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Nomination Committee Report

The Company’s Board of Directors has appointed the Nomination Committee to have the rights and
duties as specified in the charter of the Nomination Committee. The Committee comprised of 3 members as
follows:

1. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Chairman
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Member
3. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana Member

The Nomination Committee has carried out the duties as assigned by the Board of Directors which is specified in
the charter of the nomination committee. Its duties are to select suitable candidates with proper qualifications, knowledge and
expertise in various professions, to serve as the Company’s directors and top management.

The Nomination Committee has determined the criteria and methods for nominating which conform  to the charter
and the good corporate governance principles including related regulations by considering appropriation that gives benefit to
the Company’s operation, qualifications, knowledge, competence and diverse expertise of nominating persons that are in
accordance with the strategy of the company’s business operation which include skill analysis, experience, knowledge and
directorial expertise (Board Skill Matrix). Moreover, the nominated persons must be the person with leadership, vision, morality,
ethics, and transparent work experience as the Company’s directors and the members of sub-committee as well as to have
ability to express opinion freely and no characteristics as forbidden by laws and the Articles of Association of the Company.
The Company has provided opportunity for minor shareholders to participate in nominating candidates to be appointed as the
Company’s directors prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In 2019, none of the shareholders nominated any
candidates to be considered as the Company directors.

In 2019, The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings to carry out duties as assigned. The Nomination Committee,
considered the qualifications of 3 persons who had been nominated to serve as the Company’s directors replacing the
directors who retired by rotation at the 25th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, which were Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong,
Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana and Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art. The Committee agreed to add 1 more director by nominating
Mr.Thitipoom Chokwatana to be elected as the Company’s directors also at the 25th Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
in 2019.

Moreover, the Charter of the Nomination Committee is also reviewed annually to comply with the related practice
guidelines, while the Nomination Committee has performed its duties as assigned discreetly and reasonably

Teorrds A\

(Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong)
Chairman of the Nomination Committe
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Corporate Governance Committee Report

The Company’s Board of Directors has appointed the Corporate Governance Committee to have the rights
and duties as specified in the Charter of the Governance Committee. The Committee comprised of 3 members as

follows.
1. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Chairman
2. Mr. Knit Kounavudhi Member
3. Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Member

The Corporate Governance Committee discharged its duties and responsibiliies as assigned by the Company’s
Board of Directors and specified in the Charter of the Corporate Governance Committee. The Committee is responsible for
overseeing that the Company’s business operations are in full compliance with the principles of good corporate governance
and that its management practices are transparent with full disclosures and accountability together with equitable treatment
for all stakeholder groups, as well as for ensuring the Company’s continued growth on a sustainable basis.

During 2019, the Corporate Governance Committee held a total of 2 meetings which summarized as follows:

(1) Reviewed the Charter for the Corporate Governance Committee for appropriate and relevant to the good
corporate governance principles and the current situation.

(2) Supervised and monitored the revision of the good corporate governance of the Company with “Good
Corporate Governance Principles of the Company Code for listed companies in 2012”, according to the
announcement of The Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET) and to revise it to “Good Corporate Governance
Principles (2nd Revision Version)” to ensure the compliance with Corporate Governance Code for listed
companies 2017.

(3) Reviewed the Anti - Corruption Policy of the Company. Agreed with rule of practices that are related to anti-
corruption and monitored the practices of everyone in the Company to comply with the Anti - Corruption
Policy continuously as its good corporate governance and corporate culture to not accept any forms of
corruption and to operate business with transparency.

(4) Reviewed the Self-Evaluation Tool for Countering Bribery of the Company for CAC Recertification.

The Corporate Governance Committee is confident that the Company has conducted its business operation
in accordance with the good corporate governance principles and committed to further developing good corporate
governance practices, which is a key factor to support business operation together with promoting trustworthy from the
stakeholders as a basis for sustainable growth of the Company.

=

Mrs.Kanchana Saisiriporn
Chairman of the Corporate Governance
Committee
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1. General Information

Company Information

Company Name
Head Office Address

Type of Business
Registered No.

Type of Shares

Telephone
Facsimile
Website

1. Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.

Head Office Address

Type of Business
Type of Shares

Telephone
Facsimile
% Holding

O.C.C. Public Company Limited

729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Rd., Bangpongpang Yannawa,
Bangkok 10120

Distributing cosmetics, clothes, musical instruments and
rendering of beauty services

0107537001323

Common stock 80,000,000 shares at 1 Baht par value. Issued
and paid-up share capital amount 60,000,000 common stocks
at Baht 1 each

(662) 2954545, (662) 2954567

(662) 2950411

Www.0cc.co.th

1.2 The Company invested in the following companies by holding 10% or more of shares:

729/23-25 Radchadapisek Rd., Bangpongpang,
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120

Distributing beauty products

Common stock 10,000 shares at 100 Baht par value and
paid up capital amount 1.00MB.

(662) 6839620

(662) 2954763

15.00%

. Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Head Office Address

Type of Business
Type of Shares

Telephone
Facsimile
% Holding

. Zen Salon Business Co., Ltd
Head Office Address

Type of Business
Type of Shares
Telephone

Facsimile
% Holding

2 Soi Sukumvit 23 (Prasanmit) Sukumvit Rd., North Klongtoey,
Wattana, Bangkok 10110

Distributing cosmetics, Salon & Spa

Common stock 7,000,000 shares at 10 Baht par value and
paid up capital amount 70.00MB.

(662) 2617321-2

(662) 2617323

16.00%

729/4-7 3th Fr. OCC Building Radchadaphisek Rd.,
Bangpongpang Yannawa, Bangkok 10120.

Consisting of beauty Salon, hair styling salon and cosmetics
& hair care products distributor.

Common stock 2,000,000 shares at 10 Baht par value and
paid up capital amount 20.00MB.

(662) 2954545 Ext. 511

(662) 2950415

11.00%
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1.3 Other References:

1.

2.

3.

4,

Register of Common Stocks

Auditor

Legal Advisor

Investor Relations

Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.
93,14" Floors. Ratchadapisek Road,
Din Daeng, Bangkok 10400
Telephone (662) 00996910-1

Mrs. Suvimol Chrityakierne or Miss Suphaphorn Mangjit or
Mr. Nopparoek Pitsanuwong

D | A International Audit Co.,LTD.

316/32 Sukhumvit Soi 22 Sukhumvit Rd.,

Klongtoey Babgkok Thailand 10110.

Telephone (662) 2595300

Facsimile (662) 2601553

Mr. Vira Ua-arak

Vira Law Office Office Co., Ltd.

548/14-15 Sathupradit Rd. Junction 18, Bangpongpang,
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120.

Telephone (662) 683-8023

Facsimile (662) 683-8843

Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkran

Executive Director of Accounting - Financial Division
O.C.C. Public Company Limited

729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Rd., Bangpongpang
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120.

Telephone (662) 295-4545 Ext.508

Facsimile (662) 295-0415



2. Policy and Overview of Business Operation

Financial Information

(Unit 1 : Bht1000)

Year 2019 Year 2018 Year 2017
Revenue from sale and services 1,127,294 100.00% 1,274,768 100.00% 1,359,385 100.00%
Less Cost of Goods Sold 591,010 52.43% 641,289 50.31% 695,422 51.16%
Gross Profit 536,284 47.57% 633,479 49.69% 663,963 48.84%
Less Selling & Administration Expenses 509,297 45.18% 618,641 48.53% 630,195 46.36%
Operating Profit 26,987 2.39% 14,838 1.16% 33,768 2.48%
Add Other Income 11,838 1.05% 196,125 15.39% 45,325 3.33%
Profit before Interest and Income Tax 38,825 3.44% 210,963 16.55% 79,093 5.82%
Less Interest Expenses 0 283 0.02% 486 0.04%
Profit before Income Tax 38,825 3.44% 210,680 15.53% 78,607 5.78%
Less Income Tax 7,265 0.64% 41,585 3.26% 15,359 1.13%
Net Earnings 31,560 2.80% 169,095 13.26% 63,248 4.65%
Total Income 1,139,132 100.00% 1,470,893 100.00% 1,404,710 100.00%
Total Expenses 1,100,307 96.59% 1,260,213 85.68% 1,326,103 94.40%
Profit before Income Tax 38,825 3.41% 210,680 14.32% 78,607 5.60%
Less Income Tax 7,265 0.64% 41,585 2.83% 15,359 1.09%
Net Earnings 31,560 2.77% 169,095 11.50% 63,248 4.50%
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Financial Ratios

Year 2019 Year 2018 Year 2017
LIQUIDITY RATI
Current Ratio 4.32 Times 3.83 Times 2.39 Times
Quick Ratio 1.45 Times 1.30 Times 0.88 Times
Cash Flow Liquidity Ratio 0.08 Times 0.17 Times 0.45 Times
Account Receivable Turnover 6.26 Times 6.07 Times 6.16 Times
Collection Period 57 Days 59 Days 58 Days
Inventory Turnover 2.52 Times 2.75 Times 2.77 Times
Inventory Coverage 143 Days 131 Days 130 Days
Account Payable Turnover 6.57 Times 5.87 Times 5.54 Times
Payable Period 55 Days 61 Days 65 Days
Cash Cycle 145 Days 129 Days 123 Days
PROFITABILITY RATIO
Gross Profit 4757 % 49.69 % 48.84 %
Operating Profit 2.39 % 116 % 248 %
Other Income 1.04 % 13.33 % 323 %
Cash against Operating Profit 4714 % 283.99 % 339.56 %
Net Earnings 277 % 1150 % 450 %
Return on Equity 3.14 9% 17.72 % 7.31 %
EFFICIENCY RATIO
Return on Assets 250 % 13.16 % 5.22 %
Return on Fixed Assets 12.35 % 49.24 % 2753 %
Assets Turnover 0.90 Times 1.14 Times 1.16 Times
FINANCIAL RATI
Debt to Equity 0.24 Times 0.27 Times 0.44 Times
Interest Coverage - 744.87 Times 162.87 Times
Debt Coverage (Cash Basis) 1.08 Times 1.37 Times 0.86 Times
Dividend Ratio 28.39 % 61.66 %
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Executive Summary

The operation of O.C.C. Public Company Limited has been continuously prosperity and stepped firmly into the 46th
anniversary. The main business is the distribution of high-quality cosmetics and women’s wear under the leading brand names
that are well-known and receive widespread popularity. The products are sold through various trading networks covering
almost all of sales channels over the country. Examples of the Company’s outstanding products are “Covermark” cosmetics,
“Shiseido Professional” hair care products, “Guy Laroche” lady underwear, nightwear, sport wear and swimwear.

Thailand’s economic overview in past year had a slow growth compared to the previous year. Because we
encountered with the risk factors from the shrinkage of the external demand and the slowdown of demand in the country.
Export sector decreased gradually due to the Trade Protectionist Measure and Trade War between the United States and
China, which has a broad impact on the economy of the trade partners. The tourism sector extended the slowdown. While
the domestic demand is still weak, there is a weighted factor from the nonrecovering labor market. Including agricultural
household income, which stayed in low levels but debt was in high level. The overall purchase was not strong enough.
Spending inside the country was distress. As a result, the government has to establish the measure to stimulus economy for
a period of time, which can only support it. The investment of private sectors remained in low level. For spending, government
sectors helped to stimulate economy, especially the investment for developing of rail transport infrastructure though some
projects remained have delays.

According to the economic condition that has not yet thoroughly been recovered and was fragile, the consumers
remained have the existed burden of household liability in a high level which  brought to decelerate the expenses by buying
only essential products and consumed with limited quantity. This affected to the operation of every business sector more or
less. In 2019, the Company  gained total sales at 1,127.29 Milion Baht, decreased by 11.57% from prior year. Profit before
extraordinary items and corporate income tax amount of 38.83 Milion Baht, decreased by 11.85 Milion Baht or 23.40%
and when combining extraordinary items, which is profit from selling of land amount of 160.00 Milion Baht in 2019, profit
before corporate income tax decreased by 171.85 Milion Baht or 81.57%. After deducting corporate income tax, net profit
was 31.56 Milion Baht, decreased by 81.34% when compared to prior year.

The current financial structure of the Company is strong level continuously for many years by having the several
indicators of the significant financial ratio which are able to reflect the good liquidity; for example this year, the Company has
the net revolving fund at 500.56 Milion Baht, the liquidity ratio equaled to 4.32 times while the Debt to Equity Ratio is in the
low level at only 0.24 times.

The performance of previous year came from the dedication and effort of the employees from all levels who are
not discouraged from the problems and obstacles. They all have determination to develop the products and services in order
to response continuously to the customers’ satisfaction. The Company has careful management and plan to handle with the
situation that may change rapidly. The Company has committed in good corporate governance under the principle of good
governance as well as to develop the business to have sustainable growth for the maximum benefit of all related stakeholders.
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3. Business Operation
3.1 Overview of Business Operation

O.C.C. Public Company Limited was established since 1973 with its first name “O’Leary Covermark
Center Company Limited”. The Company distributed O’Leary Covermark cosmetics by opening the beauty centers
to consult the customers about the products. Later on, its distribution channels were expanded to the department
stores and beauty salons throughout Thailand by implementing after-sales service strategy to impress customers.
The Company established sales promotion team available at each distribution unit for demonstrating the products’
application, service and recommended how to choose the right products. All these ensured confidence to the
customers with good response, which affected to the reputation of the brand “Covermark” cosmetics to be widely
well known and leaded the Company to continuously achieve with progressive success until present day.

The Company has been granted approval to be the listed company by the Stock Exchange of Thailand
since 1994 and transformed to “Public Company Limited”. The Company expanded the distribution  with various
categories of product that are divided as follows:

Cosmetics: comprises cosmetics for face and body, hair care products, makeup accessories
Women’s Wears: comprises women lingerie, nightwear, sport wear, swim wear and casual wear

The main target group of the Company’s majority customers are women of working age, who enjoy the
taste of good quality products and care of services, for enhancing their beauty and confident personality. They realize
of taking care of the skin, physical and mental health as well as happiness enhancement of happiness for themselves
and close persons.

The Company’s core business is the distribution of the products in the territory by caring of trading
ethics and the risk management principles. The Company’s management is systematic, transparent and auditable, in
compliance with good corporate governance. The Company strives to move ahead of achieving business excellence
by placing importance on human resources in the organization. All employees are encouraged to work with happiness
in a friendly environment and contribute to have creativity that will support them to have an opportunity to learn and
develop themselves for utilizing their existing capability at full performance.

3.2 Revenue Structure

Product 2019 Ratio 2018 Ratio 2017 Ratio
Cosmetics 1,001,607 88.85% 1,112,684 87.29% 1,182,492 86.99%
Women’s Wears 125,686 11.15% 160,549 12.59% 174,581 12.84%
Others 1 0.00% 1,535 0.12% 2,312 0.17%

Total 1,127,294 100.00% 1,274,768 100.00% 1,359,385 100.00%

3.3 Products and Marketing
(1) Cosmetics
(1.1) Type of Products or Services

The Company is the sole distributor of high quality cosmetics under international licensed brands and
local brands comprising Covermark, Paul & Joe, KMA, Sungrace, Shiseido Professional, BSC Hair Care including
Easy Cut which is haircut service business. Each product responses to all-level consumers’ demand and covers over
all distributing channels which consist department stores, beauty centers, beauty salons and modern trades whether
in Bangkok and in the provinces. The Company’s sales staffs who are  well trained for the products’ information,
sales technique and professional service, will give advice, products’” demonstration and best service to all customers
with their intention.
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(1.2) Marketing and Competition

In the past year, the growth of Thai economy was obviously decreased causing by the uncertainty from
external and internal factors. The export sectors tipped to shrink causing by the impact of trade war. The expansion of
tourism sectors were slowed down. Thai economy was tended to slow down due to the consumption of private sector
remained not recovered, while investment and expense of government sectors were slowed down. The purchasing power
was weak because the household debt remained stay in high level.

Though the recovery of Thai economy was not spread thoroughly over all sectors, the business of cos-
metics distribution was tended to grow up continuously every year. It's because of the behavior of consumers which pay
more attention on personality and care of having beautiful and healthy skin, thus this was highly competitive market. Many
new entrepreneurs have joined in this business competition both Thai brands and imported brands.

However, the Company was not refrained under this circumstance and kept on creating the advanced
products through beauty innovation for offering the merchandises with outstanding features, are modern with high stan-
dard quality and are worth for consumers. Numbers of sales counters were increased in the new branch of department
stores, together with the increase of marketing activities to support the sales throughout Bangkok and in the provinces
in order to activate consumers to interest in the quality of products and to have confidence in purchasing as well as to
emphasize on giving an excellent service to customers, for up level satisfaction and maximum impression.

COVERMARK is the major brand of the cosmetic group of the Company. The features of precious ingre-
dients are developed. Variety of products are created to response the demand of today women. More cosmetic brands
are admired by the Young Generation Consumers from the result of online communication, which the brands place
importance as priority. Influencers are implemented to make contents to publicize on different platforms such as Blog,
Instagram, Facebook, You Tube, thus they are popular among different age of consumer groups. In late 2019, the Com-
pany has launched new lipsticks “Covermark Bright Up Rouge” which is produced from the research and development in
Japan under the concept “bright up the shiny face, convenient and prompt finish in just 1 lipsticks” and it's in trend with
current makeup trend. Covermark brand remains keep its production standard and has ability to compete with cosmetic
market.

KMA cosmetic is the Company’s trademark brand which is developed and created the new collections
continuously. In 2019, the Company has launched the new products and tools for eyebrows makeup as professional
“ITS BROW TIME CREATION” with Smudge Proof formula that is water and sweat resistance, smooth texture. Ladies
can create their beautiful eyebrows as professional from this collection, which is responsive to the trend of target Young
Gen group and young working women. Sales promotion activities are conducted all over Thailand and sales channels are
expanded to many areas, including online channels which receive good feedback. In addition, advertisement and public
relation via multimedia such as printing media and online media. Workshop activities are conducted with external organi-
zations regularly to create brand awareness to target groups and have potential to test the products.

Paul & Joe is the new cosmetic brand of the Company. It's a renowned designer’s brand from France.
The products’ main ingredients have been well selected from natural substances that provide moisture to the skin all day
long. It can reflect the beautiful skin color naturally with healthy and sexy look of skin. The packaging of the products are
beautiful with modern design and color that give fun and vintage. In addition, the luxurious packaging gives trustworthy
and are distributed in Central Ladprao, Central Chidlom, Siam Paragon and Icon Siam. Foundation Primer is the product’s
signature of Paul & Joe for long time. Makeup Collection 2019, contained 24 products which come in a beautiful calendar
box, remains attract the customers’ interest.

Shiseido Professional, hair and scalp care products is Japanese licensed brand. The Company imports
good quality and trendy products which are conformed to fashion trend, which hairstylists have confidence to recommend
to customers such as straight perm lotion, wave lotion with treatment formula, hair color products, hair care products
which response to all of the customer requirement and effective hair styling products. During the past years, Crystallizing
Straight perm lotion remains popular among hair stylists for long period. PRIMIENCE is the hair color cream that suits for
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the condition of the hair Asian people that help added value of the products. Crystallizing Qurl perm lotion is the product
for digital hair perming to create beautiful curling hair with healthy. The Hair Care group has new products line for treating
hair with effectiveness in order to response the difference of consumers’ demand who require the products that suit to the
condition of hair and scalp individually. In 2019, the Company has launched new product “SUBLIMIC” which is premium
hair care item for treating hair and scalp that response to all need of every women by professional in beauty salons. It's
produced by latest beauty technology from development center of Shiseido with the combination of aroma therapy and
Japanese massage technic to rejuvenate and take care the hair and scalp to be shiny. In addition, it has a technic to
analyze the hair and scalp with hair treatment menu at the salons and the program for home use correctly in order to
have sustain beautiful hair and scalp from within. The Company has the activities to support the marketing to building up
good relationship with dealers and conducts the training for introducing the new technics, knowledge and skill to hair
technicians continuously. Therefore, above mentioned explanation has enhanced the image of modern products which
express of the strength of brand and is more acceptable in the market, for striving to successful business to both the
Company and dealers.

Easy Cut is the business of hair cutting service with the concept to offer service that emphasizes on
hygiene, convenience, rapidity, economy and modern. The Company’s professional hairstylists were trained with specific
courses. The service points are located in MRT area.,, department stores and shopping malls in Bangkok and the
provinces, which receive good response by customers.

(1.3) Procurement of Products

The Company places importance on merchandise’s selection and new products’ expanding in order
to be alternative choice for the consumers to receive the high standard quality’s cosmetics. With regard to the imported
products, the Company places order directly from Pias Intercosmex (Thailand) Co., Ltd, Shiseido Professional (Thailand)
Co., Ltd and some products are imported directly from Albion Co., Ltd. Japan.

The local products from the research is collaborated with the manufactured in SAHA Group which
comprise International Laboratories Corp. Ltd and S&J International Enterprise Public Company Limited. They are cosmetic
manufacturers with international standard and expert in cosmetic production and quality control for several years and
receive reliance from foreign licensers for exporting to the foreign countries.

(2) Clothes

(2.1) Type of Products and Services

The Company is the sole distributor of apparel products comprise of women’s lingerie, nightwear and
swimwear under Guy Laroche licensed brand in Thailand. These products are finely made from the best quality of raw
materials and imported laces. The design is elegance for giving reflection of sophisticated  taste with perfect cutting technique
that fits to all women’s shapes. The products are distributed in the leading department stores throughout Thailand and the
Company’s sales representatives are pleased to welcome and give products’ information or advice to the customers.

The inner wear products under Gunze Trademark which is welkknown from Japan. One group of the
product is imported directly from Japan while another group is domestic production but using the import materials from Japan
which are emphasized on the high-quality of cotton fiber and diversity of weaving technics that response the customers.

Furthermore, G&G is the Company’s lingerie brand which is another choice for the consumers. This lingerie
is beautiful and modern with it's comfortable to wear. It helps contour body shape with affordable price but care of good quality
which is the core principle of the Company in running business.

(2.2) Marketing and Competition

According to economy condition that was gradually slow down, the consumers remained care for their
expense. However, the marketing competition of lingerie and nightwear remained stay in high level; particularly from the middle
to upper level by focusing on the strategy to create the difference in term of innovation by introducing the lingerie that suits to
the Thai women figure for giving confidence upon wearing, including the raw materials and diversity of the designs in order to
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respond the consumers’ demand in dalily lifestyle. With the regard to the mass marketing level, it's emphasized on pricing
competition other than the quality for approaching to the target group who has less purchasing power.

Guy Laroche’s lingerie keeps on developing and creating the products with modern design and new pattern
continuously for being able to meet the demand of modern women either with comfortable wear or to contour their shape
so as to enhance their confidence with the selection of materials which has a standard and good quality of lace fabric
from overseas inclusive of the combination of cutting innovation.

In 2019, the Company has launched “Peel Skin” which is the collection for the women who love expressing
their charming feminine. The collection comprises Brassiere, Underwear, Daywear, Midi and Mini with the design of
diversity starting from the selection of the materials, two-tone laces for creating dimension of color shading while sponge
cups are available with thick and thin stuffs and body contour. Sewing technic gives confidence to all women for their
movement and suit with daily lifestyles.

G&G lingerie remains focus on target group with medium incomes for being their alternative products
with competitive price. In 2019, G&G has added the variety of products in the group of sportswear or fitness wear for
responding the demand and modern lifestyle of the women who care for health and love to do exercise.

The swimwear is competed with the design which is modern and flexible to wear. It conforms to the
fitness trendy for being healthy that is raised up during these 2-3 years. There are new brands that has been launched
in the market for competition. Guy Laroche swim wear develops its products continuously, this year the design has been
developed to be more modern and the patterns have been added for the group of Plus Size that received good response.

With regard to Gunze products, the Japanese side has conducts a research and development to create
the products of innovation for adding value and the benefit continuously. Apart from the Cool Magic collection; which
its design is modern with soft fabrics and cool feeling effect, sweat absorption. The Hot Magic collection is made of a
light texture which gives a warm feeling and respond the customers’ demand perfectly. Gunze realizes the importance
of the environment saving and pollution, therefore Organic Cotton fabric has been added in the collection and has been
launched in previous year and received good response. This group has been certified by Oekotec Certified (Eco-Tex) that
in every process of this production, there was a control not to have chemical residues contained in the fabrics which may
affect to the health and environment.

(2.3) Procurement of Products

The Company’s garment products have been manufactured from the famous companies in Saha Group
such as Thanulux Public Co., Ltd, Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd, and Thai Gunze Co., Ltd. Each manufacturer has
high standard production and received reliance from the brands’ owner to be the export hub for exporting to other
countries.

4. Risk Factors

The Company emphasizes on the importance of the enterprise risk management. The Board of Directors has
determined to implement the risk management procedure as tools to manage with all risk factors that shall affect to
the Company’s goal. The Risk Management Committee comprises of 7 members. The Managing Director and CEO
is the chairman of the committee. The committee holds monthly meeting for considering the issues of the risks all
over the organization, risk ranking, defining risk management’s guideline, including to assign the authorized persons
to seek the measure to control and manage the risk to be in appropriate and acceptable level. The significant risk
factors are summarized as follows:
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1) Risks on Economic Situation

The Thai economy tends to recover slowly. Investment by private sectors remains at low level to evaluate the
clarity of the economic situation. Investment and expense of governance sectors remain have low expansion. The
value of export goods is affected by Trade Protectionist Measure between U.S.A. and China, which has a broad impact
on the economy of the trade partners. Consumption of private sectors continues to slow down from the non-recovery
labor market. Financial institutions remain strict in credit approval. The local spending atmosphere is not bustling from
many factors, such as high level of household liabilities, cost of living, low price of agricultural productions, decrease of
revenue from agricultural sectors. All these affect the consumer confidence index and business. Number of customers
who purchased goods and services control their spending and purchase as necessary. However, the Company has
managed the risk by monitoring situations closely and conducted its planning to establish the different measures and
strategies to cope with potential consequences for ensuring that the Company can move over obstacles and lead to
sustainable business.

2) Risks on opening of AEC: ASEAN ECONOMIC COMMUNITY

To establish the ASEAN Economic Community is the goal of gathering 10 members from ASEAN countries
for enhancing the bargain power to trade partners and increase competitiveness on the global economy, including
approval tax exemption for some products to the member countries. This encourages the region to have a wealth
of prosperity. The people are well- being by having the joint market and the manufacturing base. There is a free
movement of goods, services, investments, capital money and skilled labor. Such cooperation caused both obstacles
and opportunities with the Company. The cosmetic market will be more aggressive with the marketing competition, as
there are cosmetic goods with low production costs from low labor costs to join the competition, especially the mass
markets such as Indonesia.

The Company has confidence that from the business experience for a long period of time, we able to
adapt and build up our competitive advantage, which is expected to result in future growth in the past 4-5 years. The
Company has seen the importance of the integration of the ASEAN Economic Community. This means that the trade
market is not only in Thailand but also to open up to the 9 countries in the ASEAN Group as well. The Company started
to open trade markets in CLMV countries (Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar and Vietnam), due to the similar of languages,
cultures and warmth welcome, including the direction and opportunity for the beauty products and apparels to grow
up. Therefore, KMA which is under the Company’s trade mark and has been developed continuously to enhance the
variety that gave response to the trendy cosmetic trend for young ladies and new working beginners. Guy Laroche
and G&G lingerie, Gunze innerwear were introduced in the market. These brands have potential to compete in term
of the price and quality for the markets in CLMV countries in which the Company already had the distributors and this
can prove an importance of on building the business partners’ relationship with local people.

3) Operational Risks

The Company is the distributor of cosmetics and apparels. The ratio of import products is 0.82% while
99.18% belongs to domestic products that are purchased from international license’s manufacturers. Present day,
Pias Intercosmex (Thailand) Co., Ltd. is the Company’s major supplier and the purchase amount of previous year was
Baht 261.15 million or equal to 42.64% from the Company’s total purchase.

Pias Intercosmex (Thailand) Co., Ltd. is the licenser of the Company’s major products and the Company is
the distributor of these brands in Thailand. Therefore, there is no business obstacle for the continuous operation in
the future.

4) Consumer Behavior Risks

Present day, consumer behavior is changed a lot. They need to try with new fresh products and new services
which are stimulator to the trendy consume. Thus, the brand royalty is decreased.

164



The Company manages the risk by listening to the comment and suggestion from various group of
consumers and then take them to develop the products and services to be outstanding features, trendy design, standard
and worth for the consumers. Furthermore, Customer Relationship Management is another channel to commmunicate with
the customers and can response to them promptly. The customers have pleasure and maximum satisfaction that would
help maintain of existing customers as well as the increase of new customers.

5) Financial Risks

The assets and liabilities as shown on the Balance Sheet consisted of cash equivalent, short-
term investment, trade accounts receivable and payable, and loans. The accounting policies in recording and
measurement these financial instrument are disclosed in the released notes to the financial statements. The
Company has reduced the risks as follows:

(1) Risks on Debts

Risk on credit granting may happen if debtors become unable to comply with previous agreements. The Company
has policy to avoid this kind of risks by having financial status analysis, tight credit control and closely follow-up. The maximum
of its risk will equal to the next book value after reduction of the allowance for doubtful debit shown on the balance sheet.

(2) Risks on Interest Rates

Risk on the change of interest rates may cause a damage on the Company form present term and next
terms. However the Company believes it is able to manage this risk as the Company has set a plan and to monitor
the situation as all time.

(3) Risks on Exchange Rates

As at December 31, 2019, the Company had no foreign currency loan but there was a slightly import purchase
amount. The Management believes there is minimized risk on currency exchange in the low level.
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5. Shareholders: Information on Securities and Shareholders
5.1 Registered Capital and Paid-up Capital
The Company’s registered capital amounted to Baht 80,000,000, Baht 60,000,000 of which had
been paid-up divided into 60,000,000 ordinary shares, at the par value of Baht 1 per share.
Preference Share — None -
5.2 Major Shareholders
List of Top Ten Major Shareholders
As at the Record Date at 20 March 2019
Rank Shareholders Number of Shares % Shareholding
1. .C.C. International Public Company Limited 11,839,980 19.733
2. Mr. Samrerng Manoonpol 9,322,440 15.5637
8, Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited 8,615,400 14.359
4. L.D.F. Co., Ltd. 3,136,680 5.228
5. Mr. Boonkiet Chokwatana 2,844,300 4.741
6. Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 1,831,325 3.052
7. Watsadoramai Co., Ltd. 1,624,570 2.708
8. Mr. Boonyasithi Chokwatana 1,357,490 2.262
9. Mrs. Revadee Dhanasarnsilp 994,960 1.658
10. Thananun Ua-Arak 931,990 1.553
Total 42,499,135 70.831
Investors can view update information of shareholders at the Company’s website www.occ.co.th
before the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.
5.3 Shareholding Structure
e Distribution of Shareholding by Nationality as of the registration book as at March 20, 2019
Grand Total Corporations Individuals
SEEIREES oo | e o S % Number of  Number of Shares % Number of  Number of Shares %
Shareholders Shareholders Shareholders
Thai 586 59,313,240 @ 98.86 32 30,088,545 | 50.15 554 29,224,695 @ 48.71
Foreigner 4 686,760 1.14 0 0 0.00 4 686,760 1.14
Total 590 60,000,000 100.00 32 30,088,545 | 50.15 558 29,911,455 | 49.85
e Cross-Shareholding as at December 31, 2019
OCC’s Shareholding OCC’s Major S
Number Company in other Company Shareholding SherahelRES Shareholding
(%) (%)
1. 1CC. International Public Company Limited 0.55% 19.73 4 4
2. Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited 0.06% 14.36 4 v
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The Company has no subsidiary or jointventure. The Company has the structure of cross-shareholding
among the major shareholders and this has no significant affect to the Company. Such cross-shareholding
does not oppose against the rules no.14 in accordance with the Notification of the Capital Market Supervisory
Board no. Tor Chor 28/2551 on Subject: “Application for an Approval of Offer for Sale of Newly Issued Shares”



e Shares Distribution of Minority Shareholdings (Free Float)

As per the report of the ordinary share’s distribution as at March 20, 2019 in order to determine the
right to attend the 25" Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on 22 April 2019, the Company had
shareholding ratio of the board of directors, managers and the executives including those involved and those who
have relationship holding the Company’s share equaled to 12.72 %. Shareholders with more than 5% including
55.63% of those associated and have holding ratio of Free Float equaled to 31.65% of the total shares issued.

6. Policy on Dividend Payment

The Company has a policy on annual dividend payment to the shareholders at the rate of not less
than Baht 0.20 per share or equivalent to 20% of par value by depending on the Company’s operational
results and the economic situation. Upon approval granted by the Board of Directors for dividend pay-
ment, the matter shall be proposed to seek approval at the shareholders’ meeting for further approval’s
consideration.

Dividend payment is the Company’s policy. Dividend paid amount rate from operational result during
the past five years are summarized as follows:

Year 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
Value of Share (Baht) 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00
Dividend per Share (Baht) 0.80 0.65 0.70 0.70 0.75
Total Amount (Baht) 48,000,000 39,000,000 42,000,000 42,000,000 45,000,000
Proportion (%) Net Profit 28.39% 61.66% 59.33% 50.68% 47.12%

7. Management Structure (as at December 31, 2019)
e The Structure of the Board of Directors consists of
1. Board of Directors
Audit Committee
Remuneration Committee
Nomination Committee
Risk Management Committee

Corporate Governance Committee

N o s~ WD

Executive Committee

7.1 Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors is currently consisted of nine members as follows:

e Executive Director 1
e Non - Executive Director 5
e Independent Director 3

The Company’s Board of Directors is composed of qualified persons who have knowledge and capability
with the experience and professional expertise in business developing management, marketing, financial,
accounting, economics political science, arts, educational management and Information Technology, etc.

The two directors from three independent directors, who served as the Company’s audit committee
members, have graduated in accounting. They have knowledge, expertise and experience in line of financial
accounting. The other director has knowledge in marketing, communication and public relation. All directors have
their independence and qualification as complied by the criteria of the Capital Market Supervisory Board.
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Directors with Authority to sign on behalf of the Company

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the numbers of the Authorized Directors are “two
who will sign on behalf of the Company with the Company’s seal affixed” in order that the Company’s Board may
specify name of the Directors who have authorities from the Company with the Company’s seal affixed.

Balance of Non — Executive Directors

Number (person)
Proportion (%)
Male Female Total
Executive Directors - 1 1 11.11
Non - Executive Directors 8 2 © 55.56
Independent Directors 2 1 3 33.33
Total 5 4 9 100

Lists of Names of the Board of Directors, Position and Number of Meeting Attendance

Board of Directors’ Meeting
No. Name Position Number of Number of
Meeting Attendance
1. Mrs.Kanchana Saisiriporn Chairman 7 7
Corporate Governance Committee Chairman
Nomination Committee
Remuneration Committee
2. MrsTeerada Ambhanwong Managing Director & CEO 7 7
Risk Management Committee Chairman
Nomination Committee Chairman
Remuneration Committee
3. | MrManu Leelanuwattana* Remuneration Committee Chairman 7 6
Nomination Committee
4. MrsTipaporn Chokwatana Director 7 7
5. | MrWorathep Aussavakasem Director 7 7
6. Mr.Thitipoom Chokwatana* Director 5 4
7. | MrsWatchanee Wattanathawanwong | Independent Director & Audit Committee Chairman 7 7
Risk Management Committee
MrWanchai ~ Umpueng-art Independent Director & Audit Committee
Mr.Knit Kounavudhi Independent Director & Audit Committee 7 /

* Mr.Manu Leelanuwattana was absent by important mission
* Mr.Thitiboom Chokwatana has been appointed to be Director at the 25" Annual Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders on 22 Apr, 2019
Appointment and Removal of the Company’s Directors

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, the appointment, removal or the resignation of the
directors are summarized as follows:

Appointment of Company’s Directors

e The Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders shall vote for the election of the directors as follows:

o Each shareholder has voting right one share for one vote.
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o Each shareholder must exercise all of the votes to elect one or several persons to be the directors
and must not allot the votes to any person in any number.

o The person who will get the highest number of votes to the lower number of votes in order, will be
elected as the directors equal to the number of the directors to be elected by the shareholders’
meeting in such election. In case where the number of votes for the candidates in descending order
are equal which would otherwise cause the number of directors to be elected by the shareholders’
meeting to be exceeded in such election, the chairman will have a casting vote.

e The Board of Directors will elect a director to be the Company’s Chairman. The chairman has the
right of voting judge in case the votes of the Board of Directors in the meeting are equivalent. In case
the chairman is unable to conduct the duty in temporary or the position has vacant, the Board of
Directors may consider electing or appointing the other director to be the vice chairman, who will be
assigned by the chairman to perform duties to conduct the Company’s business on behalf.

e In case on a vacancy directorship position otherwise than retirement rotation, the Board of Directors
may appoint any person who is qualified and is not forbidden by any provision of the law as a
replacement director at the following meeting with the vote of three-fourths (3/4) of the remaining
number of directors, with the exception of the situation in which the remaining tenure the vacant
directorship is less than two months.

e In case the number of vacant directorships results is inadequate quorum, remaining directors can
act on behalf of the Board of Directors in organizing a meeting of shareholders for the purpose of
appointing replacement to complete that vacant.

Resignation of Directorship

e At every Annual Ordinary General Shareholder Meeting, one-third (1/3) of the directors must be
retired. The directors who are retired by rotation, may be re-elected.

e Apart from the retirement of directorship upon the termination of tenure, the directors will retire from
the directorship in the case of death, resignation or lacking of qualification or becoming forbidden
by any provision of the law or the vote at shareholders’ meeting on resignation or the order by the
court of law.

e Any director who will resign from the directorship, must submit resigned letter to the Company. The
resignation will take effect upon the date of resigned letter has arrived at the Company. The directors
who resign will notify their resignation to the Registrar by any note.

e The shareholders’ meeting may pass a resolution to remove any directorship prior to termination by
the votes of not less than three-fourths (3/4) of the number of shareholders present at the meeting
and entitled to vote and representing the total shares of not less than half of the number of shares
held by the shareholders present at the meeting and entitled to vote.

Charter of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors places importance on duty as the directorship with responsibility, carefulness
and integrity as fiduciary that operates such business commencing to good corporate governance’s principles
to achieve utmost benefit for the Company, shareholders and all parties concerned. The Company’s business
is complied with the policy, law, objective, regulations, the Board of Directors’ resolution and resolution of
the shareholders’ meeting. The Board of Directors has duty and responsibility as follows:

Authority

1. To appoint, remove and delegate authority to the Board of Directors’ advisor, the committees
and/or other parties to operate.

2. To approve loans to the companies which have business relationship with the Company as the
shareholders, or affiliated companies with a trading relationship or other companies for the amount
exceeding the authority of the executive committee.
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3. To approve guarantee for credit limit to the companies which have business relationship with the
Company as shareholders, or affiliated companies with a trading relationship or other companies
for the amount exceeding the authority of the executive committee.

4. To approve engagement in a legal act, that is not a financial transaction, of the amount exceeding
the authority of the executive committee.

5. To approve acceptance or cancellation of credit limit of the amount exceeding the authority of
the executive committee.

6. To approve investment, sale of investment capital in ordinary shares and/or any other securities
of the amount exceeding the authority of the executive committee.

7. To approve sourcing and investment in fixed assets of the amount exceeding the authority of the
executive committee.

8. To approve amendment, destruction and disposal of fixed assets and intangible assets that are
no longer in use, damaged, lost, destroyed, deteriorated and out of date, which decrease the
book value of the amount exceeding the authority of the executive committee.

9. To approve price amendment, destroy of raw materials and/or deteriorated inventories or out of
date, which are of the amount exceeding the authority of the executive committee.

10.To approve compromise or settlement of dispute by arbitration, complaint, filing of lawsuits and/
or any legal proceeding on behalf of the Company on matters which are not common trade and/
or common trade with capital amount exceeding the authority of the executive committee.

11.To propose a capital increase or capital decrease or change of stock value, amendment of the
memorandum of association, rules and/or objectives of the Company to the shareholders.

12.To have the authority to invite the managements, executives and employees who are involved
in any particular issues to provide some explanations, to express opinion, to participate in the
meeting or to submit any related documents as necessary.

13.To seek advice and consultation by experts or advisors of the Company (if any) or to hire external
advisor or expert in any necessary cases with the Company’ expense.

14.To appoint and remove the Company Secretary.

15.All operating authority of the Board of Directors as mentioned above that have relationship to the
grant and distribution of assets and related transaction will act in accordance with the announcement
of Capital Market Supervisory Board.

Duties and Responsibilities

1. To establish direction, goal and business policy of the Company.

2. Toapprove working plan and annual budget including to supervise the operation of the management
to be complied with the law, policy and plan as defined to meet with efficient and effectiveness.

3. To encourage the manipulation of business corporate governance policy, ethics and business
ethics in written for the Company’s directors, the executives and the employees to be in line with
the business operation and to monitor it to be operated seriously.

4. To conduct the sufficient and appropriate internal control system and risk management system
to be assured that the Company’s transactions will be approved by the authority and to be
reviewed with the right accounting procedures, as well as any systems to prevent misuse of the
Company’s assets.

5. The transaction that may have conflict of benefit must be carefully considered with obvious guideline
and the benefit of the Company and shareholders. The stakeholders are not getting involved
in making decision. To perform the regulations which are related to the step of processing and
disclosure of the transactions that may have benefit's conflict, with accuracy.



To approve the financial report which has been audited and/or been reviewed by the Auditors
has been approved by the audit committee.

To be responsible for all shareholders with equality and disclose of information to the shareholders
and investors with accuracy, standard and transparency.

To acknowledge the report of business administration by the executive committee.

To call for the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders by setting the date, time, venue
and meeting agenda including the rate of dividend payment (if any) and the Board of Directors’
opinion which is related to the agendas for being proposed to the shareholders during twenty one
days before each Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders. The Company may set the
date for suspension of share transfers registration which shall be announced for acknowledgement
by the shareholders at the head office and branch offices of the Company at least fourteen days
before the suspension of transfer registration or to set a Record Date (RD) of eligible shareholders
in advance before the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders’ date not more than
two months in order to take the right to participate in the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders and the right to receive dividend payment.

10.To arrange the report of “Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Reports”, for disclosure

in the Company’s annual report (Form 56-2) and the annual financial report (Form 56-1).

11.To supervise the documents which are for presenting to the concerned organization in order to

be assured that these statements or transactions being shown the data as entered in the books
of account, registration or other documents of the Company with accuracy.

12.To approve the Board of Directors’ Charter and / or the charter of other committees.

13.To work for the other matters beyond the authority of the executive committee or in accordance

with the Board of Directors’ agreement.

Code of the Board of Directors’ Best Practices

1.

To perform oneself duty with responsibility, caution and integrity in the same way as fiduciary
should be made in the same situation with bargaining power of trade without the influence of
status serving as the directors including to ensure compliance with the policies, laws, objectives
and articles of association of the Company as well as resolutions passed by the Board of Directors’
meeting and shareholders’ meeting.

To have willingness to operate business with continuity and dedicate time to attend the meeting
for making consideration and expressing opinion frequently.

To have the leadership, vision, ethics and independent decision-making for the utmost benefit of
the Company and all shareholders. To utilize knowledge, capability and experience for being the
benefit of business operation as well as to draw attention on the Company’s business.

To supervise and monitor different types of the Company’s operation to be complied with the
policy as defined to be effective and efficient.

To treat the stakeholders for their rights as per related law and to enhance the co-operation
between the Company and the stakeholders in building up wealthy, financial security and sustain
business.

To report the holding of securities and changes of securities” holding that belong to the directors,
spouse, children and adopted children under age of twenty to the Office of Securities and Exchange
Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Board of Directors’ meeting.

To report to the Company to acknowledge of one’s stake or of related persons who are the
stakeholders to the administrative management of the Company or its subsidiaries as complied
to the regulations, conditions and the process that announces by the Capital Market Supervisory
Board.
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8. In case the Company’s directors together with related persons or relatives, have any transaction
with the Company or its subsidiaries that is claimed as related transactions and /or the receipt or
distribution of assets, all these have to practice along with the regulations of the Office of Securities
and Exchange Commission, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Capital Market Supervisory
Board.

9. In offering the trade of the Company’s securities, the Company’s directors should keep to monitor
for ensuring that information of financial status and the business operation performance of the
Company are accurate and transparent disclosure to the public for understanding,

7.2 The Executives

The Company’s executives as per the definition of the Securities and Exchange of Commission comprised
seven members with the authority to work along with the policy as defined by the Company.

The Lists of Names of the Executives as at December 31, 2019

Name Position
1. | Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong Managing Director & CEO
2 | MrsChantra Tangtanasaringkarn' Director Accounting-Finance Division
3. Ms. Rattana  Wonglertwit Director Office Administration Division
4. | Ms.Siriporn Tang’(anasringkam2 Director Cosmetics Marketing Division
5. | Dr. Pattara Pathumarak Director Managing Director Office
6. | Ms. Patcharee Thumrongkitikul Director Hair Care Marketing Division
7. | Dr. Pattara Pathumarak® Act for Director Fashion Lifestyle Marketing Division

“1” s the spouse of uncle’s son of “2”
“3” is assigned to be the Acting Director Fashion Lifestyle Marketing Division

Management Structure of O.C.C. Public Company Limited
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The position of Division Directors were served as the Company’s Executives which complied with the
Securities and Exchange of Commission’s announcement. No. 1,2,3,6 and 7 had been appointed by the
Company’s Board of Directors to hold the position as the members of the Executive Committee. The executives’
individual information is stated on the subject “Information of the Board of Directors and the Executives”.
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7.3 Company Secretary

The Board of Directors’ Meeting No.3/2551 on May 14, 2008 resolved to approve the appointment
of Mrs. Choopan Imthong, Legal Section Manager, to hold office as Company Secretary, with duties and
responsibilities as stated on the section 89/15 and 89/16 of the Securities and the Stock Exchange of Thailand
Act (Issued 4) BE. 2551 and other applicable law to be complied by the objective, the Company’s articles of
association, resolutions of the Board of Directors’ meetings and the shareholders’ meetings with responsibility,
caution and integrity. The Company Secretary’s duties with relevant laws are as follows:

1.

2.

3.

To prepare and keep the following documents :

a. The register of directors;

b. The notices of directors’ meetings, minutes of meetings of the Board of Directors
and the annual report of the Company;

c. The notices of shareholders’ meetings and minutes of shareholders’ meetings.

To keep the report of the stake’s transactions that had been reported by the directors or the executives
and submitted such report’s copies as complied with the Act 89/14 to the Chairman of the Board of
Directors and Chairman of the Audit Committee to be acknowledged within seven days upon the date
that the Company has received such reports.

To perform other duties as announced by the Capital Market Supervisory Board.

The Company Secretary has duty as assigned by the Board of Directors to perform and to support the
good governance practice as follows:

1.

To provide primary advice to the directors and the executives relating to relevant laws, rules and
other regulations of practice for the Company’s benefit by monitoring their practice to be performed
frequently with accuracy as well as to report the significant change of law’s definition.

2. To convene the shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors’ meeting to be complied with the
laws, articles of association and other related practice.

3. To record the minutes of the shareholders’ meeting, the Board of Directors’ meeting and to follow up
the practice to be performed in accordance with the resolution of the shareholders® meeting and the
Board of Directors’ meeting.

4. To supervise the disclosure of inside information and IT information with the part that has responsibility
to the units that supervise the registered companies which are in compliance with the rules and
regulations inclusive of other related laws.

5. To conduct the orientation for providing advice to the newly appointed directors.

To supervise the performance of the Board of Directors and the executives.

7. To communicate with the general shareholders for the receipt of the Company’s information and other
related rights.

8. To perform any other duties as assigned by the Company.

mpan retary Information
Name Education Flieieloll Ol Company Secretary’s Training Profile
Shareholding pany y 9
Mrs.Choopanimthong = Master of Science - - New Issuer Portal-Documentary Request System conducted
Ade 51 Program in Corporate by Thailand Securities Depository (TSD)
E Governance,Faculty - Company Secretary Program 1/2002 conducted
of Commerce and by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)
Accountancy, Chulalongkorn - Company Secretary Development Program 12/200 conducted
University by Thai Listed Companies Association
Bachelor of Laws - Basic Law Enforcement Training and rules related to
Ramkhamhaeng University Thai Listed Companies Association 4/2010
- Anti - Corruption: The Practical Guide ACPG 8/2014 conducted
by Thai Institute of Directors (IOD)

&> Family relationship between directors and executives — none —
2 Any position in the past year, in another venture or organization, had a significant impact on the Company - none -
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7.4 Remuneration for Directors
- 2019 Monetary Remuneration

(A) Monetary Remuneration for nine Company’s Directors comprised of Conference Allowance and
Director Fees are as follows:

Name Amount (Baht)
1. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 882,000.00
2. Mrs. Teerada ~ Ambhanwong 837,000.00
3. Mrs. Watchnee Wattanathawanwong 772,000.00
4, Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art 522,000.00
5. Mr. Knit Kounavudhi 527,000.00
6. Mr. Manu Leelanuwattana 536,000.00
7. Mr. Tipaporn Chokwatana 342,000.00
8. MrWorathep ~ Aussavakasem 242,000.00
9. Mr. Thitipoom  Chokwatana 24,000.00

Total 4,684,000.00

(B) Remuneration for Executive Committee and the Executives consisted of six persons

Items Amount (Baht)
Salary 20,223,020.00
Bonus 1,665,880.00
Executive Meeting Allowance 240,000.00
Provident Fund 706,358.00
Social Security Expense 54,000.00
Hospitalization 22,117.00
Vehicle Maintenance Expense 12,000.00
Provision 961,088.00

Total 23,884,463.00

(C) Other remuneration - None -
7.5 Personnel

Personnel Data

Description Number (Employee) Percentage
Sales Persons 817 81
Office Staffs 189 19
Total 1,006 100

Information as of 31 December 2019

Human Resource Management

Placing an importance on employees, is one of the Company’s vision statements. To, The Strategic
Human Resource Management was set up to be in line with the business operation and the Company’
goals in order to achieve its vision. In 2019, the strategy of the Company’s human resource management
comprised of Recruitment, Development, Value Creation, Retention and Attention. Above mentioned strategies
have been implemented to perform in the form of working plans and projects as concretely as follows:



e Employer Branding Project To create the Company’s good image toward the community via social
network on various platforms, for drawing persons’ attention to have an interest in working with the
Company. In addition, this could be the Company’s PR and good image as well.

e Employee Experience Project To enhance good experience to the Company’s current employees and
to look after the new employees for their jobs and the workplace adjustment.

e OCC Shuttle Bus Project The route connects the OCC Building directly to the public transport center.
It's a transportation service providing for the Company’s employees to have convenience of traveling.
This service will draw attention the persons to be interest in working with the Company.

e OCC We Care : HR Counseling Project To provide counsel and suggestion to the employees by the
Company’s HR Team. An Exit Interview is conducted for gaining the data to consider and to improve
the organization and employees.

e SAP Data Analytic Contest Project The contest activity for analyzing the data of SAP system, is held
up for adding value to the organization. It's expected that the Company’s employees will implement the
data from the system to receive utmost benefit as well as to enhance their skill of analysis.

e Changing of Human Resource Information System (HRIS) To transform the original system digital by
implementing Human OS system, which can work on mobile application. Data can be recorded and sent
out online. This will help the supervisors to manage Real Time information of their staffs for recording
Mobile Time Attendance and online approval of leave / O.T. and other reports.

Human Resource Development

The Company’s human resource development is complied with the plan of annual training courses
and development in knowledge, competency, attitude, behavior and human resource management for being
in line with the business operation and the Company’s goals which are:

Personnel Training Courses In 2019, an average hours of training was seven hours per one staff
and was classified by working groups as follows:

e Training Course for Sales Persons
e Training Course for Supervisors
e Training Course for Administration and Management

Training Course for Professional Group such as Accounting, Legal, IT and Audit

Training Course for Change of Information Technology System in an Organization

Training Course for Anti-Bribery and Anti-Corruption in compliance with the Company’s
Policy

Succession Planning

According to the succession planning’s regulations, the Company has a plan to recruit and
develop personnel within the organization for appointment as to succeed any resigned or retired
executives or staffs. Therefore, the Company’s operations can be continued, developed and expanded
knowledge from generation to generation as for being the corporate culture of the organization and will
give benefit to the staffs and the Company.

Remuneration Management and Employee Benefits

The Remuneration Committee has an authority to consider determining and setting up the policy
of remuneration and welfare for the employees with fairness in the organization. Remuneration structure
is clearly designated with strict abidingness. Employees’ benefit rate is up to date and in comply with the
laws. Annual payroll increment rate will be considered from the staff performance assessment and capability
on a concrete basis in order to be fair towards all employees of the organization.
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Social Welfares

The Company is aware of employees’ essential needs and benefits. Therefore, in order to support their
working spirit and encouragement as well as to help decrease cost of living, increase of retirement security
and to relief troubles which are as follows:

e Knowledge Development
o Reading corners for the staffs
o Training courses for enhancing knowledge and skills of the staffs
e Cost of Living
o Annual bonus
o Dormitory for the staffs
o Uniform
o Disaster recovery allowance
o Allowance for in case of death of employee
o Special discount price of products for employees
o Allowance for in case of death of employees’ family members
o Loan from Government Saving Bank
o Allowance for marriage or childbirth
o Group life and accident insurance
e Saving Cooperative

o Provident fund that allows the employees to set saving rate as required from 3%-15% with the
increase of contribution rate that shall comply along with their working period

e Development of employees’ family status

o Scholarship from Dr. Thiam Chokwatana Foundation for employees’ children
e Empowering a sustainable future

o Retirement fund

o Housing loans by the Government Housing Bank and Siam Commercial Bank

o Certificate presentation’s ceremony for employees whose working period are 10, 20 and 30 years
e Heath Welfare

o First Aid Room

o Health care education

o Free annual health check-up per fiscal year and extra healthy check-up for the group those whose
works have risk

o Having Quadrivalent Flu Vaccine to prevent against four flu viruses
o Stay healthy with exercise
o Blood donation for saving fellowmen

e Recreation Welfare

o Various traditional activities such as Songkran Festival, Chinese New Year, National Father’s Day,
National Mother’s Day.

o Merit making activity, foods offering to monks and ask blessing from the executives
o “Birth Month Love Sharing” : joint activity among the executives and employees

o New Year Party

o “With Love and Connection” retirement farewell party

o Outing trip to the provinces and doing activities for return to the society

o Establish various clubs to build up group activating relationship among employees to enhance
friendship and unity in the organization



fet tional Health and Working Environment

The policy of safety, occupational health and working environment are set by the Company for complying
with the Safety Act. It's emphasized on building up the employees’ safety conscious in the workplace and
encouraged them to hold it as their mission. The Safety and Occupational Health Committee was set up
to be responsible for taking care of safety and occupational health in the workplace via the training, control,
investigate and to renovate the equipment, buildings and environment, including of fire prevention’s preparation.
There was no occupational accident or illness in 2019.

Responsibility towards Society and the Environment

The Company has noble intention to have its responsibility towards the society and the environment, therefore
CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) Project was established. It's started from the business that operates
with morality and contributes the public and the society with generous support by frequently encouraging and
promoting events and activities that give benefit to the community consecutively. CRS working team was set
up to support various activities.

Educational Activities

The Company offers the scholarships to the fund of SAHA Group’s employees under the management of
Ruamchit Norm Klao Foundation under Her Majesty’s Royal Patronage to support the youths until they have
completed their education up to the compulsory level. As well as to support the youths to have educational
opportunity in order that they shall grow up to stay in the society as the qualitative new generation and have
integrity for the future. The Company collaborates with the Vocational Education Commission organized
charming curriculum, a makeup course that instructed the students who attended the charming course in
Polytechnic Colleges and Industrial and Community Colleges for being fundamental and development of
their profession as well as to conduct the workshops for the vocational instructors in the field of Beauty
Profession.

Employment of Disable Employee

The Company has a policy to employ disable employees to work in the job titles that are suitable for
their working ability by selecting the one whom has been introduced by Disabled Revival Center in order
that they can earn incomes for spending as their self-dependent and can stay in this society with dignity.
To practice along with the Act 35, the merchandise concession is provided for being the profession of
disabled and this could support them to earn incomes and to get the profession and /or to be the disabled
career as sustained.

The Project of AIDS Defen nd Man ment

The Company has an obvious policy to protect and manage about AIDS. The job’s applicants are
no longer to have blood checked for AIDS. This shows the respect of dignity and basic human rights.
Employees shall be educated about AIDS while the Company collaborates to join social activities with other
AIDS’ associations continuously. Therefore, the Company received Silver Class of ASO Certificate as per
the conditions of AIDS - response Standard Organization (ASO Thailand) from the Department of Labor
Protection and Welfare Ministry of Labor and Department of Disease Control Ministry of Health.

Energy Conservation

The Company has a policy to conserve the energy by emphasizing on employees’ consciousness
to aware and understand how to conserve the energy comprising of electricity, fuel, running water, and
worthy use of resources, decrease the usage of papers. The management of transforming the equipment
that needed high energy and equipment with modern technology that it's cost for maintenance are high
by replacing them with the ones that could save energy as well as to emphasize on Reuse campaign, to
ride a bicycle from the office to the warehouse.

ial Contribution
The Company has collaborated with the charity projects and regularly supported activities that concermned to
the commonweal of community, society and environment via different authorities as follows:
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o SAHA Group Unity Foundation 2540

o Dr.Thiam Chokwatana Foundation

o Tiang Chirathivat Foundation

o Department of Empowerment of Persons with Disabilities
o The National Council on Social Welfare of Thailand

Apart from the participation of the activities that are for being the public benefits to the society and the
environment through various organizations in the form of financial contribution, the Company also joins hands
in contribution activities by providing the professional team of Makeup Artists and Hair Stylists to take care for
facial makeup and hair styling to the actors, actress and singers as well as to provide the Company’s products
as the gifts or rewards. Good Personality Training Course will be held at required organization as well as Makeup
Training Courses that are held to support the public charitable institutions.

Company’s Awards Received

e Honorary Outstanding Enterprise Plaque of 2019 from the Social Security Office

e Certificate of Awards the Standard on Prevention and Solution to Drug Problem in an Establishment
(issue date:6 September 2018 certificate validation:5 2021) from Department of Labour
Protection and Welfare

e Permission No. Dor Por For — Ror 202 to certify Fire Safety Training of 2019 from Department
of Labour Protection and Welfare

8. Corporate Governance
8.1 Corporate Governance Policy

Corporate Governance Policy is considered to be as a part of the Company’s business operation. The
Company determines to take into its business operation with responsibility, fairness, together with a respect
for the rights and equality of shareholders and responsibility towards all stakeholders. The Company reviews
the Principles of Good Corporate Governance regularly to ensure that it complies with law and best practice of
good governance and is appropriate with the current economic situation and changed society.

The Board of Directors’ Meeting No.1/2562 on February 13, 2019 resolved to approve the Principles of
Corporate Governance (2nd edition) to be in line with the Corporate Governance Code for Listed Companies
2017 which comprises of Good Corporate Governance Policy, 8 Good Corporate Governance Principles (CG
Code), Business Ethics, Ethics of the Board of Directors, Code of Conduct for Executives and Employees for
all employees to take it as their guideline of best practices.

The Company discloses Principles of Corporate Governance (2™ edition) via the Company’s Intranet
system and on the website: www.occ.co.th Detail is as per Item “Investor”.

Good Corporate Governance Policy

1. All directors, executive officers, and employees shall be fully committed to the application of the
Corporate Governance Code, Business Ethics, and Code of Conduct for Company Directors, Executive
Officers, and Employees.

2. All directors, executive officers, and employees shall perform their duties responsibly, prudently,
earnestly, and honestly in accordance with relevant laws, Articles of Association, and notifications.

3. Action shall be taken to ensure that the Company’s management structure contains clear prescriptions
of powers, duties, and responsibilities of each committee and executive officer.

4. There shall be a suitable internal control system and an appropriate risk management system, as well
as an accurate and reliable accounting system and financial statements.

5. Information Technology shall be disclosed in a sufficient, reliable, and timely manner to the extent
that legitimate interests of the Company are not prejudiced.
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6. Shareholders’ ownership rights shall be appreciated and respected. Shareholders shall be treated
equitably.

7. Undertakings shall have regard to the Company’s responsibilities towards its shareholders, stakeholders,
communities, society, and the environment.

8. Al shall strive towards business excellence with commitment to customer satisfaction created by
being attentive and conducting self-assessment to enhance management capabilities and continually
promote productive creativity.

9. \Virtue, ethics, and good values shall be instilled. Employees shall be treated fairly with a commitment
to develop and enhance their capabilities.

10. Dishonest conduct, corruption, and intellectual property violation shall be suppressed. Laws and
human rights shall be respected.

11. Conflicts of interest shall be dealt with prudently and reasonably with due regard to the Company’s
interests.

The Practicin t the Principl f rporat vernan

The Board of Directors recognizes its roles and responsibilities as the leader of the organization. In this
regard, the Company’s Corporate Governance Policy covers the significant matters under the 8 Principles of
Good Corporate Governance (CG Code), comprising 5 main categories as follows:

1. The Right of the Shareholders

The Company realizes the importance of shareholders and in respect to their ownership rights to ensure the
protection of shareholders’ equitable fundamental rights with equal and fair treatment towards all shareholders
groups and institutional investors. The Company takes into consideration the shareholders’ legal right, without
encroaching or lessening it. The fundamental rights of the shareholders are as follows:

Fundamental Right

The right to own, trade and transfer the shares independently. The right to receive dividends on an equal
basis. The right to receive the Company’s information sufficiently, timely and regularly. The right to attend the
shareholders’ meetings. The right to appoint a proxy to attend the meeting and to vote on one’s behalf. The right
to provide comments and questions during the Shareowners’ meetings. The right to jointly make decision on
crucial matters. The right to elect the Company’s board of directors, and determine their remuneration. The right
to appoint auditors and determine their remuneration. The right to approve significant transaction and results to
the aspect of the Company’s business operation. The right to amend the Memorandum of Association and the
Articles of Association of the Company.

The Right to receive Information

Shareholders have the rights to equally receive information which the Company publishes in Thai and English
via communication channel of Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website: www.setorth and the Company’s website:
www.occ.coth. The information comprises of operation performance, management policy, related transaction
information, trade of the important assets of the Company, information for shareholders’ meeting, the list of top 10
shareholders as of the closing date to define the name list of shareholders for Annual Ordinary General Meeting
of Shareholders, the report the shareholders’ meeting within 14 days after the meeting date and other information
that are necessary for the shareholders to make decision.

The Righ ttend the Annual Ordin neral Meeting of Shareholder

The Company arranges the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders every year within 4 months
after the end of each fiscal year. If there is an urgent matter to consider that needs to propose the extraordinary
agenda, which is subject to the impact of shareholders’ benefit or relates to the regulations, rules, laws and must
have approval form shareholders. The Company will send out the invitation letter to call an extraordinary meeting
of shareholders on case by case. The meeting will be held at a convenient and proper date, time and venue for
every shareholder to attend.
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The 25th Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was held on April 22, 2019 at Montien Riverside
Hotel. The Meeting was strictly in complied with the AGM Checklist of Office of Securities Exchange Commission.
There was no call for extraordinary meeting of shareholders, no agreement with substantial shareholders that bearing
significant impacts to the Company or to the other shareholders. Neither did it prohibit or obstruct communication
among the shareholders.

e Before the AGM

1. The Company offers the opportunity to shareholders to have the right to propose additional
agendas or nominate qualified persons for Directors’ position at Annual Ordinary General Meeting
of Shareholders. In 2019, 25th Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders allowed
shareholders to propose the agenda from 1 December 2018 to 30 December 2018.The
Company publicized in both English and Thai language via the channels of the Stock Exchange
of Thailand and the Company’s website. However after the due date, no additional agenda nor
candidates had been proposed and this had been informed to the Board of Directors’ Meeting
by the Company Secretary.

2. The Company gives prior notice of the information of a shareholders’ meeting and agenda
items in both English and Thai language via the channels of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
48 days before shareholders’ meeting as of March 5, 2019. Shareholders’ meeting was held
on April 22, 2019.

3. The Company facilitates the shareholders to access the information of shareholders’ meeting on
publish notice, meeting regulation and agenda together with other relevant documents in English
and Thai via the Company’s website: www.occ.co.th 30 days before meeting day which was on
March 19, 2019. Proxy Form A, B and C can be downloaded from the Company’s website
and their contents are the same as the information that has been sent in type of documents.
The call for the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders will be announced in the Thai
daily newspaper for 3 consecutive days and at least 3 days prior to the meeting.

4. The Company sends the invitation notice to attend a shareholders’ meeting and supporting
documents to shareholders more than 21 days prior to the meeting. Delivery dated was March
29, 2019. Thai shareholders will receive Thai language while the foreigners will receive both
Thai and English language for facilitating them to receive the same information. This invitation
notice contains detail on date, time, venue, map of meeting venue, an agenda of meeting,
regulation and supporting documents that clearly contains of agenda to acknowledge, approve
or consider together with the Board of Directors’ opinion that will be sufficient and clear to allow
the shareholders to exercise their votes. Furthermore, this invitation notice will inform detail of
appropriate documents that shareholders need to submit completely and the process to attend
the meeting for the protection of their rights and to acknowledge the Company’s Articles of
Association as related to the meeting of shareholders and their votes.

5. The Company enclosed Proxy Form B, which is the type for shareholders to select for using
to votes independently. The Lists of Independent Directors’ names will be informed for those
shareholders who will not attend the meeting. They can give proxy to either independent
directors or any other persons to attend the meeting on behalf by completing on the enclosed
proxy form.

e Attendance at AGM

1. In 2019, Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders was held on April 22, 2019 at 9.00
am. at Montien Riverside Hotel in Bangkok. Date, time and venue for the meeting has been
set to meet with convenience and appropriation that will not be obstacle for the shareholders
to attend the meeting.

2. The Board of Directors places importance on shareholders’ meeting, as it’s their duties to attend.
Exceptional, when they are absent for important mission or illness. Chairman of all Committees,
Director of Accountant and Financial and the Executives will also attend the meeting every time



in order to allow the shareholders to ask for the Company’s information. Detail of the meeting
attendance of the Board of Directors can be found on the meeting report that was published
on the Company’s website.

3. The Company will prepare venue for the meeting with sufficient numbers of staff attendance
to welcome and assist for the registration until the finish of meeting. Registered attendance
is open to the shareholders 2 hours before the meeting with no expiration of registration with
barcode systems, which it will display information of each shareholder on the registration form in
order to facilitate convenience, fast and the accuracy of shareholders’ information upon register.
Voting cards for each agenda are prepared as well as revenue stamps that are available for
serving to shareholders who authorize proxy for anyone or independent director to attended
the meeting on their behalf.

4. Prior to each meeting, Chairman of the meeting will introduce the Board of Directors, executives,
the Company’s auditor, Company Secretary and legal adviser who participate in the meeting
and will be the witness for voting counts. Company Secretary will clarify the rules related to all
meetings, voting including how to count the votes clearly as stated on the Company’s Articles
of Association. Voting and counting votes will be practiced with disclosure via barcode system
that is adopted for instant ballot counting and accurate vote result. The votes are complied with
the Company’s Articles of Association and applicable laws. Counting votes for each agenda’s
item will be displayed openly in the meeting room.

Voting on each agenda, will be done with the ballots for shareholders to exercise the
votes and only the ballots with disapproved and abstention will be collected. Votes counting will
be performed by deducting the numbers of disapproval and abstention vote from the numbers
of total except on the agenda of electing the Directors that all ballots will be collected and count
the votes by using the barcode system. In counting votes for each item of the agenda, the
Company’s legal adviser, Shareholders’ Right Protection Volunteers of Thai Investors Association
who act as the representative of minor shareholders and the Company’s auditor will observe
the meeting. After the meeting, shareholders are able to audit such detail. One share represents
one vote and more numbers of vote will be the resolution except the case of the resolution that
definite to accept 2/3 (two-third) of total votes belonging to the shareholders who attended the
meeting and have the rights to vote. Or with except the case of resolution that definite to accept
3/4 (three-quarter) of total votes belonging to the shareholders who attended the meeting and
have the rights to vote as complied with the Company’s Articles of Association and law.

5. Important agendas of the 25" Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April
22, 2019 were as follows:

e Approval of Financial Statement as ended on December 31, 2018. The meeting’s
resolution was unanimously approved.

¢ Significant Summary of Financial Statement and Operation Performance of 2018

- Total Assets 1,289,777,833.00 Baht
- Total Liabilities 271,694,521.00 Baht
- Total Revenue 1,470,893,074.00 Baht
- Net Profit 169,094,491.00 Baht
- Earnings per share 2.82 Baht

e Approval of annual dividend payment for the operating performance during January 1, 2018
to December 31, 2018. 60,000,000 common share dividend were paid at the rate of 0.80
Baht per share respectively. Dividend was paid by retained earnings in which the Company
had paid tax at the rate of 25%. Natural Person on Shareholders can refund tax credit
according to the Revenue Code Section 47 bix. Resolution was unanimously approved.
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e Approval the re<lection of 3 directors who were retired upon completion of their terms
of office, namely Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong, Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana, Mr.Wanchai
Umpuang-art to resume their directorships for another term. Approval increase number of the
Company’s directors 1 person, namely Mr. Thitipoom Chokwatana.

¢ Approval the Directors’ remuneration amount not exceed 6,000,000 Baht per year. Meeting
resolution was unanimously approved

e Approval the appointment of Mrs.Suvimol Chrityakierne, CPA registration No.2982 or
Miss Suphaphorn Mangjit, CPA registration No.8125 or Mr.Nopparoek Pitsanuwong, CPA
registration No.7764 of DIA International Audit Co., Ltd to be the Company’s auditors for the
year 2019, which was the 4 consecutive fiscal years and total amount of audit fees was
1,180,000 Baht.

6. The Company proceeds the meeting with the set agenda as orderly. No alternation or additional
of other agendas beyond as stated on invitation notice. All shareholders have the right to raise
questions, express opinion or any suggestion entirely on each agenda. At the Annual Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholder in 2019, 1 shareholder raised questions and gave additional
suggestions to the meeting.

7. The Company does a visual recording of the AGM for those shareholders who interest.
o After the AGM

1. The Company discloses resolutions of the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders with
voting results of each agenda in Thai and English versions via the website of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand within the meeting day or on the next day before 9.00 am.

2. To coordinate with company’s registrar (Thailand Securities Depository) for dividend payment to provide
all shareholders with equal rate.

3. The Minutes of the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders are provided in Thai and
English versions with complete factual details. Included in this are records of significant information of
resolutions of the meeting and the result of counting votes, which are divided into agree vote and
disagree vote, abstain vote and notes the significant statements, questions, explanations and opinions
of each agenda, which will be publicized on the Company’s website.

4. Minutes of the meeting are submitted to the Stock Exchange of Thailand and all regulatory agencies
concemed within 14 days after the AGM and are publicized on the Company’s website so as to allow
shareholders to check the data without having to wait until the next AGIM.

5. Minutes of the meeting are systematic kept for the matters to audit and can be its reference. The
suggestions and comments received from shareholders to evaluate the quality of the Annual Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders are taken into consideration and find the ways to improve and
develop for the next AGM.

2. Treating Shareholders with Equality and Fairness

The Company treats all shareholders with equality and faimess without giving the benefit especially to anyone
of majority shareholders, minority shareholders, foreign shareholders or institutional investors. All shareholders can
have confidence that their rights will be protected and fairly treated with facility to fully exercise their sufficient votes
as follows:

2.1 The Right to attend the Shareholders’ Meeting

e The Company provides the opportunity for minor shareholders to exercise the rights to propose
agenda items and qualified nominees for election as directors in advance before 2019 Annual
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders by publishing during 1 — 30 December 2018, as defined
on the rules and regulations of the Company. The announcement of rules for the shareholders to
exercise their rights has been published via the information of the Stock Exchange of Thailand and
the Company’s website. The result of the consideration will be informed with the explanation to the



shareholders to acknowledge at the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

e For the 25" Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders held on April 22, 2019, the Company
sent out an invitation notice to all shareholders with sufficient information to prepare accurate relevant
documents and use them to support their consideration to exercise the votes on each agenda. The
supplementary documentation comprises annual report, note to the financial statements, information
on eligible candidates for the directors, B Form proxy, proxy procedure, the Company’s Articles of
Association that's related to the meeting, map of the meeting venue as enclosure on March 29,
2019 which is 21 days prior to the meeting date. These documents will be complete and sufficient
to enable shareholders to prepare correct documents and make their decision in voting on each item
of the agenda or to give proxy in case they would be unable to attend the meeting. In the case of
foreign shareholders, the Company prepares the invitation notice to the meeting with supplementary
documentation in English version.

e Detail on invitation notice to attend shareholders’ meeting will be complete and sufficient with the
opinion of the Company’s directors. No additional agenda items or change of important information
are introduced without advance notice to shareholders. The rules and procedure to attend the Annual
Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders will be informed on invitation notice. The shareholders
who themselves are unable to participate in the meeting can authorize a proxy to attend the meeting
on their behalf and the proxy rights can be given to an individual or an independent directors with
the name list as provided in the invitation notice. The authorization can be executed by using the
proxy form B sent out with the invitation notice. Shareholders can download other proxy forms as
appropriate from the Company’s website.

e The Company has published an advertisement of the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
on the daily newspaper for 3 consecutive days prior to the meeting day in comply with the law.
The Company also publicizes invitation notice with relevant documents in Thai and English on the
Company’s website which is 30 days prior to the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders.

e The Company has defined the right to vote at the meeting to be along with the numbers of share
that are holding. One right has one vote. None of shareholder has privilege right.

e The shareholders are provided to register using barcode system 2 hours prior to the meeting. After
this registration period has lapsed, shareholders who wish to attend the meeting can register to
attend without losing their rights.

e The Company facilitates the shareholders who give proxy to the others to attend the meeting on
behalf by fixing the excise stamps on the proxy, free of charge.

e The meeting has conducted in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association and relevant
laws. The consideration and vote are in accordance with the meeting agenda set forth for making
decision to elect the director individually and to consider the director’s remuneration including the
appointment of the Company’s auditor and other agendas as set on the invitation notice.To vote in
each agenda, which is proceeded openly, the Company distributes ballots to all shareowners/proxy
holders during the registration. Voting on each agenda is done with the ballots voting cards and they
are safely kept in the safe place and could be audited. Beside the relevant meeting documents that
all shareholders already have got, during the meeting, the Company will present the information in
the type of VTR to facilitate the shareholders.

e After the Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders, the Company will inform the resolution of
the meeting via the news system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand on that same day and informs
detail of remuneration payment. And to coordinate with the company’s registrar (Thailand Securities
Depository) to pay dividend to all shareholders with equal rate.

2.2 Regulated the Use of Inside information

e The Company has policies to regulate the use of inside information in written on ethics for the directors,
executives and employees. All directors, executives, employees and related persons such as spouses and
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minor children including the staffs who work in the units that are concerned to the information and use of
this inside information, which are significant issues for the change of the Company’s securities pricing and
are still not disclosed to the public for securities’ trade of the Company within 1 month prior to the disclosure
of the financial statements. This is to protect the misuse of inside information. It was published on Intranet
and website of the Company.

The Company implants employees to add their values with the concept “beauty from within” (the beauty from
inner to outer) by treating themselves to be faithful and responsible with the discipline and consciousness to
the public. No seek of benefit on their position for themselves or the others as stated on employees’ ethics.

The Company sets Annual Board Calendar and informs to the Company’s Board of Directors in advance to
inform them not to trade in the Company’s securities. In 2019, the directors and executives of the Company
acted in strict compliance with the policy, resulting in no trading of company securities during the silent
period.

The Company determines guideline to maintain and prevent the regulated use of inside information in
written and announces above guideline and policy to everyone in the organization to practice whereas the
executives monitor it regularty.

2.3 Trade of the Company’s Securities

e The Company has measures to supervise trade in securities of the Company in written on employees’

ethics, which prohibit directors, executives, and employees, having access to inside information from
trading in the Company’s securities, 1 month before public disclosure of the Financial Statements.

The Board of Directors and executives are required to report the trade of the Company’s securities to
Company Secretary at least one day before trading. Company Secretary has duty to report such matter
to the meeting of the Board of Directors and executives’” meeting.

The Company requires its directors and executives, including spouses and minor children to report
holding of securities of the Company and any changes thereof to the Office of Securities Exchange
Commission that complied with Section 59 of the Securities and the Exchange Act within 3 days from
the date of such change. The report of the Company’s securities holding of the directors and executives
including of spouses shall be defined as the regular agenda of the Board Meeting and the executive’s
meeting. In addition, the Company includes any item concerming the report on securities holding of
directors and executives, including spouses and minor children, in the regular meeting agenda of the
Board of Directors and Executive Committee.

In 2019, directors and executives of the Company acted in strict compliance with the policy, resulting
in no trading of the Company’s securities during the silent period and there was no change of securities
holding of the Company.

2.4 Supervision over Assets Transaction

e The Company supervises over assets transaction in accordance with the announcement by the Capital

Market Supervisory Board regarding the acquisition of assets, whereby the Directors with possible
conflict of interests are not allowed to participate, so as to facilitate fairess and transparency

2.5 Conflict of Interest

e The Company carefully and reasonably manages conflict of interest based on the highest benefit of

the Company. The Company sets operational system with transparency and strict adherence to the
regulation of the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Regarding related transactions that may bring about
conflict of interest, these would be governed by the process of related transactions with fairness and
according to market price as per normal business.” Fair and at arms’ length” The transactions are
proposing to the Audit Committee to consider for expressing opinion before proposing to the Board
of Directors’ Meeting for considering an approval. The Company published the resolution of meeting
via the news system of the Stock Exchange of Thailand in Thai and English language in order that
shareholders and investors can have acknowledgement. The transactions are notified and disclosed
to the meeting with specific details which include name and relationship of the related party, pricing



policy, value of transaction, parties involved, the need for such transactions, as well as the opinions
of the Audit Committee, the Company’s Board of Director as well as differing views (if any).

e The Company has clear path not to allow the directors or executives who are stakeholders or are
related with the consideration procedure to approve the transaction between the Company and the
said stakeholders or related parties. At the Board of Directors’ meeting, directors who have a stake in
the transaction must leave the conference room and must refrain from voting on this agenda in order
to allow the Board of Directors and executives to have fair consideration for truly being the highest
benefit of shareholders.

e Directors and senior executives are required to report of their equity and other related persons to the
Company Secretary for copying the report and further sends it to the Chairman and Chairman of the
Audit Committee which in comply with the rules as prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Act.
And to report every time if there is any change.

2.6 Treat of Minority Shareholders
Agen r in Minority Shareholder

e During 1% December - 30" December 2018, the Company had offered the opportunity to minor
shareholders to propose any agenda deemed appropriate and to nominate persons to be elected as
Directors for inclusion on the agenda item at the 25" Annual Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
in 2019. The Company had publicized it via the channels of the Stock Exchange of Thailland and the
Company’s website. However after the due date, It appeared that there were no any agenda item
proposed and no candidate nominated by shareholders and this had been informed to the Board
of Directors’ Meeting by the Company Secretary. Therefore, no additional agendas are proposed by
shareholders.

3. Role of Stakeholders

The Board of Directors places importance to the rights of all stakeholder group. In order for
stakeholders to be ensured that their rights are protected and that they are treated fairly and equitably,
a policy guideline was stated in business ethics, which are publicized for directors, executives and
employees on the Company’s website www.occ.co.th and Intranet System of the Company, for everyone
to commit to responsibility and respect for the rights of each other.

Treat to the Vari takeholders of th mpan

Shareholders : The shareholders’ rights has been respected, and treated at equal basis either the major
shareholders, minor shareholders, foreign shareholders and institutional investors. All shareholders will have
fundamental rights and be treated equally. There is a mechanism to ensure the shareholders that they have
accurate information with the control of related transaction, the measurement to prevent conflict of interest
and the regulated use of information in the private benefit of one kind. The Company operates the business
with faithfulness, transparency and fairness for having good performance of operation, sustainable growth
with ability to compete by caring of present risk condition and future risk condition for adding value to the
shareholders in long term.

Employees : Employees are the Company’s valuable resources, therefore to take good care among
each other for all over, are so important. The Company enhances and supports the good care of welfare and
living quality for all employees as its best. Remuneration are paid appropriately and fairly with happy working
place’s atmosphere in order to retain these resources which are the Company’s important manpower.

New technology is rendered to support working performance. The Company emphasizes on developing
and improving the system of personnel development, therefore employees will be modern with the compliance
of new technology. To enhance and encourage employees to be either smart and good persons, the
Company offers an opportunity to everyone for practicing to improve their working skills and showing of
the capability of their teams and own competence of oneself. The “Career Patch” is developed for building
up career security and progressiveness basing upon individual capability. Appropriate remuneration, which
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grants for stimulating working motive, comes in the form monthly salary, annual bonus and allowance for
working operation that complies to the Company’s regulation. Furthermore, Individual Development Plan (IDP)
is planned to encourage the employees to develop and improve their competence to have the leadership
as following to Succession Plan for the future.

The Company sets up a policy for all employees to participate in caring of the Company’s environment
by establishing the “Committee of Occupational Safety, Health and Environment of the Workplace” to work
for the safety and hygiene. The Company conducts the examination of safety in working areas regularly.
Security staffs are available for 24 hours. Security system is installed inside of the buildings as well as other
tools and equipment which are provided for employees’ safety. The Company encourages employees
to have accurate knowledge for the usage of safety equipment. Safety system and safety equipment are
always prepared to be ready for use anytime. The Company conducts annual training of fire-fighting drills
for employees in both theory and practice.

The Company places importance on long-term benefit of employees, therefore a provident fund
is established to help employees’ saving for future needs. Long Period of Membership’s employees
will receive contribution money payable by the Company with progressive rate. An employee who
has worked for an uninterrupted period of 10 years and 20 years upward, will receive contribution
payable with the rate higher than as fixed by law at the rate 3.5 % and 4 %, respectively. Retirement
annuity is paid for the benefits of employees upon retirement. For employees who has worked for an
uninterrupted period of 20 years, the Company will provide retirement annuity which is higher than
as defined in labor laws. Furthermore, group accident insurance provides coverage around the clock in
order to prevent and mitigate risks losing for employees and families. This is an additional item on social
insurance fund membership.

Employees Development : The Company arranges the developmental program concentrate improving
overall competency of employees and individual employee’s skill for building up solid organization which
can achieve the Company’s vision. Therefore, various training courses are provided to improve working
skills of all level employees with systematic and support each other. This combined power drives force
for competitive change with efficiency.ln 2019, the Company has conducted various training courses to
develop employees’ knowledge with an average of 7 hours per person.

Additional information concerning to employees is disclosed on “Personal” page no. 174 - 178

Customers : The Company implants all employees to provide the utmost pleasure to customers at
every unit of service for giving response to demand with effectiveness and efficiency. The Company has
strong intension to develop the products and services with good quality and safety in order to deliver the
best items to customers in term of both quality and price as well as to pay attention on keeping confidential
of all customers. The Company’s Call Center is established to provide customer relations services for
receiving customers’ complaints or suggestions and to provide products’information as well as the service
to customers by contact directly to Tel. n0.02-295-1333 or Fax no.02 -295-0411. The Company’ staffs
will give service with prompt responses for reaching to all customers’ satisfaction.

In 2019, no significant complaint was available. Other complaints were considered and then immediately
fixed in order to avoid the same problem to be occurred again. All these are for serving the utmost satisfaction
to customers with the Company’s products and services because of “You are our valued Customer”.

Business Partners : The Company places importance on business partners as partnerships who
are grown up together. The Company treats all business partners with fairness and honest as stated on
trade agreement as well as to keep practicing along with commmitment strictly. Appropriate purchase price
is considered upon reasonable value with good quality, standard of safety and hygiene based on fair
competition framework, in complied with business ethics. The Company clearly determines regulations for
procure, purchase and other procedure. The Company is not require for property or take any benefit from
partnerships. The Company supports any procure that is friendly to the environment. The Company avoids
to purchase products from partners who infringement the human rights or intellectual property, and the
business partners who are illegal.

In 2019, no business partners has breached the trade agreements.



Trade Competitors : The Company conducts business with responsibilities for all parties involved and places
importance on trade competition in good faith that complies with the laws, and faithful trade competition without
seeking confidential information of competitors with unfair or inappropriate manners as well as to destroy their
reputation or defamation. The Company has defined the ethics as a policy to operate its business within the
regulations of fair trade competition by supporting and promoting free trade with fairness and no monopoly
trade. During the business operating period, the Company has no disputes with its trade competitors.

Creditors : The Company persists in operating its business with the principles and disciplines in order to
ensure the creditors with reliability. The policy and guideline for practicing are as follows:

1. Treat all group of creditors with equality and fairness
2. Practice along with signed agreements and any other conditions strictly

3. Operate business to ensure creditors’ confidence that the Company’s financial status is firm and has
ability to pay for debt

4. Disclose the Company’s financial status accurately and on time

5. In case the Company fails to perform any of the conditions, the Company will inform creditors in
advance in order to seek for solution to solve problem and prevent it from damage.

In 2019, the Company paid to all creditors in accordance with payment term as agreed, and no
default.

Society, Community and Environment : The Company places importance on social development as well
as to support culture conservation and local traditions by having cooperation with various organizations
to develop society and community includes the build of good relationship between the Company and
community society through the support of activities that continuously give benefit to society as follows:

- Toengage in “OCC in cooperate with Civil State to develop Knowledge to Career Path”
- To provide the hair technicians to do haircut for disadvantaged groups

- To provide makeup artists and the cosmetics to apply makeup to the artists, singers and actors for
the charity events.

- To conduct profession makeup courses for the youths, general persons and disadvantaged persons
in the shelters with free of charge.

- To hold the activity “Birth Month Love Sharing” by supporting the Company’s employees to celebrate
their birthdays by sharing of kindness to those disadvantaged persons who stay in the shelters.

To have the responsibility towards the society, community and environment is the Company’s important
policy. The Company implants employees to aware of waste reduction inside and outside the organization by
minimizing the use of materials that may cause pollution and unbalance environment. The Company has the
campaign of reducing the use of electricity by taking the stairs instead of taking elevator and turn off the light
during lunch break as well as to enhance to communicate via Internet and Intranet to reduce the use of paper.
To enhance to REUSE following the 3R guideline which composes of Reduce, Reuse and Recycle together
with participating in saving environment, culture and tradition to be with Thai social forever.

The Company’s CSR information is disclosed on page 122 - 144

Govemnment Sectors : The Company conducts its business with integrity, hence revenues has been
paid accurately and completely along with the period as defined by the laws. Revenue comprises of juristic
income tax, value added tax, withholding tax, property tax, import tax, juristic stamp inclusive of other
government fees that related to all of the Company’s business operation.

The Company adheres to the principles of Good Governance in administration. The Company has
anti-corruption’s policy, no bribery, including not to give or to involve in bribery to government or private
sectors for benefit of themselves or the others. The Company avoids not to be participated in any activities
that shall lead to the problem of corruption for government and private sectors.
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Guideline and Policy on Human Rights : The Company places importance on human rights by giving
respects to equality of everyone. The Company operates its business by following the laws and human

rights’ principles. They all are treated with equality by not separating of the gender, nationality, religious,
politic or any other matters. The Company has defined the policy and guideline as for being business ethics,
connecting to the employees’ working under the Labor Law which covers human rights of the employees
strictly. Employees have the rights to prove themselves in the case of being claimed as guilty or fraud.
There is no unfair dismissal. Employees are educated to understand the principle of human right for using
it in their livings and workings. All employees have their rights and freedom to operate their work equally
as well as to have the progress in their career.

In addition, the Company supervises and protects the business not to be involved with infringement of
human rights abuses such as not to take advantage on employees, no support on the force of labor, protest
the child labor by having unemployment of the persons at the age below 18 years to be the Company’s
employees and no illegal labor. During the period of business operation, the Company has no such of
lawsuit relating to the infringement of human rights.

Palicy on Intellectual Property : The Company has a policy not to involve with violation of intellectual
property or to copy or to use the intellectual property of the others without asking for permission. The Company
implants consciousness to the employees to anti and refrain from using the copied products as well.

The Company has authorized permission to distribute the products under international brand names
and treats firmly in accordance with trading term. The Company has created its own house brand’s trade
mark to give response to the customers’ demand, by working and developing with the manufacturers
continuously. In passing years, the Company had no violation on the intellectual property.

Anti-Corruption’s Palicy : The Company has a policy against all kinds of corruption and does not encourage
the executives and employees to gain their success from the corruption, to provide or receive a bribe
to gain the benefit for the Company, oneself or the others. It includes of not to provide or be engaged
in bribing the both public and private sectors, for the benefit of their own or of the others. However the
Company abides by the anti-corruption policy seriously and conducts to adjust and set the updated system
of internal control and various operating procedure to comply with the anti-corruption policy. The Company
builds up awareness, knowledge and understanding about the anti-corruption policy efforts, including the
disciplinary penalty, to directors, executives and employees to prevent and reduce the corruption risk by
providing the communications, PR and the training of the policies and practices in anti-corruption efforts,
inclusive of the disciplinary punishment to executives, supervisors and all levels of employees, as well as
to the orientation of new employees to understand about anti-corruption.

The Company has taken measures to anti-corruption policy continuously. There is a process to monitor
and evaluate the corruption risk as well as to have a plan to prevent the risk as mentioned. The Company
determines to review the evaluation of the corruption risk that is emphasized on the service with the government
sectors, which concerns to the key business of the Company, especially with the internal control system
by considering upon the effect as priority. The Company’s internal audit unit has duty to investigate and
propose to the Audit Committee Meeting to verify the internal control system and to monitor the result of
the internal audit. If fraud is found, the internal audit unit shall report it directly to the Audit Committee and
the Audit Committee shall report it to the Board of Directors, respectively. In the past year, the Company
has strictly practiced in compliance with the mentioned policy and found no significant irregularities.

In 2019, the Company renews membership of Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition
against Corruption (CAC-Recertification) by CAC Committee for the quarter 3/2562 dated on November
4, 2019.

For more information, please view on page 218 - 219 of this annual report

Communication Channels for Stakeholders : The Company has defined Whistleblowing Policy which
is for giving information of significant issues about accuracy of financial statement, deficiency of internal
control, or illegal and unethical practices. Those who send notice of complaint to the Company, will be
protected with appropriation and fairness. They would be protected from being bullied by that complaint.




The Company provides channels for all stakeholders to be able to report or to claim on the issues that
may cause damage to the Company or on the matters that the stakeholders have been violated or in the
matter of corruption by sending clue notification or giving comments directly to Managing Director and
CEO, Audit Committee, and one Director of the Company or either way as follows:

1. By post to the Company’s address at 729/4-7 Radchadaphisek Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa, Bangkok
10120

2. By email to :
2.1 Audit Committee E-mail: auditCommittee@occ.co.th
2.2 Company Secretary E-mail: law@occ.co.th
2.3 Audit Manager E-mail: audit@occ.co.th
2.4 Human Resource Manager E-mail: hrd@occ.co.th

3. Verbal complaint or written note can send directly to the Company’s address addressing to following
receivers:

- Manager of Interal Audit Unit Tel no. 02-295-4545 ext. 691
- Human Resource Manager Tel no. 02-295-4545 ext. 118
- Company Secretary Tel no. 02-295-4545 ext. 433

In 2019, the Company received no complaints for any corruption or the break of morality or the
negative reputation of the Company.

Complaints Management

Those who received the complaints will investigate and collect all facts, or may assign any one or
reliable unit to investigate such facts and collect complaint documents, which are from communication
channels for making conclusion of suggestions and all points. Then it will be presented to the Board of
Directors for considering to establish a committee to investigate and study of such complaints for getting
of judicial process to investigate and consider to punish offenders. In case the evidence is obviously shown
that whistleblowers or complainers mean to complain with dishonesty, they may be punished in accordance
with each case as follows:

1. If they are the Company’s employees, the investigation for punish consideration as complied with
the Company’s Work Principle Manual.

2. If they are not the Company’s employees and such complaints cause damage, the Company may
consider to proceed with lawsuit to those complainers.

Th mpany will den mplaints on event r action follows:

1. Cases of complaints which the Company has accepted for consideration or has been completely
investigated, and has no addition of significant evidence.

2. Cases of those who are complained with termination of employment is over five years.

3. Cases of complainants which has insufficient or unclear evidence for identify the practice of corruption
for investigation to find out the truth.

M re to protect Whistleblowers or Complainer:

1. The Company will keep the data of whistleblowers or complainers as confidential, and disclose it as
necessary for their safety and to protect damage which may cause whistleblowers or complainers.
(In case whistleblowers or complainers undisclosed Name — Surname, they must provide detail of
the truth or evidence which is sufficient to express the action of corruption or offence.)

2. Whistleblowers or the complainers can require for the protection as necessary and as needed.

3. No demotion, no punishment, or negative affect to employees who say no to corruption though it
may cause loss of the Company’s business opportunity.

189



190

4. Complainants will obtain a relief by having method or procedure which are fair and appropriate.
nfidentialit
The information which are from whistleblowers or complainers will be kept confidential, and will
not disclose it to those who are not involved, except for the case that requires to investigate the truth,

prosecution, witness, statement and to corporate with the court or other government sectors which has
authority as defined by law.

4. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

Disclosure of [T is important, therefore the Company set up measurement to disclose financial reports and
non-financial information which are accurate, transparent, complete significant, sufficient, timely and reliable, both
in Thai and English. Disclosure of information, which is for those related parties to receive it for their accurate
consideration, is published via communication channels such as SET Link of the Stock Exchange of Thailand,
annual report (Form 56-2), annual registration statement (Form 56-1) and the Company’s website: www.occ.coth

Furthermore, the Company defines practice guidelines of employees, executives and directors on the Company’s
corporate governance policy, for conducting the Company’s business to be in compliance with the law, the
Company’s principles of articles, the Stock Exchange of Thailand and regulated prescribe by the Office of the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). This will verify to maintain reliability and add value to the shareholders.
The Company defines the policy for the directors, executives and persons involved to report of the interest which
is concerned to the Company’s management as regulations and mechanisms as follows:

m Report when assuming the directorship or executive position for the first time.
m Report upon changes of interest.

m Directors and executives are required to submit the Report of Interest to the Company Secretary.
The Company Secretary will submit the Report of Interest to the Chairman of the Board and Audit
Committee within 7 days from the date of receipt such report.

m Directors and executives, as well as their spouse and minor children will report their trading and
holding of company securities, and to report any changes thereof to the Board of Directors meeting.

The Company’s significant information was disclosed to the public complying with the law, the Company’s
Principles of Articles, regulated prescribe by the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC)
such as

1. Disclosure of accurate and transparent financial statements in accordance with the importance of general
certified accounting standard whether it is financial or nonfinancial according to the regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission within the
designated time and discloses information accurately, completely, timely and transparently both in Thai
and English language via channels of the Stock Exchange of Thailand’s website and the Company’s
website.

2. Disclosure of corporate governance policy, business ethics and employee ethics in Thai and English
language via the Company’s website.

3. Regarding disclosure of related transactions, the Company follows the rules and regulations of the
Stock Exchange of Thailand and the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company
discloses meeting’s resolution, name of persons responsible for the transaction and complete detail
of related items, including setting clear and fair guidelines for execution of the transaction in order to
prevent conflicts of interest reasonably.

In 2019, the Board of Directors’ Meeting approved resolution and disclosed 1 item of related transaction
as follows:



Relationship/Related Persons
Related Company . . ltem Type Item Value
Stakeholders Directors Major Shareholders

Tiger Distribution & Mr. Manu » Saha Pathana Rent (paid) Amount would
Logistics Co., Ltd. (Tiger)  Leelanuwatana Inter-Holding Public not exceed
Company Limited 3 million Baht
Holding shares of per year
Tiger 15 %

Holding shares of
OCC 14.36%

* ICC International PLC
Holding shares of
Tiger 19.90%
Holding shares of
OCC 19.73%

Directors who are stakeholders did not attend the meeting and did not vote on that agenda.

4. Disclosure of duties of the Board of Directors and the Committees such as numbers of meeting
(more detail is shown on the Summary of Meeting Statistic on page 215 - 216)

. Disclosure of type of remuneration, description and amount of remuneration for individual director,
structure and ratio of shareholding of the directors and executives inclusive of cross-shareholding
structures of major shareholders

. The Company has communication channels for stakeholders to inform a clue or significant
information that related with the accuracy of financial statements, any flaws in the internal control
system, or illegal and unethical practice via the Company’s website www.occ.coth & investors &
anti-corruption o whistleblowing or complaint of corruption. The Company provides measures to
protect whistleblowers and keep their identity confidential.

. Regarding investor relation, the Company has appointed the person to be responsible to communicate
with shareholders, investors, analysts and concerned parties. Contact address is as follows:

Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasringkarn

Accounting-Finance Division Director

Tel. No. 02-295-4545 ext 508 Tax No. 02-295-0417
Email: cef@occ.co.th

Current significant information of the Company is completely complied with the principles of good
governance and is publicized on the website: www.occ.co.th which all information can be downloaded.

. In 2019, O.C.C. PLC together with 12 listed companies within the Saha Group of companies
in collaboration with the Stock Exchange of Thailand organized an Opportunity Day Event '11th
Analysts and Investors Meet Saha Group' at the 23rd Forum of SAHA EXPORT Fair Exhibition
at Silk Room 3-4, Bangkok International Trade and Exhibition, Bangna on 28 June 2019. Mrs.
Teerada Ambhanwong, the Company’s Managing Director and CEO has provided information and
replied inquiries of the Company’s business operation and result of performance. The feedback
was positive response. Directory book which contained information and operate performance of
the companies in Saha Group were available for investors and analysts.
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5. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors has prescribed its structure as comprising persons having a diverse
range of knowledge (Board Diversity), capabilities and experiences, whether in management, marketing, law
and/or finance The Board of Directors has important roles in stipulating the Company’s policy by cooperating
with the senior executives to set plan both in short term and long term of financial policy, corporate governance,
risk management, overall of organization and against corruption.

5.1 Structure of the Board of Directors

The Company’s management structure consists of the Board of Directors and 6 Committees which
have been appointed by the Board of Directors. Committees comprise of Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee, Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, Risk Management Committee and
Executive Committee. They have duties on specific issues and to propose issues to the Board of Directors to
consider or acknowledge. Thus, all related parties are ensure for the Company’s operation.
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Composition of the Board of Directors

As at December 31, 2019, the Board of Director comprised of 9 directors as follows:
m Chairman 1 person

She or he must be none-executive, is not managing director or the member from the same
family of the managing director

m  None-executive Director 4 persons
= Audit Committee 3 persons

They are independent directors, two persons from three have graduated in accounting. Portion
of independent directors equals to 33.33% of the Board of Directors.

m Executive Director 1 person

Authority of the Directors

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, 2 directors have authorities to co-sign and affix the
corporate seal on its behalf. Therefore, the Board of Director may name the directors who have authority to
co-sign and affix the corporate seal on its behalf.

Definitions of the In ndent Direct

The Company’s “Independent Directors” are the persons who have independence and qualification that
are complied with the criteria of the Capital Market Supervisory Board. Qualified information of independent
director is appeared on subject 8.3 Nomination and Appointment of the Director and Senior Executive with the
caption of “Regulations to select the Independent Director” on page 206 - 208 of this report.

Process for Nomination of Directors

The Nomination Committee has duty to nominate the qualified persons, who have diverse range of
knowledge and with expertise in various professional fields, to be the Company’s directors in compliance with
the “Board Diversity” policy. Nominee for directors will be considered on their knowledge and qualification
which are in compliance with the business operating strategy of the Company, leadership, vision, ethics
and morality. Their working resume are transparent. They have ability to express their opinion independently,
prohibited characteristic under the law and the Company’s Articles of Association including of qualification as
defined on Board of Director Skill Matrix. Nominees will be proposed to the Board of Directors’ meeting for
considering on their qualification and making decision prior to the AGM to shareholders’ meeting to consider
for further selection. In case a vacancy of director is not by rotation, nominees who have qualification that meet
with criteria of nomination process, will be proposed to the Board of Directors’ meeting for the appointment to
be the Company’s directors taking place of vacant position.

Additional information of process for nomination of directors is shown in the caption of Nomination of
Directors and Executives on page 208.

Directorial Term

The Company has not established requirement relating to maximum age and has not fixed the maximum
amount of directorial term. This is because we believe that the ability to manage business and the expertise of
each director are not dependent upon their age, as long as they can utilize their knowledge and experience for
the benefit of the Company. Furthermore, the shareholders remain have trust on them and they are be re-elected
to continue their directorial term.

Directorial term of the Committees which comprise of Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee,
Nomination Committee, Corporate Governance Committee, Risk Management Committee and Executive
Committee is valid for 1 year. All committees’ members have been appointed by the Board of Director and may
be re-elected upon the completion of directorial term.
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Num f th

m that the Director holding their Position

The Company has not fix the maximum number of the companies for which the directors serve. This is
because we believe that the ability to manage business and the expertise of each director are not dependent
upon the number of the companies for which their serve, as long as they can utilize their knowledge and
experience for the benefit of the Company. Currently, there are no directors who hold more than 5 listed

companies.

Information of working experience and directorial term of each director is disclosed on Form 56-1 and
on page 211 - 214 of this annual report.

Segregation of the Authority among Chairman of the Board and Managing Director

The Board of Directors has appointed the Company’s chairman and managing director. The Board of
Directors determined the written scope of their duties and responsibilities for balancing of authorities. Details of
authority and responsibility of Chairman are as follows:

m Authority and Responsibility of Chairman of the Board

1.

5

Being responsible as the leader of the Board of Directors with corporate governance
and overseeing duties of the Board of Directors and other Committees.

Being the chairman of the Board of Directors’ meeting, is a casting vote if the meeting
has a vote and the votes are equal.

Calling Board of Directors’ meeting or assign someone to do on behalf.

Being the chairman of the Shareholders’ meeting, to control the meeting to be complied
with the Company’s articles of association and conduct the meeting to follow the agenda
as stated on invitation notice.

Performing any other matters as assigned by the Board of Directors.

m Authority and Responsibility of Managing Director

1.

194

To have the power to administer the operations of the Company pursuant to policies, law,
objectives, Articles of the Company, resolutions of the meeting of shareholders, resolutions of
the Board of Directors, resolutions of the Executive Committee, as well as relevant regulations
and procedures.

To have the power to issue orders and carry out any act as necessary and appropriate in order
to satisfactorily carry out the functions under article 1., and in the case of an important matter, a
report shall be made and/or notice shall be given to the Board of Directors and/or the Executive
Committee.

To consider the recruitment, appointment, transfer, removal, including appraisals and disciplinary
measures, as well as to determine remuneration and welfare benefits of employees. In any
event, any action taken must not be contrary to or inconsistent with the authority of the Executive
Committee.

To have the power to issue regulations on the Company’s operations, such regulations not being
inconsistent with or contrary to the policies, articles, regulations, rules, orders and resolutions of
the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.

To have the power to grant approval for sourcing and to invest in fixed assets for the amount
not exceeding Baht 50 million.

To have the power to grant approval for investment and to sell investment in ordinary shares for
the amount not exceeding Baht 10 million.



7. To have the power to grant approval for investment and to sell short-term investment for the
amount not exceeding Baht 50 million.

8. To have the power to grant approval to authorize the Company’s engagement in juristic acts
involving non-financial transactions of the amount not exceeding Baht 10 million.

9. To report any proceeding under Articles 5, 6 and 7 to the Board of Directors and/or the
Executive Committee as appropriated at the next meeting.

10. To grant and/or delegate powers to other persons to perform specific tasks on behalf of
the Managing Director

11. The above authorities of the Managing Director cannot be exercised in the case where the
Managing Director is a stakeholder or has a conflict of interests in any manner with the
Company.

12. The above powers of the Managing Director shall not be exercised in the event of the
Managing Director’s having a potential personal interest in or a conflict of interests of any
character with the Company.

13. Tocarry out any other act as entrusted by the Board of Directors and/or Executive Committee.

The Company Secretary

The Company has appointed Mrs.Choopan Imthong to be the Company Secretary since May
14, 2008 for having duty as designated by law and as assigned by the Board of Directors. Duties and
responsibilities of the Company Secretary can be found on page 173 of this annual report.

Committees

The Board of Directors has appointed a number of the Committees whose members are appropriately qualified
in the specific areas of responsibility. The Committees consist of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee, the Risk Management Committee and the Executive
Committee.

The Board of Directors has issued a charter for each of the committees to prescribe the tenure and scope
of their respective powers and duties, details of which are on page 199 - 206 of this annual report.

Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

L hip and Vision

The Board of Directors comprises individuals who have knowledge, expertise and experience beneficial
to the Company (Board Diversity), as well as having leadership, independence and discretion in decision making.
They look after the benefit for all related parties as professional. They have important roles to define the Company’s
vision, mission and strategy by having considered in the agenda of the Board of Directors’ meeting annually to
achieve the Company’s goals and objectives. The Company places importance on creating innovation for the
development of the organization to catch with the rapid change by implementing IT as an important role as well

as to have a policy to review it as set agenda and situation that is changed for being complied with the policy
of operating business that gives responsibility towards society and environment.

In addition, the Board of Directors are the ones who approve with the strategy, goal, operating plan
and the Company's annual budget which have been proposed by the management. There is a mechanism to
corporate, monitor and implement of the Company’s strategy to practice. The management is defined to report
the result of the operation as defined strategy besides the report of the operating results and other important
matters to the Board of Directors to acknowledge on a quarterly basis. To induce operational efficiency and
effectiveness, by commencing on the utmost benefit of the Company, shareholders and all related parties as
important according to the principles of good governance.
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Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors recognizes the importance of good corporate governance, as it is a part of
business operation’s policy, which always be amended for its current and suits with the changed situation of
economy and society. The Company announces the implement of good corporate governance’s practice as
well as to provide handbook form to the Company’s directors, members of all committees, executives and
employees. The Board of Directors follows up the implementation of its corporate governance principles in order
to promote good management systems. Those who do not adhere to such policy and principles may face
disciplinary action as appropriate and may also face legal action in cases where any laws are violated. In cases
where an employee is doubtful or unable to follow an instruction or make a decision, he/she may raise the
issue with the supervisor up the chain of command. Should there be any dispute, a directive by the President,
Executive Committee and the Board of Directors should prevail as a final judgment.

The Company has disclosed the “Principles of Corporate Governance (2nd edition)” via the Company’s
Intranet system and on the website: www.occ.co.th. Detail is on the caption of “Investor”, which comprises of
1) Good Corporate Governance Policy 2) 8 Principles of Good Corporate Governance Practices (CG Code)
3) Business Ethics and 4) Code of Conduct for the Company’s Directors, Executives and Employees.

Report of Vested Interest of Directors, Executiv nd Relat f

The Board of Directors has stipulated that the directors, executives and their related persons must
prepare and submit a report on vested interests as for being basic information to corporate vested interest at the
level directors and senior executives. The Company Secretary has duty to submit a summary report’s copies on
the vested interests of the directors, executives and their related persons and any subsequent changes thereof
to the Company’s chairman and chairman of the audit committee for acknowledgement within 7 days upon the
receipt of such report in order to implement it for audit and to corporate with the conflict of interests. Furthermore,
the Company has set agenda “Issue on Report of the Company Security holding by the Board of Directors and
the Executives” to be a regular agenda of the Board of Directors’ Meeting and Executive Committee’s Meeting
for reporting this to all parties to acknowledge.

Transaction with Possible Conflict of Interests

The Board of Directors has established guideline to carefully and reasonably manage with any transaction
which has or may have conflict of interests between shareholders, directors, executives and other related persons, who
may have other conflict, based on the highest benefit of the Company. In such case, the transaction price is based
on the same fair trading  conditions as trading with external persons. The information is accurately and completely
disclosed in accordance with the process upon the principles of independence and reason. The transparent transaction
is duly carried out in accordance with the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of
Thailand as significant.

To judge on related transaction that may bring about conflict of interest, these would be govermed by the
process of related transactions that with are notified and disclosed to the meeting with specific details which include
name and the relationship of the related persons, price palicy, value of transaction, parties involved, the need for such
transaction, as well as the opinions of the audit committee as well as differing views of the meeting resolution. Any
director with vested interest leaves the meeting room and abstained from voting on that agenda in order to allow the
other directors be able to express their opinions independently. The audit committee will corporate to judge it with
appropriation and express their opinions independently.

In 2019, the Board of Directors has approved 1 item of related transaction which was the approval to rent
a warehouse from the related persons.

The Company has none related transactions that violated and/or contravened the regulations of the Office
of Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.



The Board of Directors Meeting

The Board of Directors meeting’s schedule is pre-planned to be held on a monthly basis throughout
the year and shall be informed to all directors at the early of the year. The regular schedule is set for 6
meeting and extra ordinary meeting may be called in the case of appropriation. The Board of Directors
attaches importance to attendance at meetings and considers it a duty for Board members to attend every
meeting in order to acknowledge what transpires in the meetings, participate in policy formulation and
decision-making on the Company’s business direction. All directors are attend the Board of Directors’ Meeting
regularly, except in cases of incident or illness or having important mission that are unable to avoid. In this
case, their suggestions or opinions will be conveyed by Company Secretary to inform in the meeting for
acknowledgement and to monitor the result of that meeting.

Invitation letter, meeting agenda, minutes of the previous meeting with annexes are sent by the
Company Secretary to all directors at least 7 days before the meeting for acknowledgement and prior
consideration as legally stipulated, except in cases of emergency.

Chairman of the Board of Director and CEO jointly consult to consider matters which should be
included on the meeting agenda. In addition, members of the Board of Directors may raise any issue as
additional agenda by submitting their proposal to the Company’s Secretary, and have it discussed and debated
openly. Senior directors shall be invited to attend the meeting from time to time in order to acknowledge
the policy directly for effective practice.

The Company fixes no minimum number of meeting forums at the time of making resolution for the
exiting directors that not less than 2 of 3 of total numbers. Overview of previous Board of Directors’ Meeting,
all directors are participated except there is any important mission. As for the resolution, the meeting is
cast by major vote basis. One director has one vote. The directors with the most vested of interest shall not
participate in the meeting and/or vote for that issue. In case of equal vote, the Chairman of the meeting shall
vote for justice. The Company Secretary has duty to record the minutes of meeting in written covering entire
significant information and to complete it in certain time and propose to the meeting for acknowledgement
to be the 1st agenda at the next meeting. According to all number of the Board of Directors’ Meetings on
the agendas that have to determine the approval, the Board of Directors has voted unanimously, as regular.

The certified minutes of meeting shall be systematically filed at the Company’s Head office in the
form of original and electronic documents with annexes of each agenda for easy reference and detection.
In 2019, the Board of Directors held 7 meetings and detail of the meeting attendants of the directors is
disclosed on the article “List of Name, Position and Meeting Statistic of the Board of Directors” on page 168
and summary of meeting statistic of each committee in 2019 is shown on page 215 - 216 of this annual report.

Remuneration

The Board of Directors determines the policy of remuneration for the Company’s directors is based
on fairness and is responsibility. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for considering reasonable
amount of remuneration of directors. Criteria for consideration are based on the experiences, duties, scope
of work, roles, participation, and responsibilities of each individual director and executive by comparing
with the other companies which are in the same business group, same business expansion, growth and
performance of the company. The Company’s directors who are assigned to be the members of the sub
- committees, their remuneration will be paid more to cover their additional responsibilities by determining
this remuneration as the meeting allowance and annual remuneration. The amount shall be proposed to the
Board of Directors for consideration before submission to the Annual General Meeting of shareowners for
approval.
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Directors ' remuneration is in accordance with the following criteria:
1. Meeting Allowance
m The Board of Directors - paid to attending directors only Baht 6,000/meeting
= Audit Committee
- Chairman of Audit Committee Baht 20,000/meeting
Baht 15,000/meeting

m Executive Committee - paid to attending directors only Baht 5,000/meeting

- Committee

m  Other Committees - Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Risk Management
Committee, paid to attending directors who are non-executives Baht 5,000/meeting

In case there is more than 1 meeting in that month, remuneration for each Board or Committee will
be paid for 1 meeting.

2. Annual Remuneration - paid to all directors of the Company

Total remuneration payment of the Company’s directors will not exceed the amount which approved
by the shareholders’ meeting.

The executive remuneration is in accordance with the criteria and policy set by remuneration committee,
based on the Company’s operation and performance of each individual executive. In 2019, the amount of
remuneration paid to each individual on the Board of Directors and executives in 2019, are indicated in the
annual report and annual statements Form 56-1 on the caption of: Remuneration.

Directors and Executives Development

All directors and executives are encouraged to develop their knowledge and capabilities by attending
seminars and training programs which are useful to their performance as Directors. All directors had attended
directorial programs, as organized by the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD). The Company continually
promotes the development of knowledge amongst the Company’s directors and executives as organized by
the Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD), the Stock Exchange of Thailand, Thai Company Registration or
any independent institutes for the benefit of the Company’s improvement and development continuously.

m Information of Training Courses organized by Thai Institute of Directors Association (IOD)

Name of Directors DAP Class of DCP Class of
1. Mrs.Kanchana Saisiriporn - 32/2003
2. Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong 3/2003 51/2004
3. Mr.Manu Leelanuwattana 3/2003 68/2005
4. Mrs.Tipaporn ~ Chokwatana 3/2003 68/2005
5. Mrs.Watchanee Wattanathawanwong - 1/2000
6. Mr.Wanchai Umpueng-art 35/2005 102/2008

m Attendance and Seminar of the Company’s Directors and Executives in 2019

Leadershi Analysis of Salar DG 0 LIS
Top Executive orship A Y “Land, Buildings and Thai Financial
. Forum “Achieving Structure, Bonus q X .
Program in Apr o Relevant International | Reporting Standards:
Organizational and Welfare with . . )
Commerce and e g Financial Reporting TFRS 9
Name Agility Software in Digital 5 X
Trade(TEPCoT) S Standard’s Equipment by
by Thai Listed HR
by Commerce : . by Department 75 C.P.E. Co., Ltd
Companies by RSB Seminar X
Academy L of Business
Association Co., Ltd
Development
Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 4 4 = = =
Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong - - - - v
Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn - - - v -
Dr. Pattara Pathumarak - - 4 - -
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Furthermore, the Company had supported and encouraged the employees and related persons
who are involved with corporate governance of the Company to participate in the seminars and various
training courses organized by the Institute of Directors Association (IOD), the stock Exchange of Thailand,
Thai Company Registration or any independent institutes for the benefit of the Company’s improvement and
development with continuity.

m An Orientation for New Directors

The Company arranges for orientation course for the newly-appointed directors to prepare themselves
with the performance of duties as directors. The Company Secretary is assigned to provide key information
with explanation in order that all new directors will acknowledge the business policy of the Company and other
related information. They will have an opportunity to gain a more in-depth appreciation of the nature and scope
of the authority’s operations by visiting individual sites to view the facilities. They are provided the new director’'s
manual for the Listed Company Directors which comprise of the Company’s Code of Conduct, the Securities
and Exchange Act, the Public Limited Companies Act, the Principles of Good Cooperate Governance, and the
Charter of each Committee for acknowledgement of their roles, duties and responsibilities including legal binding
explanation, anti-corruption policy, rules and regulations as the status of the Listed Company Directors.

Succession Plan
m Senior Executives

The Company prepares a succession plan for the position of managing director, the high level
executives and in the primary line of each working section for those who are going to retire inclusive of the
executives who fail to continue their duties. Nomination committee and the Board of Directors will monitor
and evaluate working performance of the employees who are promoted to be the executives and have
qualification to be regularly considered. This succession plan must be reported to the Board of Directors to
acknowledge at least once a year, according to the criteria as following conditions:

1. To determine job titles for the persons who are considered to be encouraged to replace the
vacant positions with criteria to consider.

2. To nominate the persons who have qualification as required to be in the developed group of
persons for replacing the vacant positions.

3. To analyze the qualification of individual person to find out the advantage or things that need
improvement to be complied with each job title.

4. To arrange individual development plan for enhancing the potential development and competent
level of the persons who deserve to be nominated for replacing the vacant positions.

= Employees

Guideline to prepare readiness of the persons inside the organization, begins with the nomination
of smart with kind heart persons and are new generation, who have knowledge and capabilities. They are
encouraged to participate in the training courses that helps develop them to grow up with an opportunity to be
the executives in the future. Individual Development Plan (IDP) is arranged to encourage and develop the ability
of the employees who have potential to be the leader under succession plan.

Sub Committees

The Board of Directors has appointed other committees by segregating duties and responsibilities to each

committee in accordance with appropriated knowledge and expertise to be responsible for each duty and to operate
the business with carefulness. At present, the 6 committees comprise the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Risk Management Committee, the Corporate Governance Committee
and the Executive Committee.

Each committee has duty as stipulated on each charter as follows:
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A

it Committ:

The Audit Committee consists of 3 independent directors. They all are independent and have complete qualification
as required by the criteria of the Office of Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand as
follows:

Audit Committee Meeting
No. Name Position
No. of Meeting | No. of Attending

1. Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong | Chairman Independent Director 12 12

2. | Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art Committee | Independent Director 12 12

3. | Mr. Knit Kounavudhi Committee | Independent Director 12 12

Mrs. Choopan  Imthong Audit Committee’s Secretary

Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong and Mr.Wanchai Umpueng-art graduated in accounting with

financial — accounting knowledge. (their detail of working experience and educational background as shown
in the caption of “ Information of the Company’s Directors” on page 213 - 214) The audit committee has a
meeting once a month and the meeting minutes shall be reported to the Board of Directors. Mrs. Choopan
Imthong, the company secretary, acts as the secretary to the audit committee.

The

audit committee members have a term of office for 1 year. They will vacate the positions when they

resign or are removed or they are no longer the company’s directors. The audit committee members who
are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The audit committee has authority and responsibilities complying
with its charter as follows:

Authority

1.

To ensure correct understanding among the company’s auditor, the Board of Directors, and internal
audit unit.

To invite executives, members of the management, or relevant employees to provide explanations,

opinions or documents as necessary. The audit committee has authority to access corporate documents
of all levels.

3. Toinquire relevant individuals and matters within the extent or authority and duties of the audit committee.

4. To consult with the company’s specialists or consultants (if any), or hire third party as consultants or

specialists, if necessary, at the expenses of the company.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.

S
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To review and ensure correct and sufficient financial statements of the company including information
disclosure in accordance with the financial reporting standard.

To review and ensure availability of appropriate and effective internal control and internal audit system.
And to consider an independence of the internal audit unit, as well as to agree with consideration to
appoint, transfer and dismiss the chief of internal audit unit or other units which have responsibilities
with relevant for the internal auditor.

To review the anti-corruption compliance policy of the company.
To consider and approve the charter of internal audit unit.
To consider and approve the audit plan and monitor the compliance of internal audit unit.

To consider, select, nominate or remove independent individuals as the company auditors and
propose the remuneration for such auditor to the shareholders’ meeting for approval, and engage in
a meeting with the company auditors at least once a year without the participation of members of
the management.

To review related transactions or transactions with possible conflict of interests to ensure that compliance
with the laws and regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand is fulfilled, in order to ascertain that
such transactions and in the utmost benefit of the company.



10.

11.

12,
13
14,
15.
16.

To supervise the company to have channels for whistleblowers and complainers to receive the complaints
about transaction with inappropriate financial budget, fraud or other matters. Whistle-blowers have
confidence that the investigation process is independent, reliability and have an appropriate monitor
with the protection measure for whistleblowers.

To review that the company complies with the Securities and Exchange Act of Thailand, the regulations
of the Stock Exchange of Thailand, and the laws related to the company's business.

To prepare the report of audit committee for disclosure in the company's annual report. The report
must be signed by the chairman of audit committee and consists of the following as minimum:

(@) The opinion on accuracy, completeness and credibility of the company’s financial statement;
(b) The opinion on sufficiency of the company’s internal control system;

(c) The opinion on compliance with the laws on securities and exchange, regulations of the Stock
Exchange of Thailand and, or other laws applicable to the company’s business;

(d) The opinion on the suitability of the company auditors;
(e) The opinion on transactions with possible conflict of interests;
(f) The number of audit committee meetings, and attendance of each committee member;

(9) The overall opinion or observation regarding the audit committee performance of duties under
its charter;

(h) Other matters which the audit committee believes that the shareholders and investors should
be aware of that are within the extent of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of
Directors.

In the case where the audit committee’s finds or suspects of the following matters, which may have
significant effect on the financial status and the operation of the company, the audit committee must
report to the Board of Directors for suitable remedy within a timeframe deemed appropriate by the
audit committee:

(a) Transactions with conflict of interests;
(b) Fraud, irregularity or significant defect of the internal control system;

(c) Violation of the laws on securities and exchange, regulations of the Stock Exchange of Thailand
and laws applicable to the company’s business.

In the case where the Board of Directors or the responsible executives do not remedy such matter
within the timeframe specified by the audit committee, a member of the audit committee may report
such transaction or action to the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission or the Stock
Exchange of Thailand.

To encourage and follow up that the company has an efficient risk management system.

To ensure that the company’s management comply with the principles of good corporate governance.
To improve and amend the audit committee charter and propose it to the Board of Directors for approval.
To implement a self-assessment at least at once a year.

To engage in other action as assigned by the Board of Directors with mutual agreement from the audit
committee itself under the authority in accordance with the regulations of the company and the laws.
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Remuneration

mmitt

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 the company’s directors as follows:

Remuneration Committee Meeting
No. Name Position No. of Meeting No. of Attending
1. | Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana | Charman  Non-executive Director 2 2
2. | Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Committee  Non-executive Director 2 2
3. | MrsTeerada Ambhanwong Committee Executive Director 2 2

The remuneration committee is established to support the Board of Directors fulfill their duties with good
corporate governance in term of setting remuneration, considering the criteria paid regulations and remuneration’s
form of the company’s directors and senior executives to have confidence that the company approves the
remuneration with transparency and fairness.

The remuneration committee members have a term of office for 1 year. They will vacate the positions when
resign or are removed or they are no longer the company’s directors. The remuneration committee members
who are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The remuneration committee has authority and responsibilities
complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1.

To invite the management or company relevant employees to provide explanations, opinions or
documents as necessary.

To consult with specialists or the company’s consultants (if any), or hire outside consultants or specialists,
if necessary, at the expense of the company.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.

5.

To consider the remuneration budget earmarked for the Board of Directors, by taking into account the
company’s performances, the remuneration budget approved by the shareholders’ meeting, and the
actual remuneration amount for the previous year, for further presentation to the Board of Directors
for consideration, and for final approval by the shareholders’ meeting.

To consider the remuneration budget for the Board of Directors, by taking into account their duty and
responsibility scope and related performances, based on the remuneration budget approved by the
shareholders’ meeting, for further presentation to the Board of Directors for consideration and approval.

To consider the remuneration budget for other sub committees, by taking into account their duty and
responsibility scope and related performances, for further presentation to the Board of Directors for
approval.

To review and revise the charter for the remuneration committee, to be proposed to the Board of
Directors for consideration and approval.

Engage in other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of 3 the company’s directors as follows:
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Nomination Committee Meeting
No. Name Position No. of Meeting No. of Attending
1. | MrsTeerada Ambhanwong | Chairman  Executive Director 2 2
2. Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Committee  Non-executive Director 2 2
3. Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana | Committee  Non-executive Director 2 2




The nomination committee is established to support the Board of Directors fulfill their duties with good
corporate governance in term of recruitment and selection of the persons who have qualification to be the
directors. This is to ensure the transparency of nomination process.

The nomination committee members have a term of office for 1 year. They will vacate the positions when
resign or are removed or they are no longer the company’s directors. The nomination committee members who
are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The committee has authority and responsibilities complying with its

charter as follows:
Authority

1. To invite the management or employees of the company involved in any particular issues to provide
some explanation, to give comments and to participate in the meeting, or to provide any documents

as necessary.

2. To seek advice and consultation by experts or advisers of the company (if any), or to commission an
external adviser or expert in any necessary cases under expenses of the company.

Duties and Responsibilities

1. Set the criteria and method in selecting the persons to be nominated as directors.

2. Review the background and relevant information of the persons to be nominated as directors, by
considering their knowledge, experiences, and expertise from various professions, so as to secure
qualified persons according to the selection criteria, company regulations, and related laws.

3. Prepare comment and suggestion to serve as references for the Board of Directors’ consideration.

4. Select the persons to be nominated as company directors, for the Board of Directors to consider and

approve.

5. Review and revise the charter for the nominating committee, to be proposed to The Board of Directors
for consideration and approval.

6. Engage in other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Risk Management Committee

The risk management committee consists of 7 members who are the executives from all working fields which
comprised of Accounting-Financial Division, Cosmetics Marketing Division, Fashion Lifestyle Marketing Division, Hair
Care Marketing Division and Office Administration Division as following name list:

Risk Management Committee

No. Name Position MESHT
No. of Meeting ' No. of Attending

1. | Mrs. Teerada  Ambhanwong Chairman | Managing Director& CEO 12 12
2. | Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong @ Committee = Independent Director 12 12
3. | Mrs. Chantra  Tangtanasaringkarn | Committee = Accounting-Finance Division Director 12 12
4. | Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit Committee = Managing Director office 12 12
5. | Ms. Siriporn Tangtanasaringkarn* | Committee | Cosmetics Marketing Division Director 12 11
6. | Ms. Patcharee  Thumrongkittikul * Committee | Hair Care Marketing Division Director 12 11
7. Dr. Pattara Pathumarak Committee | Managing Director Office Director 12 12

Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan

Secretary to the Risk Management Committee

* meeting was missed, due to important work

The risk management committee is established to support the Board of Directors and the executive
committee to evaluate the risk and determining the measurement to prevent and monitor the risk to be appropriate
and acceptable level. Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan, the Section Manager of internal audit unit, is the secretary to

risk the management committee.
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The risk management committee members have a term of office for 1 year. They will vacate the positions
when resign or are removed or they are no longer the company’s directors. The risk management committee
members who are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The committee has authority and responsibilities
complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1.

To consult with specialists or the company consultants (if any), or hire outside consultants or specialists,
if necessary, at the expense of the company.

To set up a working committee, to monitor and evaluate risk management activities throughout the
overall organization.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.

2
3.
4

o

To propose the policy of the risk management to the Board of Directors for approval.

. To determine the guideline of the risk management to cover the entire of organization.

To monitor the possible risk and evaluate the risk which proposes by risk management’s working group.

. To evaluate and approve the plans of risk management which proposes by risk management’s working

group.
To propose the report of risk management to the Board of Directors for approval.

6. To supenvise the efficiency of corporate risk management.

7. To propose the establishment of the risk management’s working group to the Board of Directors for

9.

approval.

To revise and amend the charter for the risk management committee, and submit to the Board of Directors
for approval.

Other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Corporate Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee consists of 3 members as follows:

Corporate Governance Committee Meeting
No. Name Position No. of Meeting No. of Attending
1. Mrs.Kanchana Saisiriporn Chairman | None-executive Director 2 2
2. Mr.Knit Kounavudhi | Committee = Independent Director 2 2
3k Ms.Rattana Wonglertwit = Committee = Executive Director 2 2
Mrs.Choopan  Imthong Secretary of the Governance Committee

The corporate governance committee is established to support the Board of Directors fulfill their duties with
good corporate governance to determine the regulations and guideline of good operating practice in compliance
with the principles of good corporate governance for the listed companies.

The corporate governance committee members have a term of office for 1 year. They will vacate the positions
when resign or are removed or they are no longer the Company’s directors. The corporate governance committee
members who are retired by rotation, may be re-appointed. The committee has authority and responsibilities
complying with its charter as follows:

Authority

1.
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To invite the management or company relevant employees to provide explanations, opinions or
documents as necessary.

To consult with specialists or company consultants (if any), or hire outside consultants or specialists,
if necessary, at the expense of the company

To set up the working group to support the corporate governance activities as appropriated.



Duties and Responsibilities

1.

5.

Set up, review and revise the principles of good corporate governance, policy against corruption,
regulations, announcement, rules and relevant laws consistency.

Set up guideline according to the principles of good corporate governance, policy against corruption,
also monitor and develop the system of the corporate governance of the Company.

Promote and encourage the company’s directors, executives and employees to practice according to
the principles of corporate governance and policy against corruption.

. To revise and amend the charter for the corporate governance committee, to be proposed to the

Board of Directors for consideration and approval.
Other duties as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee consists of 5 members as follows:

o N ENNP Executive Committee Meeting
No. of Meeting No. of Attending
1. | Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong* Managing Director& CEO 12 11
2. | MrsChantra Tangtanasaringkarn' | Account-Finance Division Director 12 12
3. | MsRattana Wonglertwit Corporate Office Division Director 12 12
4. | MsSiriporn  Tangtanasringkarn® | Cosmetic Marketing Division Director 12 12
5. Dr.Pattara Pathumarak Managing Director Office Director 12 12
Mrs.Choopan Imthong the Company Secretary is the secretary of Executive Committee

* absence from the meeting due to illness

“1” s the spouse of uncle’s son of “2”

The Board of Directors establishes the executive board to support its administration as assigned by the Board of

Directors with responsibilities, carefulness and faithfulness in the same way as fiduciary should be made to in the same

situation with bargaining power of trade without the influence of their status as the executive directors.

The executive board members have a term of office for 1 year, and shall be ended by resignation or death or

being described as inappropriate or untrustworthy to manage business of which is held by the public complying with the
announcement of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand or who retired upon
the expiration of term but not be re-appointed in the same position or retired from the Board of Directors’ resolution. The

committee’s members who are retired by rotation may be re-appointed.

The executive committee has authority, duties and responsibilities as of its charter as follows:
Authority

1.
2.

To appoint, remove, transfer, evaluate and determine compensation and welfare of employees of different levels.

To appoint and remove any other working committee to carry out necessary for the management of the
company.

To issue regulations and announcements on performance of duties; to assign authority to members of the executive
committee and/or employees serving managerial posts; and, to execute authorization on the company assets.

To approve engagement in non-financial juristic actions provided that the amount does not exceed Baht 10 million.
To approve acceptance or cancellation of loans, provided that the amount does not exceed Baht 50 million.

To approve investment, sale of investment capital in ordinary shares and/or any other securities, provided that
the amount does not exceed Baht 10 million.

To approve investment, sale of short-term investment ordinary provided that the amount does not exceed Baht
50 million.

To approve sourcing and investment in fixed assets, provided that the amount does not exceed Baht 50 million.
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10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

To approve modification, destruction and disposal of fixed assets and intangible assets which are no longer
in use, damaged, lost, destroyed, deteriorated and out, provided that the book value does not exceed Baht
20 million.

To approve modification, change of price and destruction of raw materials and/or remaining inventory which
are deteriorated or out of date, provided that the book value does not exceed Baht 20 million.

To approve the cut of Accounting Bad Debt and/or other assets that the amount does not exceed Baht 2
million.

To approve compromise or settlement of dispute by arbitration, complaint, filling or lawsuits and/or any legal
proceeding on behalf of the company on matters which are not normal business course of the value does
not exceed Baht 2 million and /or which are regular business course of the value does not exceed Baht 20
million.

To invite members of the management or relevant employees to provide explanations, opinions or documents
as necessary.

To consult with specialist or the company‘s consultants (if any) or hire third-party consultants or specialist if
necessary at the expense of the company.

To authorize executives of the company or other individuals to act on their behalf.

Duties and Responsibilities

1.
2.

9.

Present the company’s objectives, policy, plan, and annual budget to the Board of Directors.

Managing company’s operations in order to comply with the direction, target, and business policy of the
company.

Promote the competitiveness of the company, while encouraging consistent innovation development activities.

Supervise company operations to comply with the laws, objectives, company regulations, resolutions by the
shareholders’ meeting, resolutions by the Board of Directors, as well as other standard practices concerned.

The executive committee’s members may allocate work responsibilities among themselves, whereby they are
required to report the progress of own responsible work to the executive committee.

Supervise the compilation of financial statements, for review and/or verification by the certified public accountant,
prior to submitting to the audit committee, and the Board of Directors, for endorsement respectively.

Review the matters to be submitted to the Board of Directors for further acknowledgment or approval.

To revise and amend the charter for the executive committee, to be submitted to the Board of Directors for
further approval.

Engage in other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors.

8.3 Nomination and Appointment of the Director and Senior Management

(1) Independent Directors

Criteria_of Independent Director

The nomination committee has duty to recruit and select the qualified persons who have knowledge, expertise and

diverse professional fields to be proposed at the Board of Directors’ Meeting for consideration and then propose at the

Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to consider to further selection.

Apart from the above procedure, the nomination committee must consider the qualification of the persons who

are qualified to be the independent directors as defined by the company’s or more concentration. With regard to the

selection of persons to be appointed independent director, the nominating committee shall select from those persons

having qualifications required for independent directors, in addition to basic qualification requirements by the company.

The Board of Directors resolved to adopt the definition for “independent director” having qualifications in accordance

with the notification of the Capital Market Supervisory Board as follows:
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1. Holding shares not exceeding 1 percent of the total number of voting rights of the company, its parent
company, subsidiary, affiliate, major shareholders or controlling person of the company, including the shares being held
by related persons of independent directors.

2. Neither being nor having been an executive director, employee, staff, or advisor who received regular
salaries, or being a controlling person of the company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, same-level subsidiary,
major shareholders or persons having supervision authority over the company, unless the foregoing status ended not
less than two years prior to the date of their appointments as independent directors. Nevertheless, such prohibited nature
would not apply in the case of these independent directors having earlier served as government officials, or advisors to
government agency acting as major shareholder in the company or having supervision authority over the company.

3. Not being a person related by blood or registration under laws, such as father, mother, spouse, sibling, and
child, including spouse of the children, executive, major shareholder, controlling person, or person to be nominated as
executive or as controlling person of the company or its subsidiary.

4. Not having business relationship with the company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, major
shareholders or controlling person of the company, in such manner likely to interfere with own independent judge and
neither being nor having been a significant shareholder or person having supervision authority over the person who has
business relationship with the company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, major shareholders or controlling person
of the company, unless the foregoing relationship ended not less than two years prior to the date of appointment as
independent director.

The term ‘business relationship’ aforementioned under paragraph 1 included any normal business transaction,
rental or lease of immovable property, transaction relating to the assets or services or the granting or receipt of financial
assistance through receiving or extending loans, guarantee, providing assets as collateral, including any other similar action,
resulting in the company or its counterparty being subject to indebtedness payable to the other party in the amount of
three percent or more of the net tangible assets of the company or Baht 20 million or more, whichever is lower. The amount
of such indebtedness shall be calculated according to the calculation method for the value of connected transactions under
The Notification of The Capital Market Supervisory Board regarding The Compromise Criteria for Connected Transactions. The
combination of such indebtedness shall include indebtedness taking place during the course of one year prior to the date on
which the business relationship with the person commences.

5. Neither being nor having been an auditor of the company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, major
shareholders or controlling person of the company, and not being a significant shareholder or person having supervision
authority, or partner of an audit firm which employs auditors of the company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, major
shareholders or controlling person of the company, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than two years prior
to the date of appointment as independent director.

6. Neither being nor having been any professional advisor including legal advisor or financial advisor who receives an
annual service fee exceeding two million Baht from the company, its parent company, subsidiary, affiliate, major shareholders
or controlling person of the company, and not being a significant shareholder or person having supervision authority or partner
of the professional advisor, unless the foregoing relationship has ended not less than 2 years prior to the date of appointment
as independent director.

7. Not being a director who has been appointed as the representative of the company’s director, major shareholder,
or being a shareholder who is related to the major shareholder.

8. Not engaging in business operations of the same business nature or in competition against the business
operations of the company or its subsidiaries, nor serving as a significant partner in a limited partnership or otherwise serving
as a director participating in the management, or serving as employee or consultant receiving regular salary or holding
over 1% shares out of total shares in other companies engaging in the same business nature or in competition against the
company and its subsidiaries.

9. Not having any characteristics which make him incapable of expressing independent opinions with regard to the
company’s business affairs.
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(2) Nomination of Director and Senior Management
Right of Minor Shareholders
The Company provided minor shareholders with the opportunity to nominate candidates to be appointed as the

Company’s directors at the No.26™ Annual General Meeting of Shareholders during 1 December - 30 December, 2019.
It was publicized on the website of Stock Exchange of Thailand; www.setor.th and the Company invited the investors via

the website; www.occ.co.th by providing the definition of shareholders’qualification, rules and procedures. In 2019, none
of shareholders had exercised such right and the Company Secretary reported it to the Board of Directors’ meeting for
acknowledgement.

Procedure of selecting Candidates

The Nomination Committee has duty to recruit and select the qualified persons in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy of the Company for proposing to the Board of Directors’ meeting to consider and propose at Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders to consider for election in further. Exceptional in case they have not resigned according
to the agenda set forth and their agendas remain have at least 2 months left, the Board of Directors’ meeting shall
consider to election as following procedure:

m To determine the criteria and procedure to nominate person (s) to comply with the charter and other related
rules to replace the directors who are retired by rotation.

m To nominate the persons who have qualification which comply with the strategy of the Company’s business
operation, and are appropriated to the vacant position that is necessity for the management of the Company
including vision, morality and clean resume.

m The Board of Directors’ Meeting shall consider to select the persons who are proposed by the nomination
committee with major votes from the existing directors. Every meeting of the Board of Directors as agenda
set forth, the resolution was unanimously approved.

m The persons who shall be the Company’s directors as mentions, their office term shall be equal to the
remained period as left of the directors whom they are substituted.

Procedure of Election

According to the Company’s Articles of Association: Chapter 3 “Board of Directors” Article 21 stipulating that the
directors shall be elected at the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with the following rules and procedures:

1. A shareholder shall have one vote for one share.
2. Each shareholder must exercise all of the votes to elect one or several persons to be a director or directors
and must not allot his or her votes to any person in any number.

3. The person having the highest number of votes to the lower number of votes in order shall be elected as
the directors equal to the number of directors to be elected at the shareholders’ meeting in such election.
In case where the number of votes for the candidate in descending order are equal which would otherwise
cause the number of directors to be elected at the shareholders’ meeting to be exceeded in such election,
the chairman shall have a casting vote.

Nomination Pr re_of Senior Executiv:

The nomination committee has duty to nominate and select the persons who have qualification to be the senior
executives according to their skill that are necessary to administrate the Company’s business. They must have vision,
commitment, morality and clean working resume for being proposed at the Board of Directors’ Meeting for consideration
and propose at the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to consider the selection in further.

The other executives shall be considered to be appointed, removed or transferred in accordance with knowledge,
competence or appropriation with objective and policy that determined by the Board of Directors.

8.4 rporat vernan f idiari n int Ventur

The Company has no subsidiaries and/or joint ventures.
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8.5 Regulated the Use of Inside Information

The Company supervises and has measure to protect the use of inside information following the principles of
corporate governance as defined in written on Code of Conducts, ethics of the Company’s directors, executives and all
employees in order to guide them to practice with faithfully, responsibility, discipline and conscience towards the public
without using their job titles to seek for self-benefit or the other persons. Important policy is summarized as follows:

e The Company prohibits the Company’s directors, management members, and employees having access to
inside information, from engaging in any act in exploitation of such information, particularly those information
not yet disclosed to the general public. Any violation would be deemed as a disciplinary offence of company
regulations. Furthermore, for the period of 1 month prior to the disclosure of financial statements to the public
and 24-hour after disclosure of financial statements, the Company sends out related circular to the directors,
the management, and the employee having access to inside information, instructing them to refrain from any
purchase or sales transaction company shares during said period.

e The Company requires its directors and executives, including spouses and minor children to report holding
of securities of the Company and any changes thereof to the Office of Securities Exchange Commission
that complied with Section 59 of the Securities and the Exchange Act within 3 days from the date of such
change. The report of the Company’s securities holding of the directors and executives including of spouses
shall be defined as the regular agenda of the Board of Directors’ meeting and the executive’s meeting. The
company has set a policy for directors and top management to inform of the company’s securities trading to
the company secretary at least 1 working day prior to trading.

8.6 Auditor's Remuneration
(A) Audit Fee
In 2019, the Company paid the audit fee to DIA INTERNATONAL AUDIT CO., LTD with total amount Baht
1,180,000.00
(B) None-audit Fee - None -

8.7 The Practice of Corporate Governance on the Other Cases
If-Evaluation of the Board of Director:

The self-assessment of the Board of Directors performance is set to conduct on an annual basis by using the

Stock of Exchange of Thailand’s “Code of Practices” form, as a guideline to review the overall performance, problems
and obstacles during the past year for further improvement to increase effective performance by the Board of Directors.
This self-assessment form is comply with the principles of corporate governance, duties and responsibilities of the
Board of Directors, which consists of 6 topics as follows:

1. The Board of Directors’ structure and qualifications

2. Roles, duties and responsibilities of the Board of Directors

3. The Board of Directors’ meeting

4. Duty of directors

5. Relationship with Management
6. Self - improvement of directors and executives

Each director completes his or her self-assessment form independently. The assessment forms are returned
to the Company Secretary once completed to be collected, summarized and reported to the Board of Directors at
the Board of Directors’ meeting for taking the result of assessment to analyze for having the conclusion to determine
the measure for further improvement to increase effective performance by the Board of Directors.

In 2019, the performance of the Board of Directors was evaluated at its 1/2563 meeting held on February
12, 2020 is as follows:
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The Assessment of Performance on a Collective Basis

According to the assessment of performance on a collective basis with the overall evaluation, each director
agreed that the result was good and appropriated.

The A ment of Performan f mmitt

According to the assessment of performance with overall evaluation as the committees, which comprises of
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the Risk Management Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and the Executive Committee, each committee agreed that the result was
good and appropriated.

The Assessment of Performance on an Individual Basis

In 2019, the Board of Directors conducted the assessment of performance on individual basis. The self-
assessment form is compliance with the principles of corporate governance. Each director evaluated performance
assessment individually. According to the assessment of performance with overall evaluation, each director agreed
that the result was good and appropriated.

The assessment of performance on an individual basis

CEO has duty to evaluate and approve the result of annual performance assessment of the Managing
Director and presents it to the Board of Directors to acknowledge. The result of overall performance was good and
appropriated.

Corporate Governance Principles (CG) that the Company has not practiced

Principles Reasons

Chairman of the Board is an Independent Director The Company Board shall appoint Non-executive Director to
be the Company’s Chairman because of knowledge and
expertise in the Company’s business. Though the Company’s
Chairman is not the Independent Director, he or she could
perform duty independently. All Directors have an opportunity
to express opinion and suggestion that shall give benefit to
the authority.

The number of Companies that each Director should ' The Company does not limit the number of the Companies
be appointed to suit the nature or condition of the where each Director has the position being held as the Director.

: ) The Company is assured that the business competency and
Company should be determined. This should not expertise of each Director does not depend on the number of
exceed 5. the working places, but it depends on competency of that
Director and willing to perform duty with trustworthiness from the
Board of Directors and the shareholders. Present time, none of
the Company’s director holds the position in the other Listed
Companies not exceed 5.

The Board should establish the policy that the The Company has no policy to limit the term of the
tenure of an Independent Director should not Independent Director. The Company’s Independent Directors
are still working with independence without having personal
benefits that may conflict with the interests of the Company
day of the service. and make decision by caring of the utmost benefit of the
Company. They are independent from the executives and
major shareholders.

exceed a cumulative term of 9 years from the first

The Board consists none of the Directors who are There is 1 Independent Director who is the member of the
Independent Director for over 9 years. Company’s director more than 9 years because this
Independent Director has qualification that complies with the
definition of the Company’s Independent Director. This
Independent Director has knowledge, competency and
experience in the field that the Company needs and performs
the duty as qualified Independent Director.

The majority of Nomination Committee, Though the Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee and the Chairman should | Chairman of Remuneration Committee is not the Independent

) Director, she or he has knowledge and experience of said
be Independent Director. duty for long period. Furthermore, this person has performed
duty with responsibility, honesty and does not vote in the
agenda that has equity.




Information of the Board of Directors and Executives (as at December 31, 2019)

m Board of Directors

Proportion Family .
Name / Position Age Curriculum Vitae of RGN Work Experience
. . . between
Date of being appointed (year) and Training share Di d
holding |rector§ an : n :
Executives Period Position Company Business Type
Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn | 73 | Bachelor Degree 0.33%  Aunt of Miss Siripom Other Listed Company: -none-
- Chairman - Political Science,  (Ownership) Tangtanasringkam her Non - mpanies:
- Corporate Governance Ramkhumhaeng Director of Cosmetics _
Chairman University Mearketing Division 1991 - Present Chairman | Oriental Salon | Cosmetic
Nomination Committ Director Training Business Co.Ltd. Wholesaler/
- Nomination Col ee Distributor
- Remuneration Program
Committee - DCP32/2003 2004 - Present | Vice Shiseido Cosmetic
12 November 1976 Chairman | Professional Wholesaler/
Distributor

(Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

© Holding any position in ven

= Holding any positon in the

past year in another venture or organization had significant impact wi

ture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 4 places

ith time devoted on the Company -none-

Mrs.Teerada Ambhanwong
- Managing Director

& CEO
- Risk Management
Committee Chairman
- Nomination Committee
- Remuneration
Committee

1 July 2008

49

Master Degree

of Marketing

Sasin Graduate
Institute of Business
Administration
Chulalongkorn
University

Di Traini

Program
- DCP 51/2004
- DAP 3/2003

3.05%
(Ownership)

Sister of
Mr. Thitipoom
Chokwatana

and
Niece of Mrs.

Tipaporn
Chokwatana’s

Spouse

Other Listed Companies:

1999 - Present| Director People’s Garment Garment
Plc. Manufacturer/

Distributor

1999 - Present| Director S&J International | Cosmetic

Enterprises Plc. | Manufacturer
ther Non - list mpani

2006 - Present| Director Saha Asia Pacific |Real Estate
Co,,Ltd.

2004 - Present | Director Shiseido Cosmetic
Professional Wholesaler
(Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

2008 - Present | Director Hlanpu Co.Ltd.  |Investment

= Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 13 places

= Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana

- Remuneration
Committee  Chairman

- Nomination Committee

6 May 1987

74

Bachelor Degree
of Mechanical

Engineering, Chiba
University, Japan
Director Training
Program

- DCP 68/2005

- DAP 3/2003

- None -

ther |ist mpani
December Chairman | Thanulux Plc. Garment
2019 - Present Manufacturer
2007 - 2019 | Director Saha Pathana Investment
Inter - Holding Plc.
2004 - Present | Director |.C.C. International |Fashion
Plc. Distributor
1976 - Present, Chairman | Textile Prestige | Textile
Plc. Manufacturer
1973 - Present| Chairman | Thai Wacoal Plc. Garment
Manufacturer
ther Non - List mpani
2015 - Present| Director Erawan Textile Textile
Co.,Ltd. Manufacturer
1995 - Present’ Chairman | SSDC (Tigertex) Fabric &
Co., Ltd Thread Dyeing
Manufacturer

= Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 15 places

= Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-
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Proportion

Family

Name / Position Age Curriculum Vitae of Rﬂiﬂﬁggg'p Work Experience
Date of being appointed (year)  and Training share [
etz g} Executives Period Position Company Business Type
MrsTipaporn Chokwatana | 73 | Bachelor Degr 497 % Spouse of ther List mpany-:
- Director - Political Science, | (Ownership Uncle of : : :
Ramkhumhaeng 0.23% MrsTeerada | 1995 - Present é:e- E&;J Intgrnatgnal '\C/Iosmfetlf
27 April 2010 University Spouse Ambhanwong airman nterprises Plc. anufacturer
Secretary 4.74%) ol
- Pitman London A OeT
Director Trainin OS]
ector Training . e
Other Non - listed Companies:
Program
- DCP 68/2005 2015 - Present Director Ruamissara Rea! Estate
- DAP 3/2003 (D;iveth(szmem Business
2015 - Present Director United Assets Landscape
Development Gardening
Co.,Ltd.
2013 - Present Director Torfun Estate Real Estate
Co.,Ltd. Business
2011 - Present Vice Ruamissara Real Estate
Chairman  Development Business
Co.,Ltd.
2011 - Present Vice Torfun Property  |Real Estate
Chairman  Co.,Ltd. Business
2011 - Present Director Kewpie (Thailand) [Food
Co.,Ltd.
2000 - Present|Chairman  E.P.F.Co.,Ltd. Cosmetic
Distributor/
Services
1997 - Present Chairman  T-WAY Co.,Ltd.  Sell and
Service
1990 - Present Director Cake & Bakery  Cake &
Co.,Ltd. Bakery Maker
1986 - Present Chairman  Vitayasithi Co.,Ltd. Investment
1974 - April ~ \Vice International Cosmetic
2018 Chairman  Laboratories Manufacture
Corp. Co.,Ltd.
May 2018 Chairman International Cosmetic
- Present Laboratories Manufacture
Corp. Co.,Ltd.

= Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as
= Holding any position in the

per core workin

past year in another venture or organization had significant impact wi

g experience for 12 places

ith time devoted on the Company -none-

MrWorathep Aussavakasem

- Director

23 April 2018

52

Bachelor Degree
- Science and

Engineering
Hosei University
(Japan)

Director Training

Program
-None-

- None -

- None -

Other Listed Company:

2014 - 2019

Executive
Director

Thai Wacoal PLC.

Garment
Manufacturer

Other Non - listed Companies:

2016 - Present

Managing
Director

MIL. (Thailand)
Co., Ltd

Hair Products
Distributor

= Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 3 places

= Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-
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Proportion

Family

Name / Position Age Curriculum Vitae of R%I:Rzgzslp Work Experience
Date of being appointed (year)  and Training h?)r:girrf [
9 Executives Period Position Company Business Type
Mr.Thitipoom Chokwatana| 42 | Bachelor Degree 0.58% Brother of Mrs. Other Listed Companies: - none -

- Director

22 April 2019

- Computer Science
Seattle University,
United State of
America

Director Training

Program

-none-

Teerada
Ambhanwong &
Niece in Law of

Mrs. Tipaporn
Chokwatana

Other Non - Listed Companies:
2013 - Present Managing  BSTR 408 Co., | Investment
Director Ltd

2 Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 3 places

© Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

Mrs.Watchanee 66 | Master Degree - - None - Other Listed Company:
Wattanathawanwong of Business
- Audit Committee Administration 2006 - 2014 Executive  Maximize Solution | TV
- Risk Management Director Public Company | Production
Bachelor Degree o
Committee . " Limited
26 April 1999 Cif (~ECoUg, i :
P Chulalongkorn ther Non - list mpani
University
Certified Public
Accountant
Director training
Program DCP
1/2000
Mr.Wanchai 72 | Master Degree - - None - Other Listed Company:
Llmzusig i o braieilng, 2013 - 2016 | Independent| Saha Pathanapibul | Sell Consumer
- Audit Committee - Sasin Graduate Director Plc. goods
23 April 2013 Institute of Business 2005 - Present | Chairman & ' Lohakit Metal Plc. | Metal
Administration Audit Manufacturer
Committee
Chulalongk
o grom Chairman
University
Bachelor Degree 2002 - Present | Audit Muramoto Electron| Manufacturer
i) ComETEs Eng Committee | (Thailand) Plc of Car Parts
Accountancy
Chulalongkorn Other Non - listed Companies:
Sy 2015-2017 Director UPA Power Group  Manufacture
Co,,Ltd. and sell
Director training electricity
- DCP 102/2008 2006 - Present | Director KPN International | Tea Distributor
Co,,Ltd.
- DAP 35/2005
/ 2002 - Present | Director Suwannapoom Instant Coffee
Herbs Co.,Ltd. Distributor
1998 - Present | Director Lucky Transport | Land Transport
Co.,Ltd
1991 - Present | Director Jetcharoenchai Wholesale /
Co.Ltd Retail
1990 - Present | Director Bann Suan Nok | Hotel/Resort
Resort
1990 - Present | Director Issarapab Land Transport

Enterprise Co.,Ltd.

= Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 12 places

= Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-
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Proportion

Family

Name / Position Age Curriculum Vitae of Rﬂz’;wggslp Work Experience
Date of being appointed (year)  and Training share [
etz g} Executives Period Position Company Business Type
Mr. Kanit Kunawut 70 | Master Degree = - None - Other Listed Company:
- Audit Committee fE ti
- Corporlate Governance Eynciti)ﬁg;ogollege, 1996 - Present Production True Visions Plc. | TV .
Committee N Manager Production
. Virginia, USA.
27 April 2015
Bachelor Degree
- [Selezing] Other Non - listed Companies: - none -
Management
- Visual Art
- Dramatic Arts -
Design
Lynchburg College,
Virginia, USA.

> Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for -none-

> Holding any positon in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

Total shares holding by the Directors 8.93%

m Executive
. Proportion Fgmily . .
Name / Pos!tlon Age  Curriculum Vitae v Relationship Work Experience
Date of being - between
) (year) and Training share .
appointed holding Directors and
Executives Period Position Company  Business Type
Mrs. Teerada 49 Master Degree 3.05% Sister of Other Listed Company:
Ambhanwong of Marketing, Sasin (Owner- Mr. Thitipoom ) ;
- Managing Director & Graduate Institute of ship) Chokwatana 1999 - Present Director People’s Garment
CEO Business Administration Garment Ple. | Manufacturer/
- Risk Management Chulalongkorn ‘ e - D|stnbutlor
Committee Chairman University Niece of Mrs. 1999 Liggiior - SEal T
- Nomination Committee Director Training Tipaporn - Present International | Manufacturer
- Remuneration Program Chokwatana’s Sl RIEES e
Committee DCP 51/2004 : e
S Other Non - listed Companies:
13 May 2017 ERES
2006 Director Saha Asia Real Estate
- Present Pacific Co., Ltd.
2004 - Present Director Shiseido Cosmetic
Professional Wholesaler
(Thailand) Co.Ltd.
2003 Director Hlanpu Co.,Ltd. |Investment
- Present

© Holding any position
© Holding any positon

in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as pi

er core working experience for 13 places

in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

Mrs. Chantra
Tangtanasaringkarn
- Director Accounting
Finance Division

13 May 2017

65

Bachelor Degree

in Accounting

Suan Dusit Rajabhat
University

CFEO Training Program
Federation of
Accounting Profession
DI Traini

Program
DCP 73/2006

0.09%
(Spouse)

Spouse of Uncle’s Other Listed Company: - none -
Son of Ms.Siriporn Other Non - listed Companies:
Tangtanasringkarn
1991 Director Oriental Salon | Cosmetic
- Present Business Wholesaler/
Co.,Ltd. Distributor

> Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 1 places

© Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-
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Family

. Proportion : . )
NS;;Z /okac)):::]lon Age | Curriculum Vitae of Ril:mg:rr:lp it Expeizien
) 9 (year) and Training share .
appointed iallefin Directors and
9 Executives Period Position Company Business Type
Ms.Rattana Wonglertwit | 66 | Bachelor Degree 0.33% -None- ther List mpany: - none -
-Director Managing of Education (Owner- ther Non - list mpani
Director office Chulalongkorn ship)
13 May 2017 University 2005 - Present| Director M.LL.(Thailand) Sell hair
Director training Co.,Ltd. product
Program
DCP 73/2006
FN 28/2006

> Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for 1 places
&> Holding any positon in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

Ms.Siriporn
Tangtanasringkarn
-Director Cosmetic
Marketing Division
13 May 2017

56

Bachelor Degree
of Liberal Arts

Thammasat University

0.00%
(Owner-
ship)

Niece of
Spouse of Mrs.
Chantra
Tangtanasaringkarn

-None-

Other Listed Company: - none -
Other Non - listed Companies: - none -

> Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for -none-

> Holding any position in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

Dr.Pattara Pathumarak
-Director Managing
Director office

13 May 2017

49

Doctor Degree

of Philosophy, Oregon
State University, US.A.
Master Degree

of Arts, Oregon State
University, US.A.
Bachelor Degree

of Science Program

in Chemistry

Mahidol University

-None -

Other Listed Company: - none -
Other Non - listed Companies: - none -

© Holding any position in venture or organization that are non-listed companies as per core working experience for -none-
> Holding any positon in the past year in another venture or organization had significant impact with time devoted on the Company -none-

2019 Meeting Statisti
Summary of Meeting Participation of the Board of Directors and Sub-Committee in 2019
. — ) Risk Corporate )
No. Name Diector | Gompenio Commmatcn |G Managerent Govemarce £X°eUe, | 2% A,
1. | Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 77 = 2/2 2/2 = 2/2 12/12 1/1
2. |Mrs. Teerada  Ambhanwong* 7/7 - 2/2 2/2 12/12 - 11/12 1/1
3.  Mr. Manu Leelanuwattana* 6/7 - 2/2 2/2 - - - 1/1
4. Mrs. Tipaporn ~ Chokwatana /7 - - - - - - 1/1
5. | Mr. Worathep  Aussavakasem™* 6/7 - - - - - - 1/1
6. Mr. Thitpoom  Chokwatana* 4/5 - - - = = S 1/1
7. | Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong 77 12/12 - - 12/12 - - 1/1
8.  Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art /7 12/12 - - - - - 1/1
9.  Mr. Knit Kounavudhi 77 12/12 = = = 2/2 - 1/1
10. |Mrs. Chantra  Tangtanasaringkarn = = = = 12/12 = 12/12 1/1
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. - " Risk Corporate f th
. Audit Nomination Remuneration Executive | 25" AGM
No. Name Director | committee | Committee | Committee Mc‘? :;%?i;?ggt %%\:ﬁrmnﬁ?gg Committee | 22/04/2019
11. | Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit - - - - 12/12 2/2 12/12 1/1
12. | Ms. Siriporn Tangtanasringkarn™* * = = = = 11/12 = 12/12 1/1
13. | Dr. Pattara Pathumarak = = = = 12/12 = 12/12 1/1
14. | Ms. Patchree Thumrongkitikul ™ * - - - - 11/12 - - 1/1

* Absent from the meeting of executive committee because of a sudden illness

** Absent from the meeting of board director because of important mission

Mr Thitipoom Chokwatana was appointed to be the director at the 25 " AGM on April 22, 2019.

Securities Data Company of Directors and Executives of 2018 and 2019

Directors

Name Total Shares (Shares) Increase/ ol
Decrease .
31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Annual (Shares) Shareholding

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn 200,000 200,000 = 0.33%
Spouse and Minor Children = 5 - i

Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 1,831,325 1,831,325 - 3.05%
Spouse and Minor Children - - - -

Mr. Manu Leelanuwatana - - = .
Spouse and Minor Children = - . _

Mrs. Tipaporn Chokwatana 135,000 135,000 - 0.23%
Spouse and Minor Children 2,844,300 2,844,300 - 4.74%

Mr. Worathep Aussavakasem - = - -
Spouse and Minor Children = - - -

Mr. Thitipoom Chokwatana 349,450 349,450 - 0.58%

Spouse and Minor Children

Mrs. Watchanee Wattanathawanwong

Spouse and Minor Children

Mr. Wanchai Umpueng-art

Spouse and Minor Children

Mr. Knit Kounavudhi

Spouse and Minor Children

Executives

NS Total Shares (Shares)* ggcr?::seé Posrﬂg?e ﬁ; 8{%0
31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Annual (Shares)
Mrs. Teerada Ambhanwong 1,831,325 1,831,325 - 3.05%
Spouse and Minor Children = 5 - i,
Mrs. Chantra Tangtanasaringkarn - - - -
Spouse and Minor Children 51,210 51,210 - 0.09%
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Total Shares (Shares)* Increase/ ]

31 December 2018 31 December 2019 Annual (Shares)

Ms. Rattana Wonglertwit 196,790 196,790 - 0.33%

Spouse and Minor Children - - - B

Ms. Siriporn Tangtanasringkarn 2,000 2,000 - 0.00%

Spouse and Minor Children = - . _

Dr. Pattara Pathumarak - - - =

Spouse and Minor Children = - . _

Information of Directors in the Related Companies

Position Holding

Companies Mrs. Kanchana Mrs. Teerada Mr. Manu Mr.Worathep | Mrs. Tipaporn
Saisiriporn Ambhanwong | Leelanuwattana Aussavakasem  Chokwatana
Thai Bunka Fashion Co., Ltd D D
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd B
Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd A
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd C
I.D.F. Co., Ltd D

Saha Pathana Inter-Holding PLC.

|.C.C. International PLC.

Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd

International Laboratories Corp., Ltd

Zen Salon Business Co., Ltd

People’s Garment PLC.

|0 |0 |0 |0

S&J International Enterprises PLC.

Bangkok Tokyo Sock Co., Ltd A

Thai Gunze Co., Ltd D A

Notes A = Chairman B = Vice Chairman C = Managing Director D = Director

9. Corporate Social Responsibilities: CSR

The Company is aware of social responsibility towards sustainable development and society as follows:
1 Eair Busin ration

The Board of Directors realizes and places importance on fair business operation that concerns to the equality,
trustworthy and does not take advantage but keeps benefit for the stakeholders following to the principles of
good corporate governance as following management;

e The Company places importance on all employees as the valuable treasure. Therefore, they have been
encouraged and supported to have best welfare and wellHbeing lives by being provided appropriate and fair
payrolls beneath the atmosphere of happy workplace. The Company’s welfare comprises of annual medical
check- up, provident fund, group life insurance covering all cases of death, monetary grant to the death of
employees’ parents or spouse and inactivated influenza vaccine for instance.

e The Company places importance and responsibility towards all customers with regularity. The Company’s
ambition is to satisfy and give confidence to the customers continuously by developing products and paying
attention with responsibility. The Company’s customers must receive the quality products, good services,
safe for life and health with reasonable price complying with the set standard. Information of the customers
are not taken as a benefit for the Company and related persons. Call Center is set up for receiving
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complaint, suggestion and providing the products’ consult as well as the senvice from the customers by
calling to Tel. n0.02 295 1333.

e The Company treats the business partners with ethics of trading conditions, equality and faimess. Both
have good business relationship, exchange knowledge and cooperate in developing the added value of the
products and services. The Company adheres to trade agreement and operates its business with ethics by
not asking or receiving any assets or other benefits beyond the agreement.

e The Company treats all creditors in compliance with trade term and faithfulness, neither loan payable nor
trade account payable. Debts are paid to loan payable and/or trade account payable in accordance with
agreed credit term without any default.

e The Company operates its business under the provision of law. By following the rules of fair- trade with
regard to ethical business practices and competitive law. In the past year, the Company had no disputes
with trade competitors.

e The Company places importance on protecting the rights of all shareholders with equality and faimess
based on fundamental rights, the rights to receive information and to attend the shareholders’ meeting.
There is mechanical tools to ensure the shareholders that they shall receive the accurate information with
appropriate result and have measurement in monitoring and preventing the use of secret inside information.

Anti-corruption

The Company has the policy against all types of corruption. The Company realizes that bribery and
corruption pose an imminent threat to free and fair competition, as well as to the development of economic
and society. The Company has no policy to give bribes or give stuffs in return to related persons for the
Company’s benefit or business advantage, either direct or indirect for the purpose of holding benefit or
taking business advantage. The Company strives to operate the business with transparency and fairness by
arranging the guideline to practice against with all form of corruption, including of building up conscious,
values, attitude, and cultivate it to become the corporate culture for supporting the Board of Directors,
executives and all level employees to practice in accordance with the laws and other related regulations.
Including, not to admire the success which is achieved by corruption and not to be involved in giving the
bribes to either government or private units for own or other benefits.

The Company has determined the Anti-corruption Policy and Practices for to be an important topic on
orientation course for the new employees. Furthermore, the executives and supervisors will be trained on the
topic “Anti-corruption Risk Assessment” which is for communicating with the operation level of employees
to acknowledge and implement it to the practice. The Company conducts the training and measure the
result of this policy continuously. This training plan is defined to cover with all entire employees for having
confidence that the Company has adopted it to practice with reality. It prohibits directors, executives and
employees accept or support corruption in all forms both direct and indirect.

According to the anti-corruption policy and practices, it stated duties, responsibilities and guideline to
practice against the corruption for the Board of Directors, committees, executives and employees. There is
a measure for whistleblowing or complaint in case of doubt in regard to corruption in the Company. There
is a mechanism to protect and give fairness to whistleblower or complainers. Including penalty for offenders,
intimidator or those who ignore offenders.

The Company has effective and sufficient risk management system and internal control system, including
corruption prevention. Appropriate audit process is managed by the internal audit unit to audit and monitor
it continuously, while the audit committee has duty to review the internal control system, the practice along
with anti-corruption policy and to monitor result of internal control.  In case any fraud is found, internal audit
unit shall report it directly to the audit committee. The audit committee shall report it to the Board of Directors
accordingly.

The Company has the operation to practice in accordance with anti-corruption policy continuously as follows:

m The Board of Directors : is committed against corruption



Corporate Governance Committee : review the policy of anti-corruption policy, practice and related
regulations

Risk Management Committee: supervise and evaluate the risk over all the organization, evaluate the
possible risk to the corruption, and support the anti-corruption activities

Audit Committee: review the internal control system and risk management system, especially on
the risk of corruption, including to supervise and review the measure of risk management and anti-
corruption.

Internal Audit Unit: proceed the improvement, set up the internal control system and the procedure
of numerous practices to be in accordance with anti-corruption policy, review the practice as of anti-
corruption policy, audit, monitor, evaluate the performance, and report it to the audit committee and
the Board of Directors

Review the practice of anti-corruption policy as established in a manual book “Anti-Corruption” for
being the guideline for the Board of Directors, committees, executives and employees to adhere for
practice as follows:

= political support and contributions

= donation and charity

= {0 offer support

= accepting or offering of gifts as well as any kind of entertainment

= operating business with sales and marketing

= operating business with procurement and purchase
Continuously communicate and PR the anti-corruption policy with practice regulations which are related
to the external persons and the Company’s personnel via numerous channels; such as the Company’s
website, Intranet system and circular letter.

PR to the trade partners to acknowledge and practice along with the policy not to obtain gifts and reception
party of New Year's celebration including to determine the Company’s personnel who obtain gifts and
entertainment to practice in accordance with mentioned policy in order to build up good faith to operate the
business with fairess towards all related parties.

Communicate the practice guideline of anti-corruption to the trade partners to acknowledge and support
them to participate with the anti-corruption.

Establish communication channels to accept complaint or whistleblowing of anti-corruption with the measures
for whistleblower protection. Those whistle-blowers or complainers shall have the protection by keeping it as
confidential. The case shall be taken to the audit process with carefulness and fairness.

In 2019, the Company found no issuances that have significant conceming to the corruption or any
operation that not complied with the laws or defined regulations as well the violation against business ethics.

The Company had renewed membership of Thailand’s Private Sector Collective Action Coalition against
Corruption (CAC-Recertification) by CAC Committee for the quarter 3/2562 dated on November 4, 2019.
(1* Certified Membership was March 9, 2018.)

Human Right Respect

The Company gives priority to the fundamental rights of humanity by caring with equality, no discrimination
of nationality, religion, nationality, gender, skin tone, age, physical ability, sexual taste, political opinion, financial
status, education or other status as well as to give respect to individual and dignity of humanity in compliance
with the principles of international norm.

As the Company realizes the respect of human rights and the violation of human rights, is one of the factors
to enhance the sustain growth of the Company’s business, therefore it has been determined in the Policy of
Corporate Governance and Ethical Business and communicated to all executives and employees to acknowledge
and practice.
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The Company conducts business in compliance with laws and principles of human rights. Not all discrimination
is sex discrimination. Not to employ child labor, the employment of people with disabilities to encourage persons
with disabilities were employed and provide them with fundamental  rights as follows:

m The Company develops working ability of employees regularly and continuously by having be trained
or instructed. The have an opportunity to attend numerous development projects and training courses
whether in the country or abroad. They are assigned to work as a team.

m The Company cares for the rights of fair employment. Employees are permitted to leave for absence
or transfer. Communication channels are provided for the employees to express their opinion directly
to the executives.

m The Company responses to employees’ need with the provision of welfare such as medical expense,
group insurance for accident and life, provident fund and other monetary support for numerous cases.
The Company places importance on the safety of employees in the working place by conducting fire
drill, fire prevention system and activities about safety.

Fair Treatment towards Labor

The Company recognizes the human rights and equality are equal. Employees are treated fairly regardless
of difference in physical, mentality, nationality, religious, gender, age, education or others.

Employees are the most valuable assets for the business operation of the Company. Apart from the development
of professional skill knowledge and competency, the Company emphasizes and places importance on fair
treatment to employees. Fair employment that is related to the ability to perform duties, numerous remuneration
and welfare will be complied with the labor laws. Treat to existing employees and new employees with fairness
without prejudice or discrimination, whether direct or indirect. Regard to the management of labor employment,
it has employment contract, employment condition and other benefits with the same standard of rules and frame
such as payroll, working time, holiday, knowledge development, discipline practice, dismissal, elimination of
unfair-dismissal, remuneration or reward based on each level of working performance, and assignment of duty
with fairness. Employees are given opportunity to have promotion of their position due to competency of each
person. Employees are given opportunity to express different opinions freely and with creativity as individual who
has equality in the organization. To ensure that employees are treated fairly, the Company gave the guidelines
fairly towards all employees according to the framework of the code of conduct. Employees are freely to complain
the matters that related to unfair practices.

Responsibility to Consumers

The Company places importance on responsibility towards consumers as always. The standard manufactures
are selected as well as the products of high quality which the Company cares for the safety and benefit of
consumers as priority. The brand Guy Laroche, is elegant underwear from the best quality of raw materials
and import laces, which are comfortable and non-irritation. The design and collection of the products reflect
the taste of elegant beauty, including the neat of unique cutting. Provision of the service to adjust the size or
length of the bra with no additional cost. Gunze is the leading brand of inner wear from Japan. It' produced
from soft textile which is special innovation of Gunze. Gunze realizes the importance of inner wear that it
directly touches the skin while wearing, as well as to leave comfortable feeling under slogan “A Touch of
Comfort”, with additional special feature of anti-bacteria, softness-added with Durable Soft and technology
of sewing from Japan. G&G lady underwear, is alternation for consumers who prefers modern design with
affordable price but good quality. G&G Sport Bra is made of the fabrics that accentuate to support sides of
the breasts firmly. In 2019, Guy Laroche has selected 100% cotton fabric to make the night wear products,
which is comfortable to wear with affordable price but the quality remains superb as it is the heart of our
brand towards the consumers.

All cosmetic brands of the Company which comprise of Covermark, Sungrace, KMA and Paul&Joe, are
certified by Foods and Drugs Administration (FDA) completely. All products have labels and information to
provide correct application to consumers to receive the optimum benefits in accordance with the regulations
and the standard as defined by FDA and the Office of the Consumer Protection Board. Counter sales girls
are available for providing suggestion and knowledge that are benefits for consumers.



Furthermore, the Company’s Member Relation Unit and cosmetic Call Center are established for having
duties to collect members’ data and inform the news inclusive of privilege benefit that the members shall
retain. The consumers who have query or need information or have problem can contact at Tel. no. 02 295
1333 or Fax no. 02 295 0411.

6 Consening the Environment

The Company realizes the importance of environment conservation, the cosmetic products are well
selected from the manufacturers, who receive GMP certificates as continuously. They have policies to source
raw materials and packaging inclusive of manufacturing process that are friendly to the environment. The
Company’s cosmetics contained natural raw materials, which are such as KMA Peach Mellow Jelly Tint and
Granular Eye. Baby Peach and Kakadu Plum are natural ingredients that give skin nourishment, and Snow
Algae is contained in KMA Power C+ Cushion. All products are safety for consumers and friendly to the
environment.

7  Community and Society Development

The operation of the Company’s business is aware of the responsibility toward the community and the
society. The Company determines the practice guideline by implanting conscious to employees at all levels
to have responsibility towards the community and the society. The Company does not operate its business
that violates the rights of the others, while it supports the conservation of local culture and tradition. The
Company co-operates with different organizations to develop the community and the society, including to
build up good relationship among the Company to the community and society as a whole.

The Company plays a part of developing the community and the society through the CSR Project “Pass
on Happiness to the Society through Beauty Dimension”. Information of this project is disclosed on pages
122 - 144 of this annual report.

8 Innovation and Publicize of Innovation from th ration that is r nsible towar iety, Environment
and Stakeholders

In 2019, the Company has changed the system of ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) from SAP
Version 4.7 to SAP S/4 HANA which it is latest generation of SAP HANA Platform. The performance of In-
Memory Database is the outstanding point of SAP S/4 HANA. Its SAP IS-Retail system helps to reduce the
process and complication of working, and has ability to manage the shops with systematic and efficiency
by integrating data from all dimension to analyze, in order to response the need of each customers’ group
fast and straight to the point. In addition, the Company applies the service system of SAP Analytics Cloud
(SAC) which is developed by SAP HANA Cloud Platform to analyze big data services running on the cloud,
to emphasize on analyze Business Intelligence and to set plan for inside of the organization. User can assess
to the data everywhere and every time through portable tools like smart phone or tablet, as well as through
PC or Notebook.

The Company has developed the system of offline sales management (POS) for connecting with SAP
IS-Retail to be able to report data of the shops as Real Time which consists of total sales amount, inventory,
customers and the working of employees. This will be beneficial to monitor the data, analysis, planning and
making decision

10.Internal Control and Risk Management
10.1 Opinion of the Board of Directors on the Internal Control System

The Board of Directors places importance on Internal Control System and Risk Management. Therefore,
the Company established the system of internal control that covering all activities that are in compliance
with the principles of good corporate governance as regularly and continuously. To emphasize on sufficient
and appropriate internal control, accurate accounting system and the financial statements. There is a system
to protect assets and reduce the damage that caused by error or corruption, including the practice that
complies by regulations and relevant laws.
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At the meeting of the Board of Director No. 1/2563 held on February 12, 2020 attended by 3
members of the audit committee, there was an evaluation of sufficiency and appropriation of internal control
system in lines with The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of Treachery Commission (COSQO). The
overall conclusion of internal control system agreed that the Company has sufficiency and appropriation
towards the business operation, as well as an effective way to protect the property from damage. The assets
were supervised effectively as well as the implement of resources. It found no significant flaws in the internal
control system and concluded that the current system is appropriate and sufficient for the operations. The
Company has sufficient human resources to efficiently execute internal control. The situation with a possible
of business risks was evaluated and analyzed whether from internal or external factors. There was an
appropriated measure to prevent corruption and risk management, including the oversight of transactions
with a possible conflict of interest and connected transactions which complied with the Company’s policy
as follows:

Control Environment

The Company establishes the internal control system covering each activity with sufficient and appropriation
towards the Company’s business. The Company’s organization structure decentralizes power to allow for
operational flexibility, a system of checks and balance and anti-corruption. The charters of each committee
are in writing to provide a clear scope of responsibility with segregation of duties. In addition, the Company
has a policy on corporate governance, anti-corruption, which have been communicated to everyone in
the organization. Directors, executive officers and employees are required to follow these guidelines with
straightforwardness to avoid conflicts of interest and corruption, which would damage our organization.
The Company has a system to monitor and assess our operations based on good corporate governance,
regulations, and best practices. Should non-compliance be found, the Company has a mechanism of punitive
action to deal with such a violation in a timely and appropriate manner, in accordance with relevant regulations
and laws.

The Company has a project to develop competency of all employees in order to improve their skill
levels to create the strength that leads the Company to achieve vision. The Company places importance to
the welfare and safety of the directors, executives and all employees, the welfare of group insurance and
annual health check-up is provided for everyone. The Safety and Occupational Health Committee has been
established in the working place. Fire Drills training course is conducted with theory and practice for enhancing
the understanding of all employees in order to prevent from fired that might occur inside and outside the
Company. The Company also encourages the employees to do exercise for having good health.

Risk Assessment

The Company assigns the Risk Management Committee to have duties to corporate and to evaluate the
Risk that may affect the total operation of business that include of financial management, business operation,
the management and chance of corruption, safety, occupational health, environment and other important risks
that are related to the Company’s business operation. The risks causing by internal and external factors that affect
to the Company’s operation shall be  analyzed. Plan and procedure shall be clearly defined in order to monitor
the result of risk assessment continuously. All sections in the Company are the parts of the management to
control the risk to be in acceptable level.

The Company evaluates the risks that may cause corruption by the risk management committee. The sub-
committee is established to consider and evaluate the chance and possibility that may cause corruption inside or
outside the organization for setting up the protection system. The risk management committee assesses chances
of corruption and carefully reviews its goals. It also considers the appropriacy of incentives and compensations
given to employees to ascertain whether they encourage inappropriate action. The audit committee is participated
to consider and questions the executives about chances of corruption and anti-corruption measures. The Company
communicates to all directors, executives and employees to promote their understanding and compliance with
anti-corruption policy and guidelines. They are prohibited from accepting or offering bribes for a benefit advantage.
The anti-corruption policy is communicated to all groups of stakeholders and is publicized via the Company’s
website.



Control Activities

The Company clearly outlines the scope of authority, responsibility and of approved budgets for each
level of management in written. We have separations of duties and responsibilities of each department as
a system of checks and balances. The Company has measures to monitor the corporate compliance with
relevant laws for all transaction or an affiliate of the aforementioned persons, as well as for any connected
transactions. The directors who are stakeholders, shall leave the meeting and do abstain from voting for
allowing the others to express opinion independently.

In regard to the transaction it the type of long term legal binding, the Company has monitored the
practice to be followed with the conditions as agreed and to review the appropriate contract to meet with
the current situation.

Information an mmunication

The meeting schedule of the Board of Directors is annually set in advance. Information is proposed in
advance sufficiently for the Board to consider approval. Financial Statements is prepared according to Thai Financial
Reporting Standard (TFRS) by selecting the accounting policy that appropriates with the type of the Company’s
business.

The modern and effective Information Technology system is implemented to support the operation inside
the organization to achieve the Company’s objective. Information system is developed continuously to rapid the
communication system that provides flexible and clear management. The communication through Information
Technology system has the unit to collect, analyze and input in the Company’s mainframe and with evaluation and
to monitor the system to be effective and in complies with the policy of the Company. Therefore, the Company
is able to control and prevent the problem causing by error and obtains the information which is fast, accurate
and trustworthy. Thus the management shall receive the information on time and can utilize it to support decision
making at current situation. In addition, the Company establishes the measure to safe the hardware, software and
data base by having Firewall program to protect the trespassing and the program to anti the virus. The copies of
data are kept in the form of electronic both indoor and outdoor, including the all- time maintenance agreement
for server units.

The Company has and effective communication process for both inside and outside the organization. The
appropriate communicate channels are available to support the procedure of Internal Control System to run as
determined. The Company establishes the communicate channels to receive information or whistleblowing about
the corruption or any action that breach the laws, regulations and the Company’s principles of associations.
Information of whistleblowers and complainers are kept as confidential.

In 2019, the Company has changed the system of ERP (Enterprise Resource Planning) from SAP Version
4.7 to SAP S/4 HANA which it is latest generation of SAP HANA Platform. The performance of In-Memory
Database is the outstanding point of SAP S/4 HANA. Its SAP IS-Retail system helps to reduce the process and
complication of working, and has ability to manage the shops with systematic and efficiency for developing the
organization to be ready for the rapid change.

Monitoring Activities

The Company has determined and evaluated its internal control system to be appropriated with the
business operation regularly. The Company monitors and evaluates the performance with continuity. As for the
effective and efficient management, it is the responsibility of each department to regularly monitor and assess
their department’s performance to ascertain the fullness and suitability of internal control processes and period
in order to achieve a goal.

The internal audit unit has duty to audit the operation to be in accordance with the internal control as
determined by the Company, and report it directly to the audit committee if any significant defects are found
when they have a meeting every month. The audit committee has to report to the Board of Directors for corrective
action and to monitor progress in improving deficiencies regularly.
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10.2 Audit Committee Opinion on the Internal Control System

The Audit Committee agreed with the Company’s Board of Directors for sufficient and accurate internal control
system.

10.3 Chief of Internal Audit’s Information

At the meeting of the Audit Committee Meeting, Mrs. Natchanok Ueasiriphan was appointed to be chief
internal auditor, due to a qualified individual knowledge and experiences for the internal audit work that is appropriate
for this duty.

According to the charter of the audit committee, internal audit unit has line of duty to report directly to the audit
committee. As such, to consider and approve the appointment, transfer and dismissal of the incumbent chief of the
internal audit, must be approved by the audit committee.

Information of Chief of Internal Audit

Name Education Proportion Training for Internal Audit
Mrs. Natchanok Bachelor Degree - - Role, Duty, Responsibility and Internal Audit Process
Ueasiriphan of Accounting - Internal Audit Report Writing
age 43 Years - Business - Audit Operation
Administration Faculty - Assessing Business Risk : The Gateway to Value-Added Results
Kasetsart University - COSO Framework
- Auditor-In-Charge Tools And Techniques

10.4 Head of Compliance

The Company does not appoint Head of Compliance to supervise its operation but assigned the legal
division to be responsible to supervise the practice of the Company to be in accordance with the laws, regulations,
code of conducts and the definitions from related units.

10.5 The Person taking the highest Responsibility in Finance and Accounting

The Company appoints Mrs. Chantra Tangthanasaringkarn™, director of accounting-finance division, to take the
highest responsibility in finance and accounting. Mrs. Phatra Thongcha-om, deputy manager of accounting division,
is appointed to be the Company’s bookkeeper under the accounting ACT 2543 B.E. to prepare the financial
statement and disclose information of the Company to be accurate.

Name Education Shareholding Accounting Training
Mrs. Phatra Bachelor Degree - - Issues for Auditor to consider to act in accordance with the standard
Thongcha-om of Accounting of Financial Statement
age 54 Years Faculty of Accounting - Preparation for Lease Accounting, Read and Write

Dhurakij Pundit
University

- Study of Tissue “Land, Buildings and Relevant International Financial
Reporting Standard’s Equipment

- Update key issues of 2018 Internal Financial Reporting Standards

- Financial Reporting Standard No.16 (DRAFT) Leases

- TFRS 15 (DRAFT) Revenue from Contracts with Customers

- Sustainable growth in the information era on the basic understanding
of accounting and taxation that related with the business of SAHA Group.

- TFRS 9 (DRAFT) Thai Financial Reporting Standards

* Information of Mrs. Chantra Tangthanasaringkarn act of the highest Responsibility in Finance and Accounting as
detail on page 214

11. Related Transaction
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As at December 31, 2019 the Company had transactions with related persons or parties following to

the Note to the Financial Statement 5. Pages 246 - 249



12. Important Financial Information

The Board of Directors’ Responsibilities Report

towards Financial Statements

The Board of Directors duly recognized their obligations and responsibilities in their status as the directors
of listed company, with regard to the compilation of financial statements for O.C.C. Public Company Limited and its
subsidiaries. The said financial statements were prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards
(TFRS), based on the adoption of appropriate accounting policies on a consistent basis, accompanied by careful
consideration and justifiable accounting estimates. The adequate significant information was disclosed in notes to the
financial statements, together with necessary clarification and analysis regarding the financial positions and performances
by the Company and its subsidiaries, so as to contribute to the interests of the shareholders and general investors.
Moreover, the said financial statements were duly audited with unqualified audit opinion by independent certified public
accountants.

In addition, the Board of Directors had exercised efforts to promote good corporate governance practice,
and to establish risk management system and internal control system in an efficient and effective manner, to ensure
that the recording of accounting information was carried out in an accurate, complete, and sufficient manner, in order
to safeguard the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries, while also safeguarding against any significant fraud or
abuse.

In the regard, the Company’s Audit Committee whose members comprising independent directors had
duly carried out audit work on the quality of the financial statements and the efficiency of internal control system. The
opinions of the Audit Committee were displayed per the Audit Committee’s report contained in the annual report
publication, as well as the annual registration statements (Form 56-1).

Accordingly, the Board of Directors concluded that, the good corporate governance practice, the risk
management system, as well as the internal control system of the Company, were well adequate and sufficient,
reasonably providing sufficient confidence to all concerned parties hat, the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries ending December 31, 2019, were prepared and presented in substantial context, in an accurate and
reliable manner.

Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn Ms. Teerada Ambhanwong
Chairman Managing Director & CEO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of O.C.C. Public Company Limited

Opinion

| have audited the financial statements of O.C.C. Public Company Limited , which comprise the statement of
financial position as at December 31, 2019 , and the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes

in shareholders’ equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
O.C.C. Public Company Limited as at December 31, 2019 , and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Basis for Opinion

| conducted my audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. |
am independent of the Company in accordance with the Federation of Accounting Profession’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements,
and | have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. | believe that the audit
evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, were of most significance in my audit of the
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of my audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming my opinion thereon, and | do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters included auditing procedures are as follows:
Provision for devaluation of inventories.

As stated in Note to financial statements No. 9, the Company has material amount of inventories amount of Baht
235 million as at December 31, 2019 valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value in the financial statements.
The Management ,therefore, has made judgment to consider the suitable amount of provision for devaluation of
inventories against obsolete inventories by making analytical in almost expired and outdated of each inventory. The
net realizable value is considered from expected discount sales plan.

| have ensured relating to the suitable assumption used by the Management for calculation provision for devaluation
of inventories by included.
e Obtain an understanding of operation procedure and internal control related to consideration of
provision for devaluation of inventories
e Review the design and implementation of internal control procedure.
e Perform the operating effectiveness testing over the internal control procedure of provision for

devaluation of inventories process.
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e Perform substantive testing as follows
- Observing in physical count of inventories.
- Comparing cost of goods with net realizable value calculated by the selling price after reporting period.
- Making analytical in turnover of inventories in order to indentify the slow-movement, almost expired and
outdated inventories.
- Test calculation in provision for devaluation of inventories.

Revenue recognition from consignment

The company is cosmetic and clothes distributor by having main channel in Department Store (Customer). Ownership
of consignment goods is not transferred to customer when delivered and customer has the rights to return goods in
various ways in some cases. Revenue from consignment will not be recognized until ownership is transferred from
customer to third person. The consignee will not hold ownership or make payment until goods is sold from consignee
to third person according to condition in the consignment agreement.

| have assessed and tested the effectiveness of internal control in order to ensure the accuracy and completeness of
recording revenue recognition from consignment by.
e Obtain an understanding of operation procedure and internal control related to consignment.
e Check by random supporting document of recording revenue recognition incurred during the year and
at the end of the year for considering the possibility of unusual sale transaction.
e Check by random inventories physical count monthly report and comparing with detail of inventories in
the computer system and at the end of period.
e Check by random by making reconcile monthly revenue in computer system with summary of sales
from Department Store.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises information in the annual report,
but does not include the financial statements and my auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be
made available to me after the date of this auditor's report.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and | do not and will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other information identified
above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements
or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

When | read the annual report, if | conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, | am required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance for correction of the misstatement.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
Thai Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
Thai Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Thai Standards on Auditing, | exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. | also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem. If | conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. My conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concem.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that | identify during
my audit.

| also provide those charged with governance with a statement that | have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on my independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, | determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. |
describe these matters in my auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, | determine that a matter should not be communicated in my report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

D | A International Audit Co., Ltd.

£ Hoilypobiont

( Mrs. Suvimol Chrityakierne )
C.P.A. (Thailand)
Registration No. 2982

February 12, 2020
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Current investments

Trade and other current receivables
Inventories

Other current assets

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Investments held as available for sale
Other long-term investments

Loans to related company
Investment property

Building and equipment

Leasehold rights

Other intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets

Total non-current assets

Total assets

Notes

11
12
13
14
15
16
17

18

19

Unit : Baht

2019 2018
49,463,961 48,566,353
160,327,859 220,108,739
174,606,402 178,864,848
235,441,414 229,463,960
31,293,546 28,740,719
651,133,182 705,744,619
94,585,356 100,432,108
46,439,623 50,700,945
6,788,826 9,677,354
316,895,342 308,228,631
19,826,074 25,294,894
36,779,695 41,671,580
20,845,951 10,171,213
36,599,534 34,262,121
4,355,971 3,694,368
583,116,372 584,033,214

1,234,249,554

1,289,777,833

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2019

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Trade and other current payables
Accrued income tax
Current provisions for other liabilities
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Non-Current provisions for employee benefits
Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital
Authorised share capital
80,000,000 common shares of Baht 1 each
Issued and paid share capital
60,000,000 common shares of Baht 1 each
Premium on share capital
Retained earnings
Appropriated
Legal reserve
General investment reserve
Unappropriated
Other components of Shareholders’ equity

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Unit : Baht

Notes 2019 2018
20 141,091,680 179,165,457
5,823,435 5,213,944
3,653,290 -
150,568,405 184,379,401
21 90,511,408 87,315,120
90,511,408 87,315,120
241,079,813 271,694,521
80,000,000 80,000,000
60,000,000 60,000,000
36,500,000 36,500,000
8,259,676 8,259,676
49,000,000 49,000,000
795,502,848 815,739,018
43,907,217 48,584,618
993,169,741 1,018,083,312

1,234,249,554

1,289,777,833

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Revenue from sale and services

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Other Income
Gains from disposal of assets held for sale
Other

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Finance costs

Profit before income tax

Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss

Components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Loss on remeasuring investments held as available for sale
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to profit or loss

Total components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income that will not be re-
classified to profit or loss

Loss on remeasuring of defined benefit plans
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive
income that will be not reclassified to profit or loss

Total components of other comprehensive income that will be
reclassified to profit or loss

Other comprehensive loss for the year, net by tax income
Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit per share (Baht)

Basic earnings per share

The number of common share issued

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Notes

10

23

2019

1,127,294,461

(591,010,071)

Unit : Baht
2018
1,274,767,939
(641,289,127)

536,284,390 633,478,812
- 159,996,703

11,838,071 36,128,432
(344,915,749)  (452,240,879)
(164,381,341)  (166,400,208)
- (283,222)

38,825,371 210,679,638
(7,265,566)  (41,585,147)
31,559,805 169,094,491
(5,846,751) (3,590,653)
1,169,350 718,131
(4,677,401) (2,872,522)
(4,744,969) -
948,994 -
(3,795,975) -
(8,473,376) (2,872,522)
23,086,429 166,221,969
0.53 282
60,000,000 60,000,000
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0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before income tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to cash receipt (paid)
from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
Amortisation of leasehold rights
Bad debt and doubtful accounts (Reversal)
Allowance for returned goods (Reversal)
Loss on cost adjustment for inventories
Loss from devaluation of inventories (Reversal)
Inventory donation and welfare expense
Write off ruined goods
Unrealized loss from current investment
Gain from sale of current investments
Loss from impairment of other long-term investments
Gain from disposal of assets held for sale
Loss on disposal and written-off of plant and equipment
Employee benefits expenses
Profit from operating activities Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) Decrease of change in operating assets
Trade and other current receivables
Inventories
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Increase (Decrease ) of change in operating liabilities
Trade and other current payables

Current provisions for other liabilities

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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Unit : Baht

2019 2018
38,825,371 210,679,638
11,800,670 10,020,519
4,791,886 4,805,925
(677,943) (926,610)
(20,046,000) (4,354,482)
2,673,432 8,189,607
1,648,912 (1,040,091)
358,420 1,672,380
973,272 1,588
(219,120) (108,739)
(402,505) (445,298)
6,511,323 882,197
- (159,996,873)
(723,018) 361,112
8,697,574 6,475,067
54,212,274 76,215,940
24,882,389 38,259,112
(11,531,490) (4,542,961)
(2,652,827) (2,376,079)
(661,603) 1,873,784

(38,157,986)
3,653,290

(13,116,234)




0.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

Notes

Cash flows from operating activities (Continued)
Cash received from operating
Employee benefits paid
Income tax paid
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities

Cash paid for purchase of current investments

Cash received from sales of current investment

Cash paid for purchase of other long-term investment

Cash received from converting debenture to common share
Cash paid for loan to a related company

Cash received from loans to related company

Cash paid for purchasing investment property

Cash received from disposal non-current assets
classified as held for sale

Cash paid for purchase of building and equipment
Cash received from disposal of building and equipment
Cash paid for purchase of other intangible assets

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activity

Cash paid from short-term loans from financial institutions
Dividend paid

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activity

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period

Unit : Baht

2019 2018
29,844,047 96,313,562
(10,246,255) (5,866,309)
(6,875,145) (48,309,355)
12,722,647 42,137,898
(140,000,000)  (430,000,000)
210,402,505 280,445,298
(12,250,000) (9,250,000)
- 25
- (6,000,000)
2,888,528 5,471,779
(9,178,167) (20,520,481)
- 284,244,553
(4,094,994) (11,018,307)
747,664 456,075
(12,340,575) (56,660,074)
36,174,961 88,168,868
- (80,000,000)
(48,000,000) (39,000,000)
(48,000,000) (119,000,000)
897,608 11,306,766
48,566,353 37,259,587
49,463,961 48,566,353

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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0O.C.C. PUBLIC COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019

1. General information
Registration : The Company was incorporated in Thailand on August 14, 1973 and registered and
transformed as a public company limited on May 9, 1994 registration
No. 0107537001323
Location at : No. 729/4-7 Rachadapisek Road, Kwang Bang Phong Phang, Khet Yannawa district,
Bangkok 10120
Type business . Distributing cosmetics, clothes, beauty accessories and rendering of beauty services.
Major shareholder :  Major shareholder are I.C.C. International Public Company Limited (19.73% shareholding),
and Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Public Company Limited ( 12.73% shareholding) both
were incorporated in Thailand, and Mr. Sumroeng Manoonphol ( 15.01% shareholding ).
2. Basis for financial statements presentation
2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS);

guidelines promulgated by the Federation of Accounting Professional (“FAP”), and the Regulation of The Stock
Exchange of Thailand (SET) dated 2 October 2017, regarding the preparation and submission of financial statements
and reports for the financial position and financial performance of the listed companies B.E. 2560. The format of
presentation of the financial statements is not significantly different from the Notification of the Department of Business
Development regarding “The Brief Particulars in the Financial Statements (No. 2) B.E. 2559” dated 11 October 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as transaction disclosed
in related accounting policy.

The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the Company. The financial
statements in English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.

These financial statements are prepared and presented in Baht currency used in operation of the Company.
2.2 New financial reporting standards
A. Financial reporting standards that become effective in the current period

During the period, the Company and have adopted the revised (revised 2018) and new financial reporting
standards and interpretations which are effective for the financial statements for the period beginning on or
after January 1, 2019. These financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding
International Financial Reporting Standards with most of the changes and clarifications directed towards
disclosures in the notes to financial statements. The adoption of those financial reporting standards does
not have any significant impacts on the Company financial statements. However, new financial reporting
standard has changed key principle as follows.

TFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers establishes for the entity to use in accounting for revenue
arising from contracts with customers, the core principle is that the entity should recognize revenue to depict
the transfer of promised goods or services to the customers in an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the entity expects to be entitled. This standard introduces a five-step model including exercise of
judgment for taking into consideration of the principle in each step of model applying. TFRS 15 supersedes
TAS 11 Construction Contracts and TAS 18 Revenue.

The Company recognizes the effect from adoption of this financial reporting standard by making reclassification
and not adjusting retained earnings due to reduction revenues by distribution cost as at January 1, 2019
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and the comparative information was not reclassified and selecting practical expedients by not restate
completed contracts as at 1 January 2019 for which the entity has transferred all of the goods or services
identified in accordance with the previous accounting policy.

The cumulative effect from changing accounting policy is presented in note 3.
. Financial reporting standards that will become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2020

The Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of new and revised financial reporting standards
and interpretations, which are effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2020. These financial
reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards
with most of the changes directed towards clarifying accounting treatment and providing accounting guidance
for users of the standards except the following new standards which involve changes to key principles,
which are summarized below

Financial reporting standards related to financial instruments consists of five accounting standards and
interpretations, as follows:

Financial reporting standards:
TFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures
TFRS 9 Financial Instruments
Accounting standard:
TAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation
Financial Reporting Standard Interpretations:
TFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
TFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments

These TFRSs related to financial instruments make stipulations relating to the classification of financial
instruments and their measurement at fair value or amortised cost (taking into account the type of instrument,
the characteristics of the contractual cash flows and the Company’s business model), calculation of impairment
using the expected credit loss method, and hedge accounting. These include stipulations regarding the
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. When the TFRSs related to financial instruments are
effective, some accounting standards, interpretations and guidance which are currently effective will be cancelled.

The management of the Company and its subsidiaries expect that the adoption of these accounting standards
to result in the following adjustments.

- Classification and measurement of investments in equity instruments of nonisted companies - The
Company are to measure investments in equity instruments of non-listed companies at fair value and
elect to classify the investments as financial assets at fair value, through either profit or loss or through
other comprehensive income. If the Company and subsidiaries elect to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of the investment through other comprehensive income, the election is irrevocable.

- Recognition of credit losses - The Company are to recognise an allowance for expected credit losses on
its financial assets, and they are no longer necessary for a credit - impaired event to have occurred. The
Company apply simplified approach to consider impairment of trade receivables

The Management of the Company is currently evaluating the impact on the financial statements of the year
when group. Such standards are adopted.

TFRS 16 Leases

TFRS 16 supersedes TAS 17 Leases together with related Interpretations. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases, and requires a lessee to recognize
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assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is low value.

Accounting by lessors under TFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from TAS 17. Lessors will continue to
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles to those used under TAS 17.

The Management of the Company has expected that the adoption of such financial reporting standard will
effect statement of financial position as at January 1, 2020 by increasing right of use assets and liabilities
under leases at the same amount approximately Baht 16.30 million.

3. The effect of changes in accounting policies due to the adoption of new financial
reporting standards

As described in Note 2.2 to the financial statements, during the current year, the Company have adopted TFRS
15 by using the modified retrospective method of adoption and comparative financial statement was not restated.

The amount of reclassification having effect statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2019 from
changing accounting policy due to adoption of TFRS 15 Revenue from contracts with customers is presented
as follows.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
Previous Reclassification

accounting policy  under TFRS 15 As reported
Statement of income
Revenue from sales and services 1,179,635 (562,34 1) 1,127,294
Cost of sales and services (591,010) - (591,010)
Other Income 30,566 (18,728) 11,838
Distribution costs (415,985) 71,069 (344,916)
Administrative expenses (164,523) - (164,523)
Income tax expense (7,238) - (7,238)
Profit for the year 31,445 - 31,445

Detail of reclassification is summarized as follows.

- Revenue allocation of sales of goods and services - The Company consider the income component of the sale
of products and services, by allocating revenues in proportion to the delivered products and the obligations to
be performed in providing services that are included in the contract using the basis of standalone selling prices
of different products or services as obligated in the contract. The extra discount is directly offered to customers
The Company has considered to allocate by proportion to decrease revenues from sales as previously recorded
as distribution cost. Moreover, there is sales promotion in which the company operate for manufacturer which
is refundable as previously recorded as distribution cost and other incomes at the same amount by recording
net offset .

4. Summary of significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue and expense recognition
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Revenue is recognized in profit or loss when control of goods is already transferred to customer. No revenue is
recognized if there is continuing management involvement with the goods or there are significant uncertainties
regarding recovery of the consideration due, associated costs or the probable return of goods. In case of sales
of goods and services (Multiple element arrangements), the component of revenues is allocated in proportion
to the delivered products and the obligations to be performed in providing services that are included in the
contract using the basis of standalone selling prices of different products or services as obligated in the contract.

Revenue from service is recognized when service is completely rendered.



4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Revenue excludes value added taxes and is arrived at after deduction of trade discounts and volume rebates.
Revenue from investments comprises dividend and interest income from investments and bank deposit.
Dividend income is recognized profit or loss on the date the Company’s right to receive payments is established.
Interest income is recognized in profit or loss on accrued basis.

Lease income is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Other and expenses are recognized on revenues on accrual basis.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statements of cash flows comprise cash balances, call deposits period not
exceeding three months and highly liquid shortterm investments.

Trade and other current receivable
Trade and other current receivable are stated at their invoice value less allowance for doubtful accounts.

The allowance for doubtful accounts is assessed primarily on analysis of payment histories and future expectations
of customer payments. Bad debts are written off when incurred.

Inventories
Inventories are measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost principle, and comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs to
complete and to make the sale.

Investments
Investments in other debt and equity securities

Debt securities and marketable equity securities held for trading are classified as current assets and are stated
at fair value, with any resultant gain or loss recognized in profit or loss.

Debt securities that the Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-
to-maturity investments. Held-to-maturity investments are stated at amortized cost, less any impairment losses.
The difference between the acquisition cost and redemption value of such debt securities is amortized using
the effective interest rate method over the period to maturity.

Debt securities and marketable equity securities, other than those securities held for trading or intended to be
held to maturity, are classified as available-for-sale investments. Available-for-sale investments are, subsequent
to initial recognition, stated at fair value, and changes therein, other than impairment losses and foreign currency
differences on available-for-sale monetary items, are recognized directly in equity. Impairment losses and foreign
exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss. When these investments are derecognized, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognized directly in equity is recognized in profit or loss. Where these investments are
interest-bearing, interest calculated using the effective interest method is recognized in profit or loss.

Non-marketable equity securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The fair value of financial instruments classified as held-fortrading and available-for-sale is determined as the
quoted bid price at the reporting date.

Disposal of investments

On disposal of an investment, the difference between net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount together
with the associated cumulative gain or loss that was reported in equity is recognized in profit or loss.
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4.6

4.7

240

If the Company disposes of part of its holding of a particular investment, the deemed cost of the part sold is
determined using the FIFO method applied to the carrying value of the total remaining of the investment.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties which are held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation or for both,
but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.

Investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and loss from impairment (If any).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the investment property. The cost of
self-constructed investment property includes the cost of materials and direct labor, and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the investment property to a working condition for its intended use and capitalized
borrowing costs.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component
of an item of plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Investment property 5 years
Plant and equipment
Recognition and measurement
Owned assets
Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. (if any).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets
to a working condition for their intended use, the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and capitalized borrowing costs. Cost also may include transfers from other
comprehensive income of any gain or loss on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of plant
and equipment. Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is capitalized
as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of plant and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of plant and equipment are determined by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amount of plant and equipment, and are recognized net within other income in
profit or loss. When revalued assets are sold, the amounts included in the revaluation reserve are transferred
to retained earnings.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the
item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to the Company, and
its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized. The costs of the
day-to-day servicing of plant and equipment are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated based on the depreciable amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other amount
Substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Depreciation is charged to profit or loss on a straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of each component
of an item of plant and equipment. The estimated useful lives are as follows:



Buildings and other constructions 20 years

Office equipment 3and 5 vyears
Beautifying accessories 5 vyears
Vehicles 5 vyears
Furnishing of office 10 vyears
Furnishing of selling areas 5 vyears

No depreciation is provided on assets under construction.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

4.8 Intangible assets
Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives i.e. Software licenses are
measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company and have infinite useful lives i.e. trademark are measured
at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the
specific asset to which it relates.

Amortization
Amortization is based on the cost of the asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its residual value.

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss on a straightine basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible
assets, from the date that they are available for use, since this most closely reflects the expected pattern of
consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset. The estimated useful lives for the current
and comparative years of Software licenses are 10 years.

Amortization methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if
appropriate.

4.9 Leasehold rights

Leasehold rights that are acquired by the Company and have finite useful lives are measured at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortization

Amortization is recognized in profit or loss. The Company amortizes the cost of leasehold rights on a straight
line basis over the period of the lease agreements. The estimated useful lives are 10 - 28 years.

4.10 Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there
is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets’ recoverable amounts are estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The
impairment loss is recognized in profit or loss unless it reverses a previous revaluation credited to equity, in
which case it is charged to equity.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset has been recognized directly in equity and
there is objective evidence that the value of the asset is impaired, the cumulative loss that had been recognized
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directly in equity is recognized in profit or loss even though the financial asset has not been derecognized. The
amount of the cumulative loss that is recognized in profit or loss is the difference between the acquisition cost
and current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognized in profit or loss.

Recoverable value calculation

The recoverable amount of held-to-maturity securities carried at amortized cost is calculated as the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The recoverable amount of available-for-sale financial assets is calculated by reference to the fair value.

The recoverable amount of a non-financial asset is the greater of the asset’s value in use and fair value less costs
to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. For an asset that does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Reversals of impairment

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss.
For financial assets carried at amortized cost and available-for-sale financial assets that are debt securities, the
reversal is recognized in profit or loss. For available-for-sale financial assets that are equity securities, the reversal
is recognized in other comprehensive income.

4.11 Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at exchange rates at the dates of
the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated to the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date.

Foreign currency differences are generally recognized in profit or loss.

4.12 Operating lease

Payments made under operating leases are recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the lease.

Contingent lease payments are accounted for by revising the minimum lease payments over the remaining term
of the lease when the lease adjustment is confirmed.

Determining whether an arrangement contains a lease

At inception of an arrangement, the Company determines whether such an arrangement is or contains a lease. A
specific asset is the subject of a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that specified
asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the Company the right
to control the use of the underlying asset.

4.13 Employee benefits
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Defined contribution plan
Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided.
Defined benefit plans

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount.



The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected
unit credit method.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, actuarial gain or loss are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income. The Company determines the interest expense on the net defined benefit liability for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the
annual period, taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans
are recognized in profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognized in profit or loss when the plan amendment or curtailment occurs, or when the
entity recognizes related restructuring costs.

Short-term employee benefits

Shortterm employee benefit is immediately recognized as employee benefit in which the employee render the
related service. Liabilities are recognized at the undiscounted amount of the benefit expected to be paid in
exchange for the related service when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such
payment as a result of past events and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

4.14 Income tax

Income tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to a business combination, or items recognised directly in
equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow the manner in which the
Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when
they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

In determining the amount of current and deferred tax, the Company takes into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional taxes and interest may be due. The Company believes that its accruals for
tax liabilities are adequate for all open tax years based on its assessment of many factors, including interpretations
of tax law and prior experience. This assessment relies on estimates and assumptions and may involve a series
of judgements about future events. New information may become available that causes the Company to change
its judgement regarding the adequacy of existing tax liabilities; such changes to tax liabilites will impact tax
expense in the period that such a determination is made.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities
and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on
different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets
and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

243



4.15 Accounting estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Financial Reporting Standards required the management
to make several estimation and assumption which affect the reported amounts in the financial statements and
notes related thereto. Consequent actual results may differ from these estimate and may be adjusted in the
next accounting period. Significant accounting estimate are allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for
impairment of assets.

4.16 Provision

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to liability. The unwinding
of the discount is recognized as finance cost.

4.17 Earnings per share

The Company presents basic earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by
dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

4.18 Segment reporting

Segment results that are reported to the Company’s CEO (the chief operating decision maker) include items
directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated
items comprise mainly interest or dividend earning assets and revenue, and corporate assets and expenses.

4.19 Measurement of fair values
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The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. This includes a
valuation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all significant fair value measurements, including Level
3 fair values, and reports directly to the CFO.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party
information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to measure fair values, then the valuation team
assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the conclusion that such valuations meet the
requirements of TFRS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market observable data as far as
possible. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in
the valuation techniques as follows:

e Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (ie. derived from prices).

e Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or liability might be categorized in different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirely in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period
during which the change has occurred.



4.20 Significant accounting judgments and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management
to make subjective judgments and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgments
and estimates affect reported amounts and disclosures and actual results could differ. Significant judgments
and estimates are as follow:

Revenue from contracts with customers
Identification of performance obligations

In identifying performance obligations, the management is required to use judgement regarding whether each
promise to deliver goods or services is considered distinct, taking into consideration terms and conditions of the
arrangement. In other words, if a good or service is separately identifiable from other promises in the contract
and if the customer can benefit from it, it is accounted for separately.

Determination of timing of revenue recognition

In determining the timing of revenue recognition, the management is required to use judgement regarding
whether performance obligations are satisfied over time or at a point in time, taking into consideration terms and
conditions of the arrangement. The Company and its subsidiaries recognise revenue over time in the following
circumstances:

- the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance
as the entity performs

- the entity’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created
or enhanced; or

- the entity’s performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date

Where the above criteria are not met, revenue is recognized at a point in time. Where revenue is recognized at
a point in time, the management is required to determine when the performance obligation under the contract
is satisfied

Allowance for doubtful accounts

Allowances for doubtful accounts are intended to adjust the value of receivables for probable credit losses.
The management uses judgment to establish reserves for estimated losses for each outstanding debtor. The
allowances for doubtful accounts are determined through a combination of analysis of debt aging, collection
experience, and taking into account change in the current economic conditions. However, the use of different
estimates and assumptions could affect the amounts of allowances for receivable losses and adjustments to
the allowances may therefore be required in the future.

Provision for devaluation of inventories.

In determining provision for devaluation of inventories, the management is required to make estimates of the
expected loss incurred of inventories. The provision for devaluation of inventories is considered by normal expected
selling price less selling expenses and provision for devaluation of inventories slow movement or obsolete by
the age of each inventories.

Plant and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of plant and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the
useful lives and residual values of the plant and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual
values when there are any changes. In addition, the management is required to review property, plant and
equipment for impairment on a periodical basis and record impairment losses when it is determined that their
recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements regarding forecast of future
revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.
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Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences and losses can
be utilized. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable profits.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plans and other long-term employee benefit plans are determined based
on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various assumptions, including discount rate,
future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.

5. Related Parties Transaction

5.1
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Relationship and pricing policy

Related parties

.C.C. International Plc.

Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc.

International Laboratories Corp., Ltd

Thanulux Plc.

Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.

Zen Salon Business Co., Ltd.

International Commercial Coordination

(Hong Kong) Ltd.
American food Co., Ltd

Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co., Ltd.

Bangkok Tokyo Socks Co., Ltd.
Thai Bunka Fashion Co., Ltd.
Boutique New City Plc.

Thai Gunze Co., Ltd.

People’s Garment Plc.

Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
S&J International Enterprises Plc.
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Thai Itokin Co., Ltd.

EP.F. Co.Ltd.

Shop Global (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
Saha KomeHyo Co.,Ltd.

Saha Capital Tower Co., Ltd.
Wacoal Siracha Co.,Ltd.

Nature of relationships

Major shareholder, 19.7 3% and some common shareholder/
directors

Major shareholder, 12.7 3% and some common shareholder/
directors

Shareholders, 1.20%, and some common shareholder/directors
Shareholders, 0.13%, and some common shareholders

16% shareholding and some common shareholders /directors
15% shareholding and some common shareholders /directors
11% shareholding and some common shareholders /directors

6.60% shareholding and some common shareholders/directors

Some common shareholders

5% shareholding and some common shareholders

5.2 1% shareholding and some common shareholders/directors
4% shareholding and some common shareholders/directors
0.01% shareholding and some common shareholders
Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders/directors

Common shareholders

Common shareholders

Common directors

3.73% shareholding and some common shareholders

5% shareholding and some common shareholders

1% shareholding and some common shareholders / directors

Common shareholders



5.2

Related parties
Mrs. Kanchana Saisiriporn

Mr. Boonsithi Chokwatana

Key executive

Nature of relationships

Director

Closed relative with managing director

Persons having authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the entity, directly
or indirectly including any director (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Company.

Pricing with related parties

Sales of goods

Rendering of services or other income
Dividend income

Loan Interest income

Purchase of goods

Purchase investment

Sales promotion expenses

Consulting fee

Other expenses

The outstanding balance with related parties

Pricing policies

Market price/cost plus margin
Mutually agreed prices

Right to receive dividends

Interest rate 3.5 % per annum
Market price/Mutually agreed prices
Market price /Mutually agreed prices
Market price/Mutually agreed prices

Mutually agreed prices
Market price/Mutually agreed prices

The outstanding balance with related persons and parties as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as

follows:

Trade receivables
.C.C. International Plc
Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.
EP.F. Co.Ltd.
Total
Other current receivables
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.
Total
Deposit
Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co., Ltd.
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc.
1.C.C. International Plc.
Total
Investment held as available-for-sale
Equity securities available-for-sale
.C.C. International Plc.
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc.
Boutique New City Plc.
Total

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
237 350
7 28
5,244 -
5,488 378
11,959 14,805
12 63
34 103
12,005 14,971
408 408
117 117
23 23
548 548
62,869 66,052
24,409 25,722
17 18
87,295 91,792
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Other non-marketable equity securities
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Bangkok Tokyo Socks Co., Ltd.

Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co., Ltd.
Zen Salon Business Co., Ltd.

International Commercial Coordination (Hong Kong) Ltd.

Thai Bunka Fashion Co., Ltd

Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.

American food Co., Ltd

Shop Global (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

Saha KomeHyo Co.,Ltd.

Saha Capital Tower Co.,Ltd.
Total

Less Provision for impairment
Net

Loans to related company
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Total

Trade payables
Shiseido Professional (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Pattaya Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
International Laboratories Corp., Ltd
Thai Gunze Co., Ltd.
S&J International Enterprises Plc.
Thanulux Plc.
Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Total
Other current payables
Tiger Distribution and Logistics Co., Ltd
International Laboratories Co., Ltd
S&J International Enterprises Plc.
1.C.C. International Plc.
Saha Pathana Inter-Holding Plc
Oriental Salon Business Co., Ltd.
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
Total

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
11,200 11,200
7,806 7,806
2,809 2,809
2,200 2,200
1,406 1,406
1,750 1,000
150 150
4,200 4,200
9,000 9,000
6,750 250
5,000 -
52,271 40,021
(9,980) (3.768)
42,291 36,253
6,789 9,677
6,789 9,677
17,940 14,070
3,284 11,477
10,295 9,024
1,199 1,824
1,926 2,120
1,086 1,668
95 4
5,060 -
40,885 40,187
271 439
69 74

- 71

102 135

7 69

1 .

- 73

450 861




Increase (Decrease) of loan to related company are as follows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Financial Statement

Balance as at Increase Decrease Balance as at
Loan to related company December 31, 2018 during during December 31, 2019
the year the year
M.LL. (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 9,677 - (2,888) 6,789
Total 9,677 - (2,888) 6,789

5.3 Revenue and expenditure with related parties

Transactions with related parties for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Sales of goods and rendering of service 15,267 25,055
Dividend income 4,196 3,318
Other income 1,166 25,236
Purchase of goods 310,506 342,846
Sales promotion expenses 736 2,198
Consulting fee 7,651 8,546
Other expenses 6,774 18,916
Director remuneration 4,684 4,747
Executive remuneration
Short-term benefits 22,162 23,669
Long-term benefits 1,721 1,673
Total executive remuneration 23,883 25,342

Additional information of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on hand and cash at banks. Cash and cash equivalents in statement
of cash flows consists of transaction in statement of financial position as follows:

6.1 Cash and cash equivalents as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Cash on hand 76 123
Cash at banks - current accounts 1,317 2,824
Cash at banks - savings accounts 48,071 45,619
Total 49,464 48,566

6.2 Non cash transactions

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
For the year ended December 31,

Payable from purchasing building and equipment 84 1,952
Payable from purchasing other intangible assets - 5
Transfer long-term investment to be current investment 10,000 -
Debenture converted to common share - 2,401
Loss on remeasuring investments held as available for sale (5,847) (1,190)

Total 4,237 3,168
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7. Current investments

Current investments as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Equity securities held for trading 40,328 90,109
Fixed deposit within 1 year 120,000 130,000
Total current investments 160,328 220,109

In2019and 2018 Currentinvestments infixed deposits within 1year have annualinterest rates of 1.40%-1.85%and 1.50%-1.65%, respectively.

Movements during the year ended December 31 of marketable equity securities and debt securities were as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
At January 1 220,000 70,000
Purchases during the year 150,000 430,000
Disposal during the year (210,000) (280,000)
Valuation adjustment 328 109
At December 31 160,328 220,109

8. Trade and other current receivables

Trade and other current receivables as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Trade receivables
Related company 5,488 378
Other company 163,555 190,611
Total 169,043 190,989
Less Allowance for doubtful accounts (6,971) (7,549)
Allowance for goods returned - (20,046)
Net 162,072 163,394
Other current receivables
Related company 12,005 14,971
Others 529 500
Total 12,534 15,471
Trade and other current receivables 174,606 178,865
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Beginning of the period 7,549 8,476
Increase (decrease) during the year (475) (809)
Written off bad debts during the year (103) (118)
End of the period 6,971 7,549
Aging of trade receivable
Trade receivable-Related company
Within credit terms 1,565 89
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Overdue:
Less than 3 months 3,692 -
3 - 6 months (10) (53)
6 - 12 months 38 126
Over 12 months 203 216
Total trade receivable-Related company 5,488 378
Trade receivable-Other company
Within credit terms 94,791 129,571
Overdue:
Less than 3 months 64,647 55,715
3 - 6 months 972 1,516
6 - 12 months 213 27
Over 12 months 2,932 3,782
Total trade receivable-Other company 163,555 190,611

9. Inventories
Inventories as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Inventories 137,344 134,816
Consignment goods 101,134 96,138
Total 238,478 230,954
Less Provision for devaluation of inventories (3,037) (1,490)
Total inventories 235,441 229,464

Inventories recognized as expense in cost of sales;

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
- Cost 589,463 642,329
- Write-off to net realizable value 1,647 (1,040)
Total 591,010 641,289

10. Non-currents assets classified as held for sale

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Cost
As at January 1, 2018 144,248
Disposal (144,248)

As at December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2019 -
As at December 31, 2019 -

On March 21, 2018, the Company transferred land at Land Department resulting in gain from disposal of land
Baht 160 million after deducting direct selling expenses
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11. Investments held as available - for - sale
Other long-term investments as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Equity securities available-for-sale
Related company 87,295 91,792
Other company 7,290 8,640
Total 94,585 100,432

Movement transaction during the year ended December 31, of marketable equity and debt securities are follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
As of January 1 100,432 101,622
Changes in fair value (5,847) (1,190)
As of December 31 94,585 100,432

The fair values of financial assets and the carrying amounts presented in the statement of financial position as at

December 31, 2019 are as follows.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Carrying amount  Fair Value Level 1

Equity securities available-for-sale 94,585 94,585

The above table analyses recurring fair value measurements for financial assets. These fair value measurements
are categorized into different levels in the fair value hierarchy based on the inputs to valuation techniques used.

The level applicable to the Company’s equity securities available-for-sale is defined as follows.

e Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets (Stock Exchange) for identical assets that the Company

can access at the measurement date.
12. Other long-term investments
Other long-term investments as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018

Long-term deposits at financial institutions - 10,000
Other non-marketable equity securities

Related company 52,271 40,021

Less Provision for impairment (9,980) (3,768)

Net 42,291 36,253

Other company 8,125 8,125

Less Provision for impairment (3,976) (3,677)

Net 4,149 4,448

Total 46,440 40,701

Total other long-term investments 46,440 50,701

In 2018, the Company had long-term deposits at financial institution at interest rate 2.125% per annum.
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13. Loans to related company

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company entered into loan to a related company amount of Baht 6.79
million and Baht 9.68 million bearing interest rate 3.5% per annum, respectively. The term of principal and interest
repayment is Baht 300,000 per month. The first repayment commenced on May 31, 2019 and will be ended on
December 31, 2021.

14. Investment property

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Cost

As at January 1, 2018 287,708
Increase 20,521
As at December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2019 308,229
Increase 9,178
As at December 31, 2019 317,407

Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2018 -
Depreciation charge for the year 512

At December 31, 2019 512
Net book value

At December 31, 2018 308,229
At December 31, 2019 316,895

As at December 31, 2019 and 2018, investment property is appraised by Modern Properties Consultant Co,
Ltd., an independent appraiser, by considering comparative market price approach having appraisal value Baht
365.65 million.

15. Plant and equipment

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Building . o Furnishing .

and other O'fflce Beautlfyllng Vehicles of office Qonstructlon Total

construction SAuiPment  accessories a”irzzi'ng in progress
Cost
At January 1, 2018 51,068 36,688 4,214 24,932 90,428 - 207,330
Additions = 3,122 240 6,709 2,818 83 12,972
Disposals = (960) (537) (5,200) (2,211) - (8,908)
At December 31, 2018
and At January 1, 2019 51,068 38,850 3,917 26,441 91,035 83 211,394
Additions/ Transfer in - 2,304 26 30 1,901 - 4,261
Disposals/Transfer out - (8,934) (28) (6,007) (31,296) (83) (46,348)
At December 31, 2019 51,068 32,220 3,915 20,464 61,640 - 169,307
Accumulated depreciation
At January 1, 2018 51,068 31,847 3,547 22,189 76,505 - 185,156
Depreciation charge for the year - 2,534 251 1,170 5,079 - 9,034
Disposals - (954) (5637) (5,169) (1,431) - (8,091)
At December 31, 2018
and January 1, 2019 51,068 33,427 3,261 18,190 80,153 - 186,099
Depreciation charge for the year B} 2.690 256 1,925 4,752 . 9,623
Disposals - (8,932 (28)  (6,007) (31,274) - (46,241)
At December 31, 2019 51,068 27,185 3,489 14,108 53,631 - 149,481
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Buildin Furnishing
9 Office Beautifying ) of office  Construction
and other . . Vehicles d selli . Total
: equipment accessories and selling  in progress
construction areas
Net book value
At December 31, 2018 = 5,423 656 8,251 10,882 83 25,295
At December 31, 2019 - 5,035 426 6,356 8,009 = 19,826

In 2019 and 2018, building and equipment that fully depreciated but still in use has gross carrying amount
Baht 180.90 million and baht 165.62 million, respectively.

16. Leasehold rights

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

rli_gelicz?rljgllwdd Rithetas?gTJ(i)I.l(;jing Total
and premises

Cost
At January 1, 2018 34,200 45,204 79,404
At December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2019 34,200 45,204 79,404
At December 31, 2019 34,200 45,204 79,404
Accumulated amortization
At January 1, 2018 2,303 30,724 33,027
Amortization for the year 3,300 1,506 4,806
At December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2019 5,603 32,230 37,833
Amortization for the year 3,300 1,491 4,791
At December 31, 2019 8,903 33,721 42,624
Net book value
At December 31, 2018 28,597 12,974 41,571
At December 31, 2019 25,297 11,483 36,780

The Company has leasehold rights agreements on land and buildings and premises. In this regards, the Company
still pays monthly rental fee according to rates as stipulated in agreements for period of 10 - 28 years, expiring
in 2020 - 2030.

17. Intangible assets

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Trade mark %%??V%gﬁgr .Szﬁg:rlre Total
installation

Cost

At January 1, 2018 747 32,072 - 32,819
Increase - 165 5,500 5,665
At December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2019 747 32,237 5,500 38,484
Increase/ Transfer in - 17,841 - 17,841
Transfer out - (1,253) (5,500) (6,753)
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18.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Software
Trade mark %%?Q@Zﬁgr under Total
installation
At December 31, 2019 747 48,825 - 49,572
Accumulated amortization
At January 1, 2018 - 27,326 - 27,326
Amortization for the year - 987 - 987
At December 31, 2018 and January 1, 2019 - 28,313 - 28,313
Amortization for the year - 1,666 - 1,666
Transfer out - (1,253) - (1,253)
At December 31, 2019 - 28,726 - 28,726
Net book value
At December 31, 2018 747 3,924 5,500 10,171
At December 31, 2019 747 20,099 - 20,846
Remaining amortization period Year
2018 1-9
2019 1-9
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
2019 2018
Deferred tax assets 47,576 46,408
Deferred tax liabilities (10,977) (12,146)
Net 36,599 34,262
Movements in total deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year were as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
(Expenses) Revenue recorded in
At Profit Other At
January or Comprehensive  December
2019, 1 loss income 2019, 31
(Note 23)
Deferred tax assets
Trade receivable 1,510 (116) - 1,394
Inventories 297 310 - 607
Gross profit consignment goods 24,585 (934) - 23,651
Other long-term investments 1,489 1,302 - 2,791
Non-Current provisions for employee benefit 17,464 (311) 949 18,102
Others 1,063 (32) - 1,031
Total 46,408 219 949 47,576
Deferred tax liabilities
Available-for-sale investments 12,146 - (1,169) 10,977
Total 12,146 - (1,169) 10,977
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

(Expenses) Revenue recorded in

Jarﬁ}ary Proorfit Comg’tahheénsive Decértnber
1, 2018 loss income 31, 2018
(Note 23)
Deferred tax assets
Trade receivable 1,695 (185) - 1,510
Inventories 505 (208) - 297
Gross profit consignment goods 24,187 398 - 24,585
Other long-term investments 1,313 176 - 1,489
Non-Current provisions for employee benefits 17,342 122 - 17,464
Others 1,261 (198) - 1,063
Total 46,303 105 - 46,408
Deferred tax liabilities
Available-for-sale investments 12,864 - (718) 12,146
Total 12,864 - (718) 12,146

19. Other non-current assets
Other non-current assets as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Deposit - Related company 548 548
Deposit - Other company 3,808 3,146
Total 4,356 3,694

20. Trade and other current payables
Trade and other current payables as at December 31, 2019 and 2018 are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Trade payables
Related companies 40,885 40,187
Other companies 42,298 56,439
Total 83,183 96,626
Other current payables
Related companies 450 861
Accrued expenses 31,039 42,394
Other 26,419 39,284
Total 57,908 82,5639
Total trade and other current payables 141,091 179,165

21. Non-Current provisions for employee benefits

The Company operate a defined benefit pension plan based on the requirement of Thai Labour Protection Act
B.E 2541 (1998) to provide retirement benefits to employees based on pensionable remuneration and length
of service.

The defined benefit plans expose the Company to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk, currency risk, interest
rate risk and market (investment) risk.
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Statement of financial position
Non-current provisions in statement of financial position
Post-employment benefits 76,839 57,753
Other long-term employee benefits 13,672 29,562
Total 90,511 87,315

Movement in the present value of the defined benefit obligations.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Defined benefit obligations at January 1, 87,315 86,706
Include in profit or loss:
Past service cost 1,179 -
Current service cost 4,380 4,581
Interest on obligation 1,742 1,696
7,301 6,277
Included in other comprehensive income:
Actuarial loss 4,745 -
4,745 -
Other:
Transfer in 1,396 198
Benefit paid (10,246) (5,866)
(8,850) (5,668)
Defined benefit obligations at December 31, 90,511 87,315

Actuarial loss recognized in other comprehensive income as of the end of the reporting period arising from:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Year ended December 31,
Financial assumptions 4,745 -
Total 4,745 -

Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (presented by weighted average method).

(Unit : Percentage)

2019 2018
Discount rate 1.3 2
Future salary growth 445 - 8.20 4.45 - 8.20
Turnover rate 1-47 1-47

Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables.
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22.

23.

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Defined benefit obligation December 31, Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) (2,448) 2,564 (2,406) 2,521
Future salary growth (0.5% movement) 3,054 (2,936) 2,605 (2,510)
Turnover rate (10% movement) (3,517) 3,839 (2,871) 3,101
Future mortality (0.5% movement) (9) 9 (8) 8

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does
provide an approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.

On December 13, 2018, the National Legislative Assembly passed the resolution to approve the draft of new
Labour Protection Act which was announced in the Royal Gazette on April 5, 2019. This new Act stipulates
additional compensation for a terminated employee who has worked for 20 consecutive years or more and shall
be entitled to receive payment not less than the last rate of wages for 400 days. Such change is correction post-
employment benefit resulting in increasing in provision for long-term employee benefit .The Company ,therefore,
recognizes the effect from such change as part service cost in statement of income of 2019

Provident Fund

The defined contribution plans comprise provident funds established by the Company for its employees. Membership
to the funds is on a voluntary basis. Contributions are made monthly by the employees at the rate of 3% - 15% of their
basic salaries and by the company at rates ranging from 3% - 4% of the employees’ basic salaries. The provident funds
are registered with the Ministry of Finance as juristic entities and are managed by a licensed Fund Manager.

Income tax

23.1 Calculation of income tax for the current period

In 2019, the Company calculated income tax by using tax rate at 20% from profit before income tax after adjusted
by allowance and any expenses which shall not be allowed as expenses in tax calculation (if any).

23.2 Expense of the income tax recognized in profit or loss
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Current income tax
For the current year 7,485 41,690
Deferred tax
Changing in temporary difference (219) (105)
Total 7,266 41,585
Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale financial assets 1,169 718
Actuarial loss from defined benefit plan 949 -
Total 2,118 718
Reconciliation of effective tax rate
Profit before income tax expense 38,825 210,680
Income tax rate 20% 20%
Income tax using the corporate income tax rate 7,765 42,136
Income not subject to tax (1,001) (1,022)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 502 471
Total 7,266 41,685
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24.

25.

26.

27.

Reserves
Reserves comprise:
Legal reserve

Section 116 of the Public Companies Act B.E. 2535 Section 116 requires that a public company shall allocate
not less than 5% of its annual net profit, less any accumulated losses brought forward, to a reserve account (“legal
reserve”), until this account reaches an amount not less than 10% of the registered authorized capital. The legal
reserve is not available for dividend distribution.

General investment reserve

The Company had appropriated some of net profit for reserve as general investment reserve which is not mentioned
for any specific purpose.

Dividend

According to the ordinary shareholder meeting No.25 held on April 22, 2019, The company has approved to pay
dividend Baht 0.80 per share amount of 60 million share from net profit of the year 2018 total amount of dividend
Baht 48 million. Such dividend was paid to shareholders on May 21, 2019.

According to the ordinary shareholder meeting No.24 held on April 23, 2018, The company has approved to pay
dividend Baht 0.65 per share amount of 60 million share from net profit of the year 2017 total amount of dividend
Baht 39 million. Such dividend was paid to shareholders on May 21, 2018.

Expenses by nature

The statements of income include an analysis of expenses by function. Expenses by nature disclosed in accordance
with the requirements of various TFRS were as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Changes in inventories of finished goods (7,524) 5,320
Purchase of finished goods 597,854 635,208
Personnel expenses 332,252 356,949
Sale promotion expenses 12,175 89,869
Sample products expenses 19,983 31,908
Advertisement expenses 5,892 7,689
Depreciation and amortization expenses 16,592 14,826
Consulting fee 7,651 8,546
Director remuneration 4,684 4,747
Executive remuneration 23,883 25,342

Segment Information

The Company has three reportable segments, as described below, which are the Company’s strategic divisions.
The primary format, business segments, is based on the Company’s management and internal reporting structure.

Inter-segment pricing is determined on mutually agreed terms.

Segment results, assets and liabilities include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those that can be
allocated on a reasonable basis. Unallocated items mainly comprise interest or dividend-earning assets and revenue,
and corporate assets and expenses.
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Business segments
The Company comprises the following main business segments:
Segment 1 Cosmetics distributing and beauty services

Segment 2 Clothes
Segment 3 Others

Information regarding the results of each reportable segment is included below. Performance is measured based
on segment profit before tax, as included in the internal management reports that are reviewed by the Company’s
CODM. Segment profit before tax is used to measure performance as management believes that such information
is the most relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these
same industries.

Information about reportable segments

(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Cosmetics distributing

. Clothes Others Total
and beauty services
For the year ended December 31, 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenue from external customer 1,001,606 1,112,684 125,686 160,549 2 1,635 1,127,294 1,274,768
Segment profit (loss) before income tax 57,148 74,581  (11,414) (5,108) (7) (786) 45,727 68,687
Total assets for reportable segments
As at December 31, 342,616 337,193 77,189 82,500 - 5 419,805 419,698

Reconciliation of reportable segment profit or loss and assets for the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018
are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Profit or loss
Total profit for reportable segments 45,727 68,687
Unallocated amounts
Other income 10,487 171,495
Other operating expenses (17,389) (29,502)
Total profit before income tax 38,825 210,680
(Unit : Thousand Baht)
2019 2018
Assets
Assets for reportable segments
Trade receivables 162,072 163,394
Inventories 235,441 229,464
Building and equipment 10,662 14,247
Leasehold rights 11,094 12,102
Other intangible assets 536 491
Total 419,805 419,698
Non-segment assets
Cash and cash equivalents 49,464 48,566
Current investments 160,328 220,109
Other current receivables 12,534 15,471
Other current assets 31,294 28,741
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28.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Investments held as available for sale 94,585 100,432
Other long-term investments 46,440 50,701
Loans to related company 6,789 9,677
Investment property 316,895 308,229
Deferred tax assets 36,599 34,262
Other non-current assets 4,356 3,694
Total 759,284 819,882
Unallocated assets
Building and equipment 9,164 11,048
Leasehold rights 25,686 29,469
Other intangible assets 20,310 9,680
Total 55,160 50,197
Total assets 1,234,249 1,289,777
raphical ment

The Company is managed and operates principally in Thailand. There is no material revenues derived from, or assets
located in, overseas.

Major Customer

The Company has no major external customer.

Financial instruments

Financial risk management policies

The Company is exposed to normal business risks from changes in market interest rates and currency exchange
rates and from non-performance of contractual obligations by counterparties. The Company does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments for speculative or trading purposes.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a system of controls in
place to create an acceptable balance between the cost of risks occurring and the cost of managing the risks. The
management continually monitors the Company’s risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance
between risk and control is achieved.

Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Board monitors the return on capital, which the
Company defines as result from operating activities divided by total shareholders’ equity, and also monitors the level
of dividends to ordinary shareholders.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that future movements in market interest rates will affect the results of the Company’s
operations and its cash flows. The Company is primarily exposed to interest rate risk from long-term investments.
The management has considered that the interest rate risk is low as the interest rates are mainly fixed.

The effective interest rates of equity and debt securities as at December 31 and maturity are as follows:

Effective After 1 year but
interest rate Within 1 year  within 5 years Total
(% per annum) (Unit: Thousand Baht)
2019
Current
- Fixed Deposit within 1 year 14 -185 120,000 - 120,000
Total 120,000 - 120,000

206l



Effective After 1 year but

interest rate Within 1 year  within 5 years Total
(% per annum) (Unit: Thousand Baht)

2018
Current
- Fixed Deposit within 1 year 15-165 130,000 - 130,000

Total 130,000 - 130,000
Non-current
- Long-term deposits at financial 2.125 10,000 - 10,000

Total 10,000 - 10,000
Credit risk

Credit risk is the potential financial loss resulting from the failure of a customer or counterparty to settle its financial
and contractual obligations to the Company as and when they fall due.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain amount. At the reporting date there were
no significant concentrations of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position. However, due to the large number of parties
comprising the Company’s customer base, Management does not anticipate material losses from its debt collection.

Liquidity risk
The Company monitors its liquidity risk and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
management to finance the Company’s operations and to mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

Determination of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the determination of fair value, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged,
or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, wiling parties in an arm’s length transaction. Fair values have been
determined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, further
information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to that asset
or liability.

The fair value of trade and other shortterm receivables is taken to approximate the carrying value.

The fair value of investments in equity and debt securities, which are held for trading, held to maturity and
available-for-sale, is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the reporting date. The fair value of
held-to-maturity investments is determined for disclosure purposes only.

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying values shown in the statement of financial
position as at December 31 were as follows:

2019 2019
Fair value Carrying value Fair value Carrying value

(Unit : thousand Baht)
Current investments

- Equity securities held for trading 40,328 40,000 90,109 90,000
- Fixed Deposit within 1 year 120,000 120,000 130,000 130,000
Investments held as available for sale

- Equity securities available for sale 94,585 94,585 100,432 100,432
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29.

2019

Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Other long-term investments

- Long-term deposits at financial institutions - -

Investment property 365,650 316,895 365,650

Commitments and contingent liabilities

29.1 Commitment under lease agreement

2019
Carrying value
(Unit : thousand Baht)

10,000
308,229

The company has entered into lease and service agreement with various domestic companies. Such agreements

have period 1 year through 28 years and will be ended in 2030 consisting of

- Commitment under non-cancellable as December 31 are as follows

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Within 1 year 5,554 10,137
Over 1 year but less than 5 years 14,002 14,629
Over 5 years 10,534 13,247
Total 30,090 38,013

- Commitment to pay lease and service fees according to a formula based on the incurred revenue multiplied

by the fee rate stipulated in the agreement

29.2 Asat December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company had deposit at a financial institution guaranteed contingent
labilities from letter of guarantee to Thailand Post Co., Ltd. Metropolitan Electricity Authority and Office of the Consumer

Protection Board Baht 0.64 million and baht 0.6 1 million, respectively.
29.3 Other commitments

The company has unused credit facilities with 3 banks as follows.

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2019 2018
Bank overdrafts 110,000 110,000
Promissory note 185,000 185,000
Letter of credit for purchasing goods and material 20,000 20,000
Letter of guarantee from bank 1,000 1,000
Total 316,000 316,000

30. Approval of financial statements

The financial statements have been approved to be issued by the Company’s Board of Directors

on February 12, 2020.
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13. Analysis and Explanation of Management
1. Result of Performance and Financial Status

1.1.  Qverall of Performance and Financial Status in the Past

In 2019, the Company had total amount of 1,139.13 Million Baht, decreased from prior year of 331.76
Million Baht or 22.56%, dividing to revenue from sales of 1,127.29 Milion Baht, decreased from prior year of 147.47
Million Baht or 11.57% and other revenue amount of 11.84 Million Baht, decreased from prior year of 184.29 Million
Baht or 93.96 %.The total expenses amount of 1,100.31 Million Baht, decreased from prior year of 159.91 Million Baht
or 12.69% and the net profit after deducted corporation income tax was 31.56 Million Baht, comparing with prior year it
decreased 137.53 Million Baht or 81.34%.

The Company had total assets as at December 31, 2019 amount of 1,234.25 Million Baht; it decreased
of 55.53 Million Baht or 4.31% over the year 2018, current assets decreased by 54.61 Milion Baht, and the non-current
assets decreased by 0.92 Million Baht. Current assets consist of cash and the cash equivalent increased by 0.90 Million
Baht. Current investments decreased by 59.78 Million Baht, which representing the decreasing of equity instruments held
for trade and the fixed deposit which has the category of period not over 1 year. Trade accounts receivable and the
other current accounts receivable decreased 4.26 Million Baht according to the adjustment of total selling and the control
of debt administration efficiently. The inventory increased by 5.98 Million Baht due to the preparation of merchandise for
selling during New Year's Festival and Chinese New Year. Other current assets increased 2.55 Million Baht. Non-current
assets classified as held for sale decreased 5.85 Million Baht from the decreased of market price of the equity securities
available for sale, the others capital investment in long term decreased by 4.26 Million Baht from the fixed deposits cash
at financial institution. The loans to other related companies decreased by 2.89 Million Baht. The immovable property for
investment increased by 8.67 Million Baht caused by land improvement and the part of property, building and equipment-
net decreased by 5.47 Milion Baht. Leasehold rights decreased by 4.79 Milion Baht which was the result of the cut-off
according to the usage life. Intangible assets-net increased by 10.67 Milion Baht, The assets of deferred income tax
increased 2.34 Million Baht and other non-current assets increased 0.66 Million Baht.

Thai economy in 2019 had the direction to grow obviously slowly comparing from prior years because it
has encountered with various risk factors causing by the shrink of external demand and the slowdown of internal supply.
The growth of export sectors continuously decreased due to the measure of trade protectionism and the problem of Trade
War between US.A and China affected the economy of trade partners. Tourism sectors, although somewhat slowed down
according to decrease numbers of the tourists from China as significant. Demand of the country remained weak and the
consumption of private sectors remained slow down causing by the factors of labor market that remained not recover,
including the household incomes of agricultural sectors stayed in a low level and its debt was in a high level. Overall
household purchasing power was not strong enough, expense in the country was inadequacy. It affected the government
sectors to stimulate the economy by establishing the measure to reduce cost of living to save low income people, measure
to support domestic tourism, measure to support minor agriculturists, tax measures for domestic investment promotion, of
which can only sustain the economy. The investment of private sectors remained in low level, while the industrial investment
sectors remained stagnate from the production power rate that remained not recover. Financial institutions were carefully
to approve business credit loan especially to SMEs business. Expense of governance sectors can be a part of stimulating
the economy, especially the investment for the development of infrastructure of trail transportation system though some
projects remain delay.

According to the economic situation that encountered with negative factors and high uncertain business
environment and always changed at all time, the consumers remained have existed burden of household liability in high
level, therefore the purchase of products was slow down by selecting only essential goods and consuming limit quantity.
The situation of competition is even more intensity, day by day, and there are more competitors joining in the market
continuously. Although the Company held the promotion activities in various forms for stimulating the purchasing force but
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it was unable to increase the revenue to be grown up. Many competitors have encountered with the problem of purchase

power that available so limited as well.

1.2

1.3.

In addition, there are other factors that affect to the business performance in term of enhancement,
support or being the obstacles to the business operation as follows:

(1)

Poli

(1

The mega infrastructure investment of government sector remained stay at the beginning stage. The
financial institutions increased the strictness on approval the business credit. The crops price of agriculture
was in low level. The deceleration of manufacture in the industrial sectors affected to the household
incomes. The consumers’ confidence remained in low level. All these factors affected to the purchasing
force and less spending.

The current inflation rate in the past year had trend to decrease gradually along with the demand in
the country; anyhow, the inflation rate remained in low level and not affected to people’s cost of living
too much. The value of Thai Baht was trended to be strengthen in the end of year comparing with US
Dollar. However the swing of Thai Baht value throughout the past year was not significant affected to
the cost of materials and finished products that were imported from abroad.

nd Plan of Company in Adaptation

According to the condition of competitive market that was tended to be more aggressive, the existing
competitors and new competitors have entered in the market gradually. They utilized the strategy
through various dimensions for snatching the market share. The Company planned a strategy to
maintaining the existing customer base and attempted to increase the numbers of new customer
by promoting the activity at the sales point for stimulating of product trial and PR advertising brand
directed to the target group for creating the brand awareness and interested in the products for trial.

The Company remained place importance on the development of innovative products that are
outstanding for responding to the consumers’ demand in any occasion as well as to regularly improve
the quality of service to enhance consumers’ confidence with maximum pleasant.

The Company has supported all of employee’s skill and knowledge by conducting the  training and
education concerning to the business growth strategy. To create the Culture Working Team (CWT)
for reinforcement the Company’s six core values and the corporate favorable culture under “Beauty
from Within” by collaborating to define the plan for each unit to practice to reach the same target
goal. The culture of team working has built up for encouraging the employees to open their minds
to listen and dare to express opinions for new works as well as to place importance on professional
team work. There was knowledge exchanged for sharing among the staffs from each profession via
various communication inside the Company, especially via Intranet Web Board.

Performance of each Product

In 2019, the Company had revenue from total sales by 1,127.29 Milion Baht, decreased from prior
year 11.57% by the slowdown of Thai economic situation and dull atmosphere of expense. In addition, there was a new
accounting system to comply with IFRS 15 (DRAFT) Revenue from Contracts with Customers that has amendment of
revenue recognition from the sales amount 52.34 Milion Baht. In 2018, the Company remained adopt the accounting
policy from the 2 major product lines as per each total sales as follows:

A)

Cosmetics, Musical Instruments

The total sales amount was 1,00 1.6 1 Million Baht or equivalent to 88.85% from the Company’s total
sales, compared from prior year, the decreased rate was 10.11% which was the decrease from the
slowdown of then spending of consumers in accordance with the economic situation that was not
propitious. Nevertheless the Company remained to maintain the existing customer firmly whenever
the country recovered its confidence, the sales amount will be increased more.
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(B) Garment Products

The total sales amount was 125.69 Million Baht or equivalent to 11.15% from the Company’s total
sales, compared from prior year, the decreased rate was 21.7 1% which receive the impact directly
from economic situation and the limited of purchase power. The consumers remained have household
debt in high level, therefore extravagant expenditure was controlled and the purchase would be made
as necessity based on the benefit.

1.4. Performance versus Budget

In previous year, the Company didn’t show estimate of operating result on the registration statement
offering of securities.

1.5. Report of Auditors

In previous year, the Company’s Auditors checked the financial budget of the Company and commented
that the financial budget was accurate as materially in compliance with the standard of financial report.

1.6. hanging of the A nt Policy Significantl
The changing of account policy in 2019 did not affect materiality to the financial budget report of the
Company.
2. Profitable ability

2.1. Revenue

In 2019, the Company had total revenue of 1,139.13 Million Baht, compared from prior year, the
decreased rate was 331.76 Million Baht or 22.56 %. The main revenue from the total sales was 1,127.29 Million Baht
which decreased from prior year 11.57 % from the 2 major product lines as mentioned above.

2.2. t of Sales and Expen

In 2019, the cost of goods sold was 591.01 Milion Baht or equivalent to 52.43% of total net sales
that increased from the prior year 2.12%. It came from the impact of the amendment of accounting policy. The cost of
distribution amount of 344.92 Million Baht, decreased by 107.33 Milion Baht or 23.73%. The decrease came from the
impact of the amendment of accounting policy amount of 71.07 Million Baht, while the balance amount of 36.25 Million
Baht came from the control of expense in various groups with effectiveness. Administrative expense amount of 164.38
Million Baht, decreased by 2.02 Million Baht or 1.21% which stayed in the same direction as the reduction of total sales.

In previous year, the Company’s had no paid interest because the Company’s liquidity was in excellent level.
2.3.  Other Revenues
The revenue that didn’t gain from the regular operation was 11.84 Million Baht, decreased from prior year
184.29 Million Baht or 93.96% from the decrease of profit from selling the land amount 160 Million Baht that occurred since
last year. The balance amount of 24.29 Million Baht from the standard of IFRS 15 (DRAFT) Revenue from Contracts with
Customers, amount of 18.73 Million Baht and was received interest, received rental, revenue from expense compensation
amount of 5.56 Million Baht.
24.  Profit
After deducting cost of goods sold, sales and administrative expenses from total sales revenues, the
Company has earned gross profit from the operation 26.99 Million Baht. It increased from prior year 12.15 Million Baht,
due to the above reasons when included with the other revenues and has deducted the payable interest, resulting in a
profit before the corporation income tax was 38.83 Million Baht, decreased by 171.85 Milion Baht from prior year, or
81.57%. After the deduction of the corporation income tax, the net profit was 31.56 Million Baht which decreased 81.34%
from prior year.
In comparison with Cash Flow Statement, ratio of net cash earning from operation against net profit ratio
reached at 0.40 times, increased 0.15 times from prior year but the Company’ liquidity remains in good level.
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2.5.  BRetumn on Shareholders’ Equi
The Company paid dividend for the year 2018 at the rate 0.80 Baht per share and total amount was 48.00
Milion Baht, comparing the proportion as 28.39% of net profit in 2018 that complies with the Company’s dividend policy.
3. Ability to Asset Management
3.1.  Quality of receivables
Accounts receivable aged over 3 months was 4.35 Million Baht, compared to prior year it decreased
22.55% but if it's calculated by the proportion it was only 2.68% of the whole trade receivable. This affected the credit
management to be in good level and followed up to accelerate the collected money closely. The Company has set up
the reserve for doubtful accounts amount of 6.97 Million Baht by adopting the same rules as previous year.
3.2. Inventories and Impairment
As ended of 2019, the worth of inventory was 238.48 Million Baht. The Company reserved the allowance
of inventory impairment by using the criterion as same as in 2018. Thus, the remainder reserved in 2019 was 3.04 Million
Baht, or 1.27%.
3.3. Investment
Previous year, the Company was not increased the investment with significant due to the political
circumstance and the economy condition were not conducive to investment, however; the Company has the potential to
expand the investment whenever the overview of external market condition improved.
4. Liquidity and Source of Funds

4.1. uitability of Capital Structure
(A) ital Structur
Ratio of the Company’s Debt to Equity equivalent to 0.24 times and it decreased from prior year
0.08 times and no has the burden of outstanding loans, these indicators show that the financial
structure was good and the financial base was strong if the business opportunity was facilitated and

has the economic benefits worth, the Company would be able to expand its investment by using
the accumulated funds together with utilizing loans from financial institutes.

(B) Shareholders’ Equity

As ended of 2019, value of shareholders’ was 993.17 Million Baht. It's decreased 24.91 Million
Baht from prior year, or equaling 2.45% earnings from the annual net profit decreased 31.56
Million Baht deducted the loss result which has not yet occur from the transformation of invested
capital in accordance with the fair value principle amount of 8.47 Million Baht, deducted from the
dividends in 2018 amount of 48.00 Million Baht.

(C) Cash Flows

In 2019, net cash from operating activities was 12.72 Million Baht, it's decreased from the prior
year by 29.42 Milion Baht due to the cash received from the operation, the reduction of trade
creditors and other current creditors and the increasing of inventory. Total net cash from investment
activities was 36.17 Million Baht, which resulted from the cash received of temporary investment
distribution at 210.40 Million Baht, the cash received which refunded from the loans of related
company at 2.89 Million Baht, the cash received from the distribution of building and equipment
0.75 Million Baht, deducting with the cash paid for purchasing the temporary investment 140.00
Million Baht, the cash paid for purchasing the other long term investment 12.25 Million Baht, the
cash paid for purchasing the investment property 9.18 Million Baht, the cash paid for purchasing
the building and equipment 4.09 Million Baht, In part of the net cash that has been spent for
financial activities was 12.34 Million Baht came from the cash paid for being the loans refund in
short term from the financial institution 48.00 Million Baht and the cash paid for the dividend of
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shareholders when included the cash at the beginning of the year, the balance net cash as ended
of the year was 49.46 Million Baht.

(D) Liabilities
As ended of 2019, the Company had total liabilities 24 1.08 Million Baht, decreased from prior year
30.61 Million Baht came from the decreasing of current liability which repaid all short term of loans
from the financial institution and no has outstanding loans, and the mainly liability were in the current
liabilities group has concerned with the trade which the Company always paid on schedule.

4.2. Liguidity and Ability to payable a liability
As end of 2019, the ratio of liquidity equivalent to 4.32 times, increased from prior year 0.50 times. The
liquidity ratio rapid revolved was equivalent to 1.45 times, increased from prior year 0.15 times, both ratios have liquidity
in the high level and the revolving fund remained sufficiently. The overview of Cash Cycle, its average was 145 days,

increasing value from previous year 16 days as result from the time of retain average debt and the period of average sale
were more length and the period of repay average debt was short time but it's nothing effect to any liquidity.

As the value amount of current assets was 65 1.13 Million Baht and it was higher over the current liability
amount of 500.56 Million Baht, thus the indication has showed the sufficiency of liquidity and the ability to payable liability
obviously.

5. Key Factors & Influence which may affect Future Performance of Financial Status

Due to the monitor of various sources of information about the Thai economic situation’s forecast in 2020, its
growth rate will be decreased from 2019. Export sectors tend to shrink continuously as well as a number of tourists which
expect to decline after the spread of new Corona Virus (COVID-19). Domestic demand tends to have expansion, but at
a declining rate in accordance with the pressure from various factors, including the decline of employment, especially in
industrial sectors. Consumers have less confidence gradually. The agricultural revenues tend to be affected by drought,
including household debts that are stayed in high level. All these affect to the household spending. In addition, investments
of private sectors parts tend to slow down due to the low capacity of production and industrial inventory’s level is high.
Meanwhile, the construction business remain have the benefit from the expansion of governance investment in large
infrastructure both in Bangkok and the provinces. However, the Thai economy continues to encounter with the risk factors
from the global economic slowdown due to the uncertainty of the international trade policy of the US.A., retaliation of the
trade partners, geopoalitical risks; especially between Iran and US.A., protracted protest in Hong Kong. In addition, there
are many other domestic risk factors such as political uncertainty, especially the lack of government’s stability, which affect
investors’ confidence. The financial vulnerability of household and business sector, especially the groups which have high
level of debts. The change of technology (Technology Disruption) and aggressive competitions.

However, the Company will conduct its business with negligence taking into account of overall risk factors in
business operation, to carefully administrate the organization with advanced preparation to handle with various situations
that may occur, to analyze all problems carefully with logics. An emergency plan is established to handle with serious
cases. Strict to the principles of good corporate governance and commit to developing and  offering the products and
services to meet the needs of consumers for creating the utmost satisfaction and impression. Emphasize on the monitor
of information technology system in various fields for implementing to make decision and resolve the problem currently.
The Company enhances skill and develop the ability of the employees in order that they can manage their works as
professional. To create a good working environment for enhancing unity power and are ready to step forward together to
Sustainable success forever.
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